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SELECTED
CIAL DATA

Year Ended December 31,
EARNINGS DATA

Net interest income

Provision for {oan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Non-interest income

Net gains {(losses) on sales of investment securities
Non-interest expense

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net income

COMMON SHARE DATA

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Book value per share at year end

Dividends paid per share

Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

YEAR END BALANCE SHEET AND OTHER DAT.
Total assets

Loans serviced for others

Investment assets under management

Total assets under management

Total loans

Allowance for loan losses
Investiment securities at fair value
Total short-term investments
Deposits

Borrowed funds

Junior subordinated debentures
Total stockholders™ equity

RATIOS

Return on average total assets

Return on average stockholders’ equity
Allowance for loan losses to total loans
Stockholders’ equity to total assets
Dividend payout ratio
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Dear Shareholders:

Enterprise Bank has built an outstanding reputation as the leading
financial institution in the communities we serve. Qur expertise

in commercial lending, investment management, insurance,

and cash management solutions has positioned us as the bank

of choice in our markets. Our customers benefit from our ability
ta deliver the products and services of national banks in a local,
responsive, and community-focused environment. Our employees

Enterprise Bank opened for business in 1989 in the midst of

a difficult economic cycle that placed industry-wide pressure on
bank earnings and loan quality. That initial environment, and
the opportunities that materialized at that time, influenced our
fong-term strategy. From the outset, the Bank has held a course
of strong due diligence in our lending practices resulting in
consistent high-credit quality over the years and through 2007.

are passionate about providing outstanding service
and actively participating in community work.
With total assets surpassing $1 billion in 2007

and total assets under management over $1.6
billion inclusive of investment management assets,
the Bank continues on a path of strategic growth.

2007 Financial Highlights

During one of the most difficult cycles for

the banking industry, with financial institutions
facing compressed margins resulting in earnings
decreases, Enterprise Bank is pleased to report

a 7.2% increase in net income. This is particularly

NET INCOME (s in thousands)

We have always been committed to investing
for growth through all cycles with a focus on
creating long-term value.

$9,234

Investing for Success

In 2007, management made significant investments
in the Bank’s future success: building management
depth; developing employee talents; enhancing
operational efficiencies and the customer
experience; expanding our geographic market

area; supporting diverse business lines; and
expanding our community-focused resources.

Commercial Lending Relationships

2003

impressive considering the substantial investments

we made in 2007 in personnel, technology, 2004

2005

Enterprise Bank specializes in building long-term

2007

2006

marketing, facilities and other infrastructure.
Other financial highlights include:
Diluted earnings per share rose 5.9% to $1.25
Bank assets increased 8% to $1.058 billion
Total loans increased 10% to $833.8 million

Deposits (excluding brokered certificates) decreased
$4.5 million, or 1%

Investment assets under management increased 14%
to $573.6 million

commercial relationships with businesses,
non-profits, and professional service providers. OQur primary focus
is to develop high-value business relationships through personalized
service, same-day response on mail, email, and phone calls, and
deep community involvement. Local business lenders support each
branch location — a key differentiator for Enterprise Bank. Business
customers benefit from our breadth of expertise with access to top-
quality lending, investment advisory services, state-of-the-art cash




a1e AJUNOD 3Y) PUNGIE SYUB(

‘IN[0AD SIIIAIIS JUILLIIBEUBLL LS SY
“SUONMIPSU) [BIDUELL 1981B] AQ PaJajjo
Ajledpund $331A135 JUILLASEUELL YSED
paieanstydos jo adA ayl *|9As] PO B
uo ‘13440 01 yuegq ayl 1o} J|qissod

}1 3peul sey dnoin JUIUIRBEUEW
YseD) paiedipap sjueg asudiaug
juuaSeue |y ysed

"S13NJELU 3|IIB[OA SABPO] UI SIU3LLI|I
Bunenuataylp pue juepodu aue
s|leuo1ssajord juawogeuew Asuol
152U} 33 01 SSIIIE PUE ‘IAPE
aanalqo ampanyaie uado nQ
‘auewIopad pue s32104) UONEID| B
13$SE JN0OQE SJUIND WIOJUI PUB 3SIApE

‘gussaroad nsodap jeuonipesy jo

SU0IPISAI DIYdeIZ0ag Ju3 SAJPUIWIR JBLI IHAIIS SABAOULIL SIY} JO
IBPIUBAPE UIE] SIFWOISND MU pue SUIISIX3 10g Ylm ‘2007 Ul
P3AIRIAL |]am A13A 31am s1auueds dolysap nsodag] ssatdx3 aam e
sAep-£ ‘Aep e sanoy-fz 121ndwod 330 pue 1_uUeds e woly A[paap
sHsodap Y2ayd yeus 0] SIAWOISNI SMO|[E AZOOUI) SIUL s Ns0daq
ssa1dx3 — 31Ins JuaLuageueLl Lsed sy 01 pnpoid mau e pappe

yueq ayl Z00Z U] INIEL 0] SIIIALIS ISAY) SULIQ O} BULI0ABIPUI

(SHONfIq uI $) JUBUATEUE JapUn SI3SSY jelo] E (suofitr U1 §) S12S5Y je20f ﬂ

2002 S00¢ o0z €00

002

y

INTFWIDVNVYIW HIANN
S1ISSV 1V101 ANV S13SSY 1Tv101

pUe J3¥3JEL 3Y) Ul SUCIHIBNIIN| SSNISIP 0] Jj(E[IBAR PUE 3|qISSIIIE B

SI0SIAPE 353l "SUONEBUZISIP PUE SUDIEI|IIII [BIDUBUL PIJUBAPE JO
A1211BA B BUIP|OY SIOSIAPE [BPDUEBUL PAJU3LIAAXa ‘3|qeagpajmouy yim

diysiauned paseq-diysuoiie[al e siualp Ino 13Jjo ap sapiaoid Ny jeyl

S|9A3] 2DIALs-UBIY pue *uewopnad ‘sSuualo punj aaisuedxa o)

IN|BA OUM S|ENPIAIPUL PUE ‘SIIUMO SSAUISNE ‘S[EUOISSI)0Id [EdIpaut
‘S1yodd-uou ym $S30INS N0 papaal £00Z Ul LIMoIn "uoisal al
Ul paouanadxa pue papys 1SOW 3yl JO U0 S| WEeIF NY| N aAd1AQ
M WIE3T DY 3U) Yygnoayyl Ajjeso| papiaold juawageuru pue
WB1s13A0 onotod uapuadapul yum ‘Anunod 3yl w siageuew
Aauow guiunopad 153q Ayl 03 SSINE UM SJUIP DY sapiacad
wetgold 3y "sju3i INo 10) U310 PAIBITUAIP B SaysI|qelsa
wesgold ,SIaFeUBW JO 193eUR dAIsUIyaLduod e 1330 01 AN|Ige

SOVI %91 PISEIIIUL WOIU| 33) (DY) s,dnoin
AI0SIAPY JUILLISIAL| AL %P | Pasealul
H:wEmmmEmE 13puUn S)asse JU3atl]SsaALl ‘£00z Uj
dnoun A1osiapy juaunsaauy ay |

BUIPUI| SSILISNQ PHOS YHM

saniunpoddo jayiew uo aziendes o1 uonisod
Buoas B Ul S| jueg asudiaiul ‘youallal

SYUeq 13U} SE PIUOPUEe U33(q IARL A3U]
pul} OYMm SI3W0ISND SSAUISNG AYHOM-JIPaId
IAL3S pue 3gedud 03 Ajunpoddo ue s3as
Jsudiaiug se yans yueq |ERISWWOD paseq
-AJIUNWILWOD) PAIEINPAP B 3|IUM J3NJBW [BI0]
JY7 WOL) 1B SUOPININASUI [BIDUBLL) AUBLU
LLINJUMOP J1LIOU0I3 UB U] "SE3JE 13)Jew

ING U DI0YI JO 13PUI| |BIDIILILWOD Y} Se
3Z1AWI 0] SanuNUOd Jueg Isudiaiug "uol|nu
£7TL$ 1O UIMOIE UBO| UM 7007 Ul AHIAIIDE UBO]

Ajenb-ygiy “guoeays paousanadxa yueg Isidiaug sdiysuonelal
[E12J3WILLI0D JsoW o jutod |BI0) Y3 S1 SUIPUI| |BIDIILULLIOD)

"$1301)J0 BUIPUI| [BI2IILULLOD P31LdIpap

USNOoIY] PIIBUIPIOOD [|B — S3DIAIIS DUBINSU pUB ‘Juawageuewt




Human Resources

We view our employees as the key to sustaining high performance.

As Enterprise Bank continues to grow, it is imperative that we develop

employees who will successfully support our commercially-focused

business model and embrace our culture of close community ties

and outstanding customer service. In 2007, we
placed a high value on and dedicated significant
resources to talent management and training
Enierprise Bank prides itself on our emphasis
of assisting employees in professional develop
ment, while supporting the well-being of each
individual associated with our organization.

in 2007, Enterprise Bank introduced the
“Excel at Enterprise Bank. Learn. Develop.
Innovate. Create” concept to employees to
articulate the Bank's commitment to personal
and professional employee development.
The Bank actively recruited new outside
talent and provided significant learning and
development opportunities to employees

institutions offer a program such as Enterprise Bank’s Leadership
Development Program. This is the type of investment, along with
professional employee development, that will provide tremendous
benefits in building our Enterprise Team for future years.

Market Expansion and Facilities

DEPOSITS ¢ in millions)
{excluding brokered CD'’s)

Development

Enterprise Bank continually looks for strategic
opportunities to expand into contiguous market
arcas — building out our footprint from the North
Central, MA region through the Merrimack Valley
and Southern NH. Our Andover office, at its

new 8 High Street location, exceeded growth
expectations in 2007. Our new 255 Broadway
Street, Methuen office, opening in spring 2008,
will complement our Andaover, MA and Salem, NH
offices. The Bank has recently secured a site

and started the permitting process for an office
at 47 Crystal Avenue, Derry, NH. This location

2003

2004 2005

will allow us to build on the solid position of

2006 2007

through both internal and external training. In addition, “top of class”
college graduates joined the Bank's Leadership Development Program
(LDP). Working directly with senior team members, these employees

complete a comprehensive and intense management training
program in order to successfully assume management positions,
ensure management depth, and continue Enterprise Bank’s future
success. In recent years, four or five talented college graduates have
been recruited to join the program each year. Very few financial

our Salem office in the Southern New Hampshire
market. The Derry office is targeted to open in early 2009.

The Methuen and Derry offices will be located in the heart of
the downtown areas, staffed with local community-minded
banking professionals.

In addition, the Bank successfully completed the acquisition of
the 53,000 square foot, previously-leased facility located at 170
Merrimack Street/27 Palmer Street, Lowell, MA. The purchase
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Enterprise Bank is well positioned as a strong, independent
bank in all of our markets. We have grown consistently through
a number of changing economic cycles. Our vision remains
clear — Enterprise Bank is a business-focused bank, determined
to exceed the professional and persenal financial needs of

the customers we serve.

The Bank strives to hire the best and the brightest local talent -
individuals who serve as trusted advisors and subject-matter
experts. Our management team is experienced, engaged, and
focused. New leaders are actively recruited as well as developed
from within the organization. We diversify and advance products
and services to more fully serve the evolving financial challenges
and opportunities facing our customers. Our disciplined lending
practices have resulted in high loan quality. Our footprint
continues to expand into strong growth markets from Narth
Central Massachusetts through Southern New Hampshire.

The Bank plays a leadership role in all of the communities we
serve, actively working to improve the quality of life, reinvesting
in local projects, and fueling local economic development,

We would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our directors
for their leadership, professional acumen, and commitment to

our community-focused culture. We are grateful to our many
shareholders who bank with us, provide referrals to us, and
support our mission and purpose. We appreciate the trust

you have placed in our Bank.

As an organization, it all starts with our culture that cares deeply
about our employees and, in turn, our employees care about our

customers and the neighborhoods we serve. Every day, we strive

to live up to our purpose statement: The Enterprise Bankers help

to create successful businesses, jobs, opportunities, wealth and strong,
vibrant communities. Throughout the years, we have successfully
kept our promise to create a difference in the lives of our customers
and in the communities we touch. Our efforts in 2007 leave us well
positioned to actively pursue new opportunities for growth and
community support and leadership in the years ahead.

=S SN m..\\fn. ..\h.wvx Tkt Gy Dra,

Richard W. Main
President
Chief Lending Officer

John P. Clancy, Jr
Chief Executive Officer

Georgde L. Duncan
Chairman
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Our employees are deeply committed to helping create strong and vibrant
communities. Through their personal involvement employees donate time,
energy, enthusiasm, expertise, and financial support to a wide range of

endeavors in all the communities we serve.

“When approached to take a leadership rote,

| readily accepted the opportunity to help this
worthwhile organization continue its mission
te promote business interests in the Greater
Lowell area. | have found my association with
the Chamber to be extremely rewarding.”

John Bukala, Vice President/Commercial
Lending & Co-chair of the Greater Lowell
Chamber of Commerce.

10

“As a director of the Festival, | have an
opportunity to be involved on the ground
floor in planning this special multi-cultural
event that showcases foods, crafts, and the arts
in the North Central region. And, as an added
benefit, all funds raised benefit local charities
in our community.”

Deb LaPointe, VP/Branch Relationship
Manager & Member, Board of Directors of
the Johmny Appleseed Festival in Leominster.

“The Big Brothers Big Sisters of Greater
Lowell program has a proven direct positive
impact on at-risk yoeuth in the community.
Personally, it is both gratifying and inspiring
to be involved with such an effective and
worthwhile group.”

Steve Irish, Executive Vice President/Chief
information Officer & President of
Big Brothers Big Sisters.

“My work on behalf of the Andover
Business Center Association gives me a
special opportunity to interact with the
downtown merchants as we help promote
Andover as a destination place to shop.
During my 15-year tenure as treasurer, 've
met many creative and talented business
people as we've planned numerous local
endeavors, including Holiday Happenings
and Andover Days.”

Nancy Hargreaves-Pierce, Vice President/
Regional Manager & Treasurer of the
Andover Business Center Association.
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Qur expanding market includes opportunities for future
growth and profitability. In order to best serve our growing
customer base, the Enterprise Bankers se¢k out convenient
branch locations throughout the Merrimack Valley, North
Central Region and Southern New Hampshire.
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PART I
Item 1. Business

General

Enterprige Bancorp, Inc. {the "company") is a Massachusetts corporation, which operates as
the parent holding company of Enterprise Bank and Trust Company (the "bank"). The
company’s headquarters are located at 222 Merrimack Street in Lowell, Massachusetts.

Substantially all of the company’s operations are conducted through the bank. The bank, a
Massachusetts trust company, has five wholly owned subsidiaries which were included in the
company’'s consolidated financial statements:

¢ Enterprise Insurance Services, LLC, organized for the purposes of engaging in
ingurance sales activities;

* Enterprise Investment Services, LLC, organized for the purpose of offering non-
deposit investment products and services, and;

* Three Massachusetts security corporations, Enterprise Security Corporation,
Enterprise Security Corporation II and Enterprise Security Corporation III, which
heold various types of qualifying securities. The security corporations are limited
to conducting securities investment activities that the bank itself would be
allowed to conduct under applicable laws.

Through the bank and its subsidiaries, the company offers a range of commercial and
consumer loan products, deposit and cash management products, investment advisory
services, trust and insurance services. The services offered through the bank and
subsidiaries are managed as one strategic unit and represzent the company’s only reportable
operating segment. All material intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Market Area and Competition

The company’s primary market area is the Merrimack Valley and North Central regions of
Massachusetts and South Central New Hampshire. The company has fourteen full service
branch banking offices located in the Massachusetts cities and towns of Andover,
Billerica, Chelmsford, Dracut, Fitchburg, Leominster, Lowell, Tewksbury, and Westford; and
in Salem, New Hampshire which serve those cities and towns as well as the surrounding
communities. The company expects to open an additional branch facility, in the city of
Methuen, Massachusetts, in spring 2008. In addition, the company is in the process of
obtaining regqulatory approvals to establish a new branch in the town of Derry, New
Hampshire, and expects to open the facility for business in early 2Q009.

The company faces strong competition tc attract deposits and investment advisory assets
and to generate leoans. National and larger regional banks have a laocal presence in the
company’s market area. Numerous local savings banks, commerciat banks, cooperative banks
and credit unions have one or more offices in the company’s market area. Larger banks
have certain competitive advantages over the company, including the ability to make larger
loans to a single borrower than is possible for the compary . The greater financial
resources of larger banks also allow them to offer a broad range of automated banking
services, to maintain numerous branch offices and tc mount extensive advertising and
promotional campaigns. Competition for loans, investment advisory assets and deposits also
comes from other businesses that provide financial services, including consumer finance
companies, mortgage brokers, private lenders, insurance companies, securities brokerage
firms, instituticnal mutual funds, registered investment advisors and internet based
banks. Advances in, and the increased use of, technology, such as internet banking and
electronic transaction processing, are expected to have a significant impact on the future
competitive landscape confronting financial institutions.




Notwithstanding the substantial competition with which the company is faced, management
believes that the company has established a solid reputation within its market area.
Management also believes that the company has differentiated itself from competitors by
providing a broad range of commercial banking, investment and insurance products through
highly personal and responsive service, based on management's familiarity and
understanding of the banking and other financial service needs of its c<ustomers. The
company’s directors and officers have substantial business and personal ties in the cities
and towns in which the company operates. Management seeks to hire, develop and retain
highly motivated top professionals who understand the communities in which the bank
operates as well as the local banking environment. In addition, the company continually
examines new products and technologies in order to maintain a highly competitive mix of
offerings and to target product lines to customer needs.

Management actively seeks to strengthen its position, by capitalizing on the market
opportunities, and the ccntinued pursuit of strategic growth within existing and into
neighboring markets.

See also "Supervision and Regulation” below, and “Risk Factors” contained in Item 1A, for
further discussion on how new laws and regulations and other factors may effect the
company's competitive positien, growth and/or profitability.

Lending
General

The company specializes in lending te business entities, non-profit organizations,
professionals and individuals. The company’s primary lending focus is on the development
of high gquality commercial relationships achieved through active business development
efforts, strong community involvement and focused marketing strategies. Loans made by the
company to businesses include commercial mortgage lecans, construction and land development
loans, secured and unsecured commercial loans and lines of credit, and standby letters of
credit. The company also originates equipment lease financing for businesses. Loans made
to individuals include conventional residential mortgage loans, home equity leans,
residential construction loans on primary residences, secured and unsecured personal loans
and lines of credit. The company has not and does not intend to originate mortgage loans
that are considered “sub-prime”.

The company emplcys a seasconed commercial lending staff, with commercial lenders
supporting each branch location. The company has an internal lcan review function that
assesses the compliance of loan originations with the company's internal policies and
underwriting guidelines and monitors the ongoing quality of the loan portfcolio. The
company also contracts with an external loan review company to review lecans in the loan
portfolic on a pre-determined schedule, based on the type, size, rating, and overall rigk
of the loan.

A management loan review committee, consisting of senior lending cfficers and loan review
personnel, is responsible for setting loan policy and procedures, as well as reviewing
loans on the company’s internal "watched asset list" and ¢lassified loan report. The
company has an internal credit review committee, consisting of senior lending officers and
loan review personnel. The committee generally meets three times per meonth, or on an as
needed basis, to review loan reguests related te borrowing relationships of certain
levels, as well as other borrower relationships recommended for discussion by committee
members.




The company's executive committee of the board of directors also approves loan
relationships exceeding certain prescribed limits. A loan committee, consisting of five
outside members of the board of directors, and two executive officers who are alsc members
of the board of directors, reviews current portfolio statistics, new credits, construction
loan reviews, watched assets, loan delinquencies, and allowance for lcan losses, as well
as current market conditions and issues relating to the constructien and real estate
development industry. The board’s loan committee is also responsible for approval of
charge-offs recommended by management. Approved charge-cffs are forwarded to the full
board for ratification.

At December 31, 2007, the bank’'s statutory lending limit, based on 20% of capital, to any
individual borrower was approximately $19.4 million, subject to certain exceptions
provided under applicable law.

Commercial Real Estate, Commercial and Construction Loans

Commercial real estate loans include 1locans secured by commercial and industrial
properties, apartment buildirgs, office or mixed-use facilities, strip shopping malls, or
other commercial property and are generally gquaranteed by the principals of the borrower.
Commercial real estate loans generally have repayment periods of approximately fifteen to
twenty years. Variable interest rate loans have a variety of adjustment terms and indices,
and are generally fixed for the first one to five years before periodic rate adjustment
begins.

Commercial and industrial loans include seasonal revolving lines of credit, working
capital loans, equipment financing (including equipment leases), 1loans partially
guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (SBA), loans under varicus programs issued
in conjunction with the Massachusetts Development and Finance Agency and other agencies.
These commercial and industrial credits may be unsecured loans and lines to financially
strong borrowers, secured in whole or in part by real estate unrelated to the principal
purpose of the loan or secured by inventories, equipment, or receivables, and are
generally guaranteed by the principals of the borrower. Variable rate loans in this
pertfelio have interest rates that are periodically adjusted, generally with fixed initial
periods of one to three years. Commercial and industrial loans have average repayment
pericds of one to seven years.

Commercial construction loans include the development of residential housing and
condominium projects, the development of commercial and industrial use property and loansg
for the purchase and improvement of raw land and are secured in whole or in part by the
underlying real estate collateral and are generally guaranteed by the principals of the
borrower, The company’'s construction lenders work to cultivate leng-term relationships
with established developers. The company limits the amount of financing provided to any
single developer for the construction of properties built on a speculative basis. Funds
for construction projects are disbursed as pre-specified stages of congtruction are
completed. Regular site inspections are performed, either by experienced construction
lenders on staff or by independent outside inspection companies, at each construction
phase, prior to advancing additional funds. Commercial construction loans generally have
terms of one to three years.

From time to time the company participates in the financing of certain large commercial

projects with other banks. In some cases the company may act as the lead lender,
originating and servicing the loans, but participating out a portion of the funding to
other banks. In other cases the company may participate in loans originated by other

institutions. In each case the participating bank funds a percentage o¢f the loan
commitment and takes on the related risk. The balances participated out to other
institutions are not carried as assets on the company’'s financial statements. Loans
originated by other banks in which the company is the participating institution are
carried in the loan portfolio at the company’s pro rata share of ownership., The company
performs an independent credit analysis of each commitment prior to participation in the
loan.




Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the company to guarantee

the performance by a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing
letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending lean facilities to
customers. If the letter of credit is drawn upon the company creates a loan for the

customer, generally a commercial loan. with the same criteria associated with similar
commercial lcans.

Residential Loans

The company originates conventional wmortgage loans on one-to-four family residential
properties. These properties may serve as the borrower’s primary residence, vacation homes
or investment properties. Loan to value limits vary from 80% for adjustable rate and
multi-family owner occupied properties, up to 100% for fixed rate loans on single family
owner occupied properties, with mortgage insurance coverage required for loan-to-value
ratios greater than 80% based on program parameters. In additicn the company provides
financing for the construction of owner occupied primary residences. Residential mortgage
loans made by the company have terms of up tc 30 years at either fixed or adjustable rates
of interest. Fixed and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans are generally
originated using secondary market underwriting and documentation standards.

Depending on the current interest rate environment, management projections of future
interest rates and the overall asset-liability management program of the company,
management may elect to sell theose fixed and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans
which are eligible for sale in the secondary market, or hold this residential loan
production for the company’s portfclio. The company generally does not pool mortgage loans
for sale, but instead seils the lecans on an individual basis. The company may retain or
sell the servicing when selling the lcans. All loans sold are currently scold without
recourse.

Home Equity Loans and Lines of Credit

Home equity loans are originated for the company’s portfoclic for one-to-four family
residential properties with maximum original loan to wvalues ratios generally up to 80% of
the assessed or appraised value of the property securing the loan. Home equity loan
payments consist of monthly principal and interest based on amortization ranging from
three to fifteen years. The rates may initially be fixed for a one year pericd and
reviewed annually thereafter, or fixed for a three year pericd and reviewed every three
years thereafter, or the rate may be fixed for three to fifteen years.

Home equity lines are originated for the company’s pertfclio for one-to-four family
residential properties with maximum original lean to value ratios generally up to BO¥ of
the assessed or appraised value of the property securing the loan. Home equity lines
generally have interest rates that adjust monthly based on changes in the Prime rate as
published in the Wall Street Journal. Scome home equity lines may be fixed for a period of
time and then adjusted monthly thereafter. The payment schedule for home equity lines for
the first ten years of the loans are interest only payments. Generally at the end of ten
years the line is frozen to future advances and principal plus interest payments are
collected over a fifteen-year amertization schedule.

Consumer Loans

Consumer loans primarily consist of secured or unsecured personal loans and overdraft
protection lines on checking accounts extended to individual customers.

The company's residential, home equity and consumer lending activities are supported by
the branch relationship managers, a centralized walk-in mortgage center, and an internet
based “eMortgage" center.




Credit Risk and Allowance for Loan Losses

Information regarding the company’s credit risk and allowance for loan losses is contained
in Item 7, "“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations”, under the headings “Credit Risk/Asset Quality” and “Allowance for Loan
Logses”, contained in the section “Financial Condition”, and under the heading “Allowance
for Loan Losses", which is contained in the “Critical Accounting Estimates” section of
Item 7.

Investment Activities

The company’s investment activity is an integral part of the overall asset-liability
management program of the company. The investment function provides readily available
funds to support loan growth as well as to meet withdrawals and maturities of deposits and
attempts to provide maximum return consistent with liquidity constraints and general
prudence, including diversification and safety of investments.

The securities in which the company may invest are limited by regulation. In addition,
the company has an internal investment policy which restricts fixed income investments to
the following categories: U.S. treasury securities, federal agency cobligations

{obligations issued by government sponsored enterprises that are not backed by the fuil
faith and credit of the United States government), mortgage-backed securities ("MBS's"),
including collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMO’‘s"), and state, county and municipal

securities ("Municipals"), all of which must be considered investment grade by a
recognized rating service. The company is alsoc required to purchase Federal Home Loan Bank
of Boston ("FHLB") stock in association with the bank’s outstanding advances from the
FHLB; this stock is classified as a restricted investment and carried at cost. The

company may alsc invest in certificates of deposit and, within prescribed regulatory
limits, in publicly traded equity securities and registered mutual funds. The investment
policy also 1limits the categories within the investment portfolio to particular
percentages of the total portfolic and to certain percentages of total assets and/or
capital. The effect of changes in interest rates, principal payments and market values are
considered when purchasing securities. The company has not purchased sub-prime mortgage-
backed securities.

The short-term investments classified as cash equivalents may be comprised of short-term
U.8. Agency Discount Notes, money market mutual funds and overnight or short-term federal
funds sold. Short-term investments not carried as cash equivalents would be classified as
“other short-term investments”.

Investment transaction summaries, portfolio allocations and projected cash flows are
prepared menthly and presented to the company’s Asset-Liability Committee of the board of
directors (“ALCQ”) on a periodic basis. ALCO is comprised of five outside directors and
three executive officers of the company who are alsc directors, with various management
liaisons. In addition, several directors who are not on the committee rotate in on a
regular basis. ALCO regularly reviews the composition and key risk characteristics of the
company’'s investment portfolio, including effective dQuration, cash flow, market wvalue at
risk and asset class concentration. Credit risk inherent in the portfolio is closely
monitored by management and presented at least annually to ALCO. ALCO also approves the
company’'s ongoing investment strategy and management updates the committee at each
meeting.

Scurce of Funds
Deposits

Deposits have traditionally been the principal source of the company's funds. The company
offers commercial checking, business and municipal savings accounts, money wmarket and
business sweep accounts, and escrow management accounts, as well as checking and
Simplified Employee Pension (“SEP”) accounts to employees of our business customers. The
company also offers a broad selection of deposit products to the general public, including
personal interest checking accounts ("PIC"), savings accounts, money market accounts,
individual retirement accounts ("IRA") and certificates of deposit (“CDs"}.




The company utilizes third party meoney market mutual funds for sweep accounts. Management
believes that commercial customers benefit from enhanced interest rate options on sweep
accounts, while retaining a conservative investment option of the highest guality and
safety. The balances transferred into mutual funds do not represent obligations of the
company .

Terms on certificates of deposit range from one week to thirty months. Tn additien, the
company may use brokered certificates of deposit {*brokered CD's”) as an alternative to
borrowing funds to support asset growth in excess of internally generated deposits.
Brokered CD terms generally range from three to twelve months.

Management determines the interest rates offered on deposit accounts based on current and
expected economic conditions, competition, liquidity needs, the wvolatility of existing
deposits, the asset-liability position of the company and the overall objectives of the
company regarding the growth and retention of relationships.

Borrowed Funds

The bank’s membership in the FHLE enables the bank to borrow funds based on the pledge of
qualifying collateral balances to the FHLB, including certain residential loans,
commercial loans and U.S. Government and Agency securities, The company utilizes
borrowings from the FHLE to fund short-term liquidity needs. This facility is an integral
component of the company’'s asset-liability management program.

The company also borrows funds from customers {generally commercial and municipal
customers) by entering into agreements to sell and repurchase investment securities from
the company's portfolio, with terms that may range from one week to six months. These
repurchase agreements represent a cost competitive funding source for the company.
Interest rates paid by the company on these repurchase agreements are based on market

conditiong and the company's need for additional funds at the time of the transaction.
Junior Subordinated Debentures

In March 2000 the company organized Enterprise (MA) Capital Trust I (the "Trust"), a
statutory business trust created under the laws of Delaware, in order to issue §10.5
million of 10.875% trust preferred securities that mature in 2030 and are callable
beginning in 2010. The proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities were used
by the Trust, along with the company’'s 5325 thousand capital contributicon, to acquire
510.8 million in aggregate principal amount of the company’s 10.875% Junior Subordinated
Debentures that mature in 2030 and are callable beginning in 2010.

Pursuant to Financial Interpretation No. 46R, issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in December 2003, the company carries the $10.8 million of Junior Subordinated
Debentures on the company’s financial statements as a liability, with related interest
expense, and the $10.5 million of trust preferred securities issued by the Trust, and the
related non-interest expense, are excluded from the company’s financial statements.

Investment Advisory Group

The company provides a range of investment advisory and management services to
individuals, family groups, businesses, trusts, foundations, non-profit organizations,
endowments and retirement plans. These services include a combination of securities
brokerage services through a third party service arrangement with Commonwealth Financial
Network, a licensed securities brokerage firm, and fee only investment advisory and trust
services for management of equity and fixed income portfolics. Portfolios are managed
based on the individual investment objectives of each client.




The company’s Investment Advisory Group utilizes an open-architecture, “manager of
managers” approach to client investment management. The philosophy is to identify and
hire highly competitive outside mutual fund companies and investment management firms on
behalf of our clients. The company performs a detailed search and due diligence review
based on an objective analysis of each fund's historic returns, management, longevity,
investment style, risk profile, and other criteria. The company identifies and hires the
best service providers and maintains ongoing oversight and monitoring of their
performance. This rigorous due diligence is intended to enable the company to customize
sound investment portfolics that meet each customer's financial objectives and deliver
supericr long-term performance.

Enterprise Insurance Services

Enterprise Insurance Services LLC engages in insurance sales activities through a third
party arrangement with HUB Internaticnal New England, LLC (“HUB”), which is a full service
insurance agency, with offices in Massachusetts and New Hampshire, and is part of HUB
International Limited, which operates throughout the United States and Canada. Enterprise
Insurance Services provides, through HUB, a full array of insurance products including
property and casualty, employee benefits and risk-management sclutions tailored to serve
the specific insurance needs of businesses in a range of industries operating in the
company’'s market area.

On-line Banking

The company uses an in-house turn-key solution from its core banking system vendor for
internet banking services for retail and ceommercial customers. Major on-line banking
capabilities include the following: balance inquiry; internal transfers; loan payments;
bill payments; federal tax payments; placement of stop payments; access to images of

checks paid; and access to prior period account statements. In addition, commercial
customers may take advantage of remote deposit capture service and have the ability to
initiate on-line electronic funds transfers, including ACH originations and wire
transfers.

Company Website

The company currently uses an outside vendor to design, support and host its internet
website. The underlying structure of the site provides for dynamic maintenance of the
information by company personnel. The site provides information on the company and its
services, the ability to submit mortgage loan applications online, as well as providing
the access point to various specified banking services and to various financial management

tools. In addition, the site includes the following major capabilities: career
opportunities; calculators; an ATM/Branch Locator/Map; and investor and corporate
information, which includes a corporate governance page. The corporate governance page

includes the company’'s corporate governance guidelines, code of business conduct and
ethics, and whistleblower protection policy, as well as the charters of the board of
Directors’ audit, compensation and persconnel, and corporate governance/nominating
committees.

The company makes available free of charge, through a link on its web site to itsg SEC
filings, copies of the company’s annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q0 and current reports on Form 8-K, as well as all registration statements that the company
has Lkeen required to file in connection with the issuance of its shares. The company
similarly makes available all insider stock ownership and transaction reports filed with
the SEC by the company’'s executive officers, directors and any 10% stockholders under
Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1534 (Forms 3, 4 and 5). Access to all of
these reports is essentially simultaneous with the SEC's posting of these reports on its
EDGAR system through the SEC website (www.SEC.gov). The company'’'s internet web address is:
EnterpriseBanking.com.




Supervision and Regulation
‘General

Bank holding companies and banks are subject to extensive government regulation through
federal and state statutes and related regulaticns, which are subject to changes that can
significantly affect the way in which financial service corganizations conduct business.

As a general matter, regulation of the banking and financial services industries has
undergone significant changes, some of which have been intended to ease legal and
regulatory restrictions while others have increased regulatory reguirements. For example,
the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the "GLB Act") eased regulatory restrictions on
consolidated companies offering diversified financial services by removing the legal
barriers thatr formerly served to separate the Dbanking, insurance and securities
industries. The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994,
which reduced geographic restrictions on banking organizations by enhancing their ability
to operate cn a nationwide basis, is another example of federal legislation that has
reduced the legal and regulatery burdens on the business activity of banks and their
holding companies.

Many of the more recent changes in law and regulation that have increased banks’ and
financial organizations' regulatory requirements have applied tc operations relevant to
the “war on terrorism” or areas affecting the interests of investors and consumers. For
example the United and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (a/k/a the Patriot Act) added new provisions
to the Bank Secrecy Act that increased anti-money laundering and customer identification
requirements, which are intended to facilitate the prevention, detection and prosecution
of international money laundering and the financing of terrorism.

The passage of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 added additional financial reporting and
certification, accounting, c¢orporate governance and internal contrels requirements to the
company's ongoing federal securities law compliance obligations, which are intended to
enhance corporate accountability and improve the quality of investor information.

The Fair and Accurate Credit Transaction Act (“FACT Act”), which amended the Fair Credit
Reporting Act in 2003, requires banks and other financial firms to take measures intended
to help deter identity theft by develeping appropriate fraud response programs and giving
consumers greater control over their credit data.

The Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act (“Check 217}, which became effective in 2004,
is designed to facilitate the automation of the nation's check-processing system away from
physical transportation of paper checks. The law allows banks to process check

information electronically, and to deliver digital images of the check to banks that
choose to continue to receive paper checks. Check 21 reguires all banks to accept legally
equivalent substitute checks in place of originals and comply with federal regulations
governing the treatment of remotely c¢reated checks and electronic check conversion
transactions.

Recently enacted legislative initiatives at the state level in Massachusetts have also
further addressed data breaches affecting consumer financial information and residential
mortgage lending and foreclosure matters.

Any future increase in the extent of regulation imposed upon the banking or financial
services industries generally could result in the company incurring additional operating
and compliance costs, which in turn could impede profitability.

To the extent that the information in this report under the heading "Supervision and
Regulation" describes statutory or regulatory provisions, it is gqualified 1in its entirety
by reference Lo the particular statutory or regulatory provision so described. Any
changes in applicable laws or regulations may have a material effect on the business and
prospects of the company.
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Regulation of the Holding Company

The company is a registered bank holding company under the federal Bank Holding Company

Act of 1856, as amended (the "Bank Holding Company Act"). The business and operaticns of
the company are subject to the supervision and examinaticon of the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve Board"}. Under applicable state laws,

the company is alsec subject to the supervisory jurisdiction of the Massachusetts
Commissioner of Banks (the “Commissicner”) and, with respect to its New Hampshire branch
operations, the New Hampshire Banking Department.

The Bank Holding Company Act requires prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board of the
acquisiticn by the company of substantially all the assets or more than five percent of
the voting stock of any bank. The Bank Helding Company Act also authorizes the Federal
Reserve Board to determine ({by order cr by regulation} what activities are so closely
related to banking as to be a proper incident of banking, and thus, whether the company,
either directly or indirectly through non-bank subsidiaries, can engage in such
activities. The Bank Holding Company Act prohibits the company and the bank from engaging
in certain tie-in arrangements 1in connection with any extension of credit, sale of
property or furnishing of services. There are alsc restrictions on extensions of credit
and other transacticns between the bank, on the one hand, and the company, or other
affiliates of the bank, on the other hand.

The GLB Act enhanced the authority of banks and their heolding companies t£o engage in non-
banking activities, By electing te become a "financial holding company®, a qualified
parent company o©f a banking institution may engage, directly or through its non-bank
subsidiaries, in any activity that is financial in nature or incidental to such financial
activity or in any other activity that is complimentary to a financial activity and does
not pose a substantial risk to the safety and soundness of depository institutions or the
financial system generally.

A bank holding company will be able to successfully elect to be regulated as a financial
holding company if all of its depository institution subsidiaries meet certain prescribed
standards pertaining to management, capital adequacy and compliance with the federal
Community Reinvestment Act. Financial holding companies remain subject te regulation and
oversight by the Federal Reserve Board. The company believes that the bank, which is the
company's scole depository institution subsidiary, presently satisfies all of the
requirements that must be met to enable the company to successfully elect to become a
financial heolding company. Heowever, the company has no current intention of seeking to
become a financial helding company. Such a course c¢f action may become necessary or
appropriate at some time in the future depending upon the company’s strategic plan.

Regulation of the Bank

As a trust company organized under Chapter 172 of the Massachusetts General Laws, the
deposits of the bank are insured by the Deposit Ingurance Fund of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation {(the “FDIC"), up to the maximum amount provided by law. The bank is
subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Commissioner and the FDIC. The
bank is also subject to certain regulatory requirements of the Federal Reserve Board and,
with respect to its New Hampshire branch ¢perations, the New Hampshire Banking Department.

The regulations of these agencies govern many aspects of the bank’'s business, including
permitted investments, the opening and closing of branches, the amount of loans which can
be made to a single borrower, mergers, appointment and conduct of officers and directors,
capital levels and terms of deposits. The Federal Reserve Board alse requires the bank to
maintain minimum reserves on its deposits. Federal and state regulators can impose
sanctions on the bank and its management if the bank engages in unsafe or unsound
practices or otherwise fails to comply with regulatory standards. Various other federal
and state laws and regulations, such as truth-in-lending and truth-in-savings statutes,
the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Bank Secrecy Act, the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act, the Community Reinvestment Act, Check 21 and the FACT Act, also govern the
bank’s activities and operations.
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Pursuant to the GLB Act, the bank may alsc form, subject to the approvals ©of the
Commissioner and the FDIC, "financial subsidiaries" to engage in any activity that is
financial in nature or incidental to a financial activity. In order to gqualify for the
authority to form a financial subsidiary, the bank would be reguired to satisfy certain
conditions, some of which are substantially similar to those that the company would be
required to satisfy in order to elect to become a financial holding company. The company
believes that the bank would be able to satisfy all of the conditions that would be
required to form a financial subsidiary, although the company has no current intention of
doing so. Such a course of action may become necessary or appropriate at some time in the
future depending upon the company’'s strategic plan.

Depcosit Insurance Assessment

Effective January 1, 2007, the bank became subject to a revised deposit insurance
assesgment system as implemented by the FDIC in accordance with the regquirements of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 (the “Deposit Insurance Reform Act”). Under
the revised system, the deposit insurance assessment rates are determined based upon a
combination of an institution’s financial ratios and supervisory factors. There are four
established risk categories under the assessment rules. Under this deposit insurance
assessment system, even the highest risk-rated (i.e., least risk) banks and thrifts are
subject to some level of assessment payable to the FDIC's Deposit Insurance Fund. In
2007, the bank qualified as a Risk Category I {least risk) and was assessed deposit
insurance premiums, under the revised system, at an annualized rate of 5.2% of the bank’'s
deposit assessment base, as defined by the FDIC. Prior to 2007, under the former FDIC
system for assessing deposit insurance premiums, the bank was not assessed any deposit
insurance premium based on its designation as “well capitalized”.

Under the Deposit Insurance Reform Act, eligible insured depository instituticns, such as
the bank, shared in & cne-time assessment credit pool of approximately $4.7 billion. This
cne-time credit was applied against the institutions’ 2007 deposit insurance assessment,
effectively reducing the amount these instituticns were required to submit as an overall
assessment in 2007. In the case of the company, the cne-time credit of approximately $333
thousand offset approximately 94% of the bank’s deposit insurance assessment for 2007.

In 2008, the company will begin paying the full deposit insurance assessment and
anticipates the bank will again qualify as Risk Category I.

Dividends

Under Massachusetts law, the company’s board of directors 1is generally empowered to pay
dividends on the company’'s capital stock out of its net profits to the extent that the

board of directors considers such payment advisable. Massachusetts banking law also
imposes substantially similar standards upon the payment of dividends by the bank to the
company . The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1%91 ("FDICIA")

also prohibits a bank from paying any dividends on its capital stock in the event that the
pank is in default on the payment of any assessment to the FDIC or if the payment of any
such dividend would otherwise cause the bank to become undercapitalized.

Capital Resources

Capital planning by the company and the bank considers current needs and anticipated
future growth. The primary sources of capital have been the sale of common stock in 1988
and 1589, the issuance of $10.5 million of trust preferred securities in 2000 by the
Trust, retention of earnings less dividends paid since the bank commenced operations,
proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options and proceeds from purchases of share
pursuant to the company’'s dividend reinvestment plan and employee stock purchase plan.




The Company

The Federal Reserve Board has adopted capital adequacy guidelines that generally require
bank holding companies tc maintain total capital eqgual te 8% of total risk-weighted
assets, with at least one-half of that amount (cr 4% of total risk-weighted assets)
consisting of core or Tier 1 capital. Total capital for the company consists of Tier 1
capital and supplementary or Tier 2 capital. Tier 1 capital for the company begins with
common stockholders’ equity and is reduced by certain intangible assets. In addition,
trust preferred securities may compose up to 25% of the company's Tier 1 capital (subject
to certain limitations and with any excess allocable to Tier 2 capital). Supplementary
capital fcor the company is comprised solely of a portion of the allowance for lcan losses.
Assets are adjusted under the risk-based capital guidelines to take intoc account different
levels of credit risk, for example, cash and government securities are placed in a 0% risk
category (requiring no additional capital), most home mortgage loans are placed in a 50%
rigk category, and the bulk of assets that, by their nature in the ordinary course of
business, pose a direct credit risk te a bank holding company, including commercial real
estate loans, commercial business loans and consumer loans, are placed in a 100% risk
category.

In addition to the risk-based capital requirements, the Federal Reserve Board requires
bank holding companies to maintain a minimum "leverage" ratio of- Tier 1 capital to
quarterly average total assets of 4% (3% percent if given the highest regulatory rating
and not experiencing significant growth).

The Bank

The bank is subject to separate capital adequacy requirements of the FDIC, which are
substantially similar to the requirements of the Federal Reserve Board applicable to the
company. However, trust preferred proceeds contributed to the bank from the company are
included in Tier 1 capital of the bank without limitation. The company contributed $10.3
million of proceeds from the sale of these securities to the bank in 2000. Under the FDIC
requirements, the minimum total capital requirement is 8% of total assets and certain off-
balance sheet items, weighted by risk. At least 4% of the total B% ratio must consist of
Tier 1 capital (primarily common equity including retained earnings) and the remainder may
consist of subordinated debt, cumulative preferred stock and a limited amount of loan loss
reserves. At the bank level, as at the company level on a consolidated basis, certain
intangible assets are deducted from Tier 1 capital in calculating regulatory capital
ratios.

Under the applicable FDIC capital requirements, the bank is also required to maintain a

minimum leverage ratio. The ratio is determined by dividing Tier 1 capital by quarterly
average total assets, less intangible assets and other adjustments. FDIC rules require a
minimum of 3% for the highest rated banks. Banks experiencing high growth rates are

expected to maintain capital positions well above minimum levels.

Depository institutions, such as the bank, are also subject to the prompt corrective
action framework for capital adequacy established by FDICIA. Under FDICIA, the federal
banking regulators are required to take prompt supervisory and regulatory actions against

undercapitalized depository institutions. FDICIA establishes five capital categories:
"well capitalized", "adequately capitalized®, "undercapitalized", "significantly
undercapitalized", and "critically undercapitalized". A "well capitalized" institution

has a total capital to total risk-weighted assets ratio of at least 10%, a Tier 1 capital
to total risk-weighted assets ratioc of at least 6%, a leverage ratio of at least 5% and is
not subject to any written order, agreement or directive; an "adequately capitalized®"
institution has a total capital to total risk-weighted assets ratio of at least 8%, a Tier
1 capital to total risk-weighted assets ratic of at least 4%, and a leverage ratio of at
least 4% (3% percent if given the highest regulatcry rating and not experiencing
significant growth), but does not qualify as "well capitalized". An "undercapitalized"
institution fails to meet one of the three minimum capital requirements. A "significantly
undercapitalized” ingtitution has a total capital to total risk-weighted assets ratio of
less than 6%, a Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets ratio of less than 3%, and a
leverage ratio of less than 3%. A "critically undercapitalized" institution has a ratic
of tangible equity to assets of 2%, or less.
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Under certain circumstances, a "well capitalized", v"adequately capitalized" or
'undercapitalized” institution may be required te comply with supervisory actions as if
the institution were in the next lowest category.

Failure to meet applicable minimum capital requirements, including a depository
institution keing classified as less than "adeguately capitalized" within FDICIA's prompt
corrective action framework, may subject a bank holding company or its subsidiary
depository institution(s) to various enforcement acticns, including substantial
restrictions on operations and activities, dividend limitatiens, issuance of a directive
to increase capital and, for a depository institutien, termination of deposit insurance
and the appointment of a conservator or receiver.

Patents, Trademarks, etc.

The company holds a number of registered service marks related to product names and
corporate branding. The company holds no patents, registered trademarks, licenses {other
than licenses required to be obtained from appropriate banking regulatory agencies),
franchises or concessions which are material to its business.

Employees
At December 31, 2007, the company employed 286 full-time eguivalent employees, including
104 officers. None of the company’s employees are presently represented by a union or
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Management believes its employee relations

te be excellent.

Item lA. Risk Factors

An investment in the company's common stock is subject to a variety of risks and
uncertainties. The material risks and uncertainties that management believes affect the
company are described below. These risks and uncertainties are not listed in any
particular order of priority and are not necessarily the only ones facing the company.
Additional risks and uncertainties that management is not aware of or focused on or that
management currently deems immaterial may also impair the company’s business and results
of operations.

This repert is gqualified in its entirety by these risk factors.

If any of the following risks actually occur, the company’'s financial condition and
results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. If this were to happen,
the value of the company’'s common stock could decline significantly, and shareholders
could lose some or all of their investment.

The Company Relies on Dividends From the Bank for Substantially All of its Revenue

The company is a separate and distinct legal entity £from the bank. It receives
substantially all of its revenue from dividends paid by the bank. These dividends are the
principal source of funds used to pay dividends on the ceompany’s common stock and interest
and principal on the company’s subordinated debt. Various federal and state laws and
regulations limit the amount of dividends that the bank may pay to the company. If the
pbank is unable to pay dividends to the company, then the company will be unable to service
debt, pay obligations or pay dividends on the company’'s common stock. The inability to
receive dividends from the bank could have a material adverse effect on the company’s
business, financial condition and results of operaticns.




The Company May Be Impacted By Issues Associated With Sub-prime Mortgages

As previously stated, the company has not and does not intend to originate mortgage loans
that are considered “sub-prime” and the company has not purchased sub-prime mortgage-
backed securities for the company’s investment portfolio. However, what has been called
the “sub-prime mortgage crisis”, referring to the recent dramatic increase in the level of
foreclosures both locally and nationally and the failure of several large national
mortgage brokers, may have far-reaching and as yet unknown long-term consequences in the
financial services industry and the economy in general. The current crisis has been
marked by the collapse of the market for sub-prime mortgage-backed securities, increased
volatility in financial markets, the tightening of c¢redit for both consumers and
businesses, and further weakening of the real estate market. Any long-term c¢ontinuation
of these current trends or possible subsequent effects could weaken the local economy and
negatively impact the company’s financial condition and performance in a variety of ways
even though the company itself has no direct exposure to sub-prime mortgages in either a
lending or investment capacity. Among other potential adverse effects on the company that
could result from the sub-prime mortgage crisis, the company could experience continued
pressure on its net interest margin, deterioration in its asset quality and an increased
level of delinquencies, an increase in the level of allowance for loan losses, decline in
the value of the investment portfolic, and a decline in the market price of the company’s
common stock.

The Company is Subject to Extensive Government Regulation and Supervisieon

The company is subject to extensive federal and state regulation and supervision. Banking
regulations are primarily intended to protect depositors’ funds, federal deposit insurance
funds and the banking system as a whole, not the interests of shareholders. These
regulations affect the company’s lending practices, capital structure, investmernt
practices, dividend policy and growth, among other things. Federal and state gtatutes and
related regulaticns, including tax policy and corporate governance rules, can
significantly affect the way in which bank holding companies, and public companies in
general, conduct business. Changes to federal or state statutes, regulations or
regulatory and tax policies, including changes in interpretation or implementation of
existing statutes, regulations or policies, could affect the company in substantial and
unpredictable ways, including subjecting the company to additional operating and
compliance coste, limiting the types of financial services and products the company may
offer and/or increasing competition from other non-bank providers of financial services.

See the section entitled “Supervision and Regulation” contained in Item 1, “Business”, for
additional information regarding the supervisory and regulatory issues facing the company.

The Company Operates in a Highly Competitive Industry and Market Area

The company faces substantial competition in all areas of its operations from a variety of
different competitors, many of which are larger and have more financial resources than the
company . These competitors include not only naticnal, regional, and other community
banks, but alse variocus types of other non-bank financial institutions, such as credit
unions, mortgage brokers, finance companies, brokerage firms, mutual fund companies,
insurance companies, factoring companies and other financial intermediaries.

See the section entitled “Competition” contained in Item 1, ™“Business”, for additional
information regarding the competitive issues facing the company.




The Company's Profitability Depends Significantly on Economic Conditions in the Company’s
Primary Market Areas

The company’s success depends principally on the general economic conditions of the
primary market areas in which the company operates. The local economic conditions in
these areas have a significant impact on the demand for the company’s products and
services as well as the ability of the company’s customers to repay loans, the value of
the collateral securing loans and the stability of the company’s deposit funding sources.
A significant decline in general economic cenditions, caused by inflation, recession, acts
of terrorism, outbreak of hostilities or other internatiocnal or domestic occurrences,
unemployment, changes in securities markets or other factors could impact these local
economic conditions and, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the company's
financial condition and results of cperations.

The Company is Subject to Interest Rate Risk

The company's earnings and cash flows are largely dependent upon its net interest income,
meaning the difference between interest income earned on interest-earning assets and
interest expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Interest rates are highly
sensitive toc many factors that are beyond the company’'s control. If the interest rates
paid on interest-bearing liabilities increase at a faster rate than the interest rates:
received on loans and other investments, the company’'s net interest income, and therefore
earnings, could be adversely affected. Earnings could also be adversely affected if the
interest rates received on loans and other investments fall more quickly than the interest
rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities.

See Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk”, for further
discussions related to the company’s management of interest rate risk.

The Company is Subject to Lending Risk

There are inherent risks associated with the company’s lending activities. These risks
include, among other things, the impact of changes in interest rates and changes in the
economic conditions in the market areas in which the company operates. Increases in

interest rates and/or weakening economic conditions could adversely impact the ability of
borrowers to repay outstanding loans or the value of the collateral securing these loans.

The company’'s loan portfelio consists primarily of commercial real estate, commercial and
industrial and construction loans. These types of loans are generally viewed as having
more risk of default than owner occupied residential real estate loans or consumer loans.
These types of loans are also typically larger than residential real estate loans and
consumer loans. The underlying commercial real estate values, the actual costs necessary
to couplete a construction project, or customer cash flow and payment expectations on such
loans can be more easily influenced by adverse conditions in the related industries, the
real estate market or in the economy in general. Any significant deterioration in the
company’s commercial loan portfolio or underlying collateral wvalues could have a material
adverse effect on the company's financial condition and results of operations.

See the discussions contained in Item 7, “Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, under the headings “Loans” and “Credit
Risk/Asset Quality” included in the section entitled “Pinancial Condition”, for further

information regarding the company’s commercial loan portfolio and credit risk.




The Company‘s Allowance for Loan Losses May Be Insufficient

The company maintains an allowance for loan losses, which is established through a
provision for leoan losses charged to earnings that represents management’s estimate of
probable losses that have been incurred within the existing portfeolio of loans. The
determination of the appropriate level of the allowance for leoan losses inherently
involves a high degree of subjectivity and requires the company to make significant
estimates of current credit risks and future trends, all of which may undergo material
changes. In additicen, bank regulatory agencies periodically review the company‘s
allowance for loan losses and may require an increase in the provision for loan losses or
the recognition of further loan charge-offs, based on judgments different than those of
the company’s management. Any increases in the allowance for loan losses will result in a
decrease in net income and, depending upon the magnitude of the changes, could have a
material adverse effect on the company’'s financial condition and results of operations.

See the discussions contained in Item 7, “Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, under the headings “Credit Risk/Asset
Quality” and “Allowance for Loan Losses”, included in the section entitled *"Financial
Condition”, and under the heading “Allowance for Loan Lesses”, which is contained in the
“Critical Accounting Estimates” section of Item 7, for further information regarding the
process by which the company determines the appropriate level of its allowance for loan
losses.

The Ceompany’s Investment Portfolio May Incur Losses

There are inherent risks associated with the company’s investment activities. These risks
include the impact of changes in interest rates, weakness in the real estate or other
industries, adverse changes in regicnal or naticnal eccnomic conditions, and general
turbulence in domestic and foreign financial markets, among other things. These
conditions could adversely impact the fair market value and the ultimate collectability of
the company’s investments. Should an investment be deemed *other than temporarily
impaired”, the company would be required to write-down the carrying value of the
investment through earnings. 8Such write-down(s) may have a material adverse effect on the
company’s financial condition and results of operations.

Increased Reliance on Borrowings and Brokered CD’s as Sources of Funds Could Adversely
Affect the Company’s Profitability

The company has traditionally cbtained funds principally through deposits and borrowings.
As a general matter, deposits are a lower cost source of funds than external funding
(brokered CD’s or borrowings), because interest rates paid for deposits are typically less
than interest rates charged for external funding. 1If, as result of competitive pressures,
market interest rates, general economic cenditions or other events, the balance of the
company’s deposits decreases relative to the company’s overall banking operations, the
company may have to rely more heavily on external funding in the future. Any such
increased reliance on external funding could have a negative impact on the company’s net
interest income and, consequently, on its results of operations and financial condition.

The Company Continually Encounters Technological Change

The banking industry is continually undergoing rapid technological change with frequent

introductions of new technology-driven prcducts and services. The effective use of
technology increases efficiency and enables financial instituticns toc better serve
customers and to reduce costs. Many o©f the company’'s competitors have substantially
greater resources to invest in technological improvements. Failure to successfully keep

pace with technological change affecting the banking industry could have a material
adverse effect on the company’s business and, in turn, the company's financial condition
and results of operations.




The Company’s Information Systems May Experience an Interruption or Breach in Security

The company relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct its
business. The occurrence of any failures, interruptions or security breaches of the
company’s information systems could interrupt the company's ability to conduct business,
process transactions, damage the company’s reputation, result in a loss of customer
business, expose customer’s personal information to unauthorized parties, gubject the
company to additional regulatory scrutiny, and expose the company to civil litigation and
possible financial liability, any of which could have a material adverse effect on the
company’'s financial condition and results of operations.

See the discussion under the heading “Opportunities and Risks” included in the section
entitled “Overview”, which is contained in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, for further information regarding the
company’'s information security and techneology practices.

The Company Relies on Independent Service Providers

The company relies on independent firms to provide key services necessary to conducting
its business. These services include, but are not limited to: electrconic funds delivery
networks; electronic banking services; investment advisory, management and custodial
services; correspondent banking services; information security assessments; and loan
underwriting and review services. The occurrence of any failures, interruptions or
security breaches of the independent firms’ systems or in their delivery of services,
could result in a loss of customer business, expose customer’s perscnal information to
unauthorized parties, damage the company's reputation and expose the company to civil
litigation and possible financial liability, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on the company’s financial condition and results of operaticns.

The Company’s Controls and Procedures May Fail or Be Circumvented

Management regularly reviews and updates the company's internal controls over financial
reporting, disclosure controls and procedures, and corporate governance policies and
procedures. Any system of controls, however well designed and operated, is based in part
on certain assumptions and can provide only reascnable, not absolute, assurances that the
objectives of the system are met. Any failure or circumvention of the company’s contreols
and procedures or failure to comply with regulations related to controls and procedures
could have a material adverse effect on the company’s business, results of operatiens and
financial condition.

Slower than Expected Growth in New Branches and New Products and Services Could Adversely
Affect the Company’s Profitability

The company has placed a strategic emphasis on expanding the bank’s branch network and
products and service offerings. Executing this strategy carries risks of slower than
anticipated growth both in new branches and new products and services. New branches and
new products and services require a significant investment of both financial and personnel
resources. Lower than expected loan and deposit growth in new branches and/cr lower than
expected fee or other income from new products and services cculd decrease anticipated
revenues and net income generated by such investments. Opening new branches and
introducing new products and services could also divert resources from current core
operations and thereby further adversely affect the company’s growth and profitability.

Growth Strategies Invelving Acquisiticns Could Adversely Affect the Company’s
Profitability

The company may in the future explore growth opportunities through acquisition of other
banks, financial services companies or lines of their business. BAny future acquisition
could adversely affect the company's profitability based on management’'s ability te
successfully complete the acquisiticn and integrate the acquired business.
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The Company May Not be Able to Attract and Retain Key Personnel

The company'’s success depends, in large part, on its ability to attract and retain key
personnel. Competition for the best people in most activities engaged in by the company
can be intense and the c¢ompany may not be able to hire or retain the key personnel that it
depends upon for success. The unexpected loss of services of one or more of the company’s
key personnel could have a material adverse impact on the company’s business because of
their skills, knowledge of the company’s market, years of industry experience and the
difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel.

Directors and Executive Officers Own a Significant Portion of Common Stock

The company’s directors and executive officers as a group beneficially own approximately
28% of the company’s ocutstanding common stock as of December 31, 2007. As a result of this
combined ownership interest, the directors and executive officers have the ability, if
they vote their shares in a like manner, to significantly influence the outcome of all
matters submitted to shareholders for approval, including the election of directors.

Shareholder Dilution May Occur if Additional Stock is Issued in the Future

If the company’s board of directors should determine in the future that there is a need to
cbtain additional capital through the issuance of additional shares of the company’s
common stock or gecurities convertible into shares of common stock, such issuances could
result in dilution to existing shareholders’ ownership interest. Similarly, if the board
of directors decides to grant additional restricted stock shares or options for the
purchase of shares of common stock, the issuance of such additional restricted stock
shares and/or the issuance of additional shares upon the exercise of such options may
expose shareholders to dilution.

The Trading Volume in the Company’s Common Stock is Less Than That of Larger Companies

Although the company’s common stock is listed for trading on the NASDAQ Global Market, the
trading wvolume in the company’'s common stock is subgstantially less than that of larger
companies. Given the lower trading wvolume of the company's common stock, significant
purchases or sales of the company’'s common stock, or the expectation of such purchases or
sales, could cause significant swings up or down in the company’s stock price.

The Market Price of the Company’s Common Stock May be Affected by General Industry Issues

The banking industry may be more affected than other industries by certain economic,
credit or information security issues. Although the company itself may or may not be
directly impacted by such issues, the company’s stock price may swing up or down due to
the influence, both real and perceived, of these issues on the banking industry in
general.

The Company's Articles Of Organization, By-Laws and Shareholders Rights Plan as Well as
Certain Banking Laws May Have an Anti-Takecover Effect

Provisions of the company’s articles of organization and by-laws, its shareheclders rights

plan and certain federal and state bkanking laws, including regulatery approval
requirements, could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire the company, even
if doing so would be perceived to be beneficial to the company’s shareholders. The

combination of these provisions effectively inhibits a non-negotiated merger or other
business combination, which, in turn, could adversely affect the market price of the
company’s common stock.

Additional Factors Described Elsewhere in This Report

In addition to the factors listed above in this section, additional important factors that
could adversely affect the results of the company’'s future operations are described below
under the heading “Special Note Regarding Forward-lLocking Statements” contained in Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Cperations.”

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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Item 2. Properties

The company conducts its business from its main office and operational suppert and lending
offices in Lowell, Massachusetts. The company currently has fourteen full service branch
banking offices serving the Merrimack Valley and North Central regions of Massachusetts
and South Central New Hampshire, with two additional locations in the planning or
construction phase. The company is obligated under wvarious non-cancelable operating
leases, most of which provide for periodic adjustments. The company believes that all its
facilities are well maintained and suitable for the purpose for which they are used.

The following table sets forth general information related to facilities owned or used by
the company as of December 31, 2007. All locations are in Massachusetts unless otherwise
neted.

OWNED CR
BRANCH LOCATION LEASED
Andover
6-8 High Street. ... . ..ttt e Leased
Billerica
674 BOSEON ROAd. .. v v i it it i it et e e e s Owned
Chelmsford
20 Drum Hill ROAO. .ttt vt ottt et e e e ittt ittt aineans Owned
185 Littleton Road. .. ... ..ttt na ittt anaesennns Owned
Dracut
1168 Lakeview AvenuUe. .. .. .. ... ietttanonenrarnnnraesssns Leased
Fitchburg
420 John Fitch Highway....... oot iianannnnans Leased
Leominster
4 Central Street e Leased
Lowell
430-434 Gorham SEreel . .. it i s s e e Leased
222 Merrimack Street (Maln Office) ... ... . Leased
North Billerica
223 BOSLON ROAA. it ittt e e i it e et e e e Owned
Salem, NH
130 Main SEreel ...ttt it ettt s st e et Leased
Tewksbury
810 Andover Streel . ... v ittt i it et Leased
1120 Main SErBEE . vttt ettt e ot m e s e e e e e Leased
Westford
237 Littleton ROAG. . u v e i oot e it e et et i it a i Owned
OPERATION/LENDING OFFICES
Lowell
170 Merrimack Streetd . e Owned
21-27 Palmer Street ™ ... e e Owned
PLANNED BRANCH LOCATION
Methuen
255 Broadway STreetl. ..ttt e e Owned
Derry, NH'
47 Crystal AVeNUE. . it i ve sttt s e anaae s Leased
(1) The company has the option to purchase this facility on the last day of the basic term or at any time
during any extended term at the price of $550 thousand as adjusted for increases in the preoducer’s price
index.
{2) The company purchased these facilities, which had formerly been leased, in September 2007.
(3 The company entered into this lease c<n January 1, 2008.

Mote: In addition to the above properties, through August 2007 the company leased a facility at 63 Park St in
Andover. This temporary location housed the Andover branch prior to the opening of the permanent 6-8 High St.
location in December, 2006. The lease expired in August 2007 and was not renewed.

See note 4, “Premises and Equipment” and note 12, “Related Party Transactions” to the
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 below, for further information regarding the
company’'s lease cbligations and the 2007 purchase of the operation/lending offices listed
above, respectively.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The company is involved in various legal proceedings incidental to its business.
Management does not believe resolution of any present 1litigation will have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the company.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended
December 31, 2007.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Market for Common Stock

In February 2005, the company’s shares began trading on the NASDAQ National Market (now
the NASDAQ Global Market) under the trading symbol “EBTC”. Prior to that date, there was
no active trading market for the company’s common stock, although shares were traded
periodically on a privately negotiated basis. The company cannot state with certainty the
sales price at which such privately negotiated transactions occurred. The feollowing table
sets forth sales volume and price information, to the best of management’s knowledge, for
the common stock of the company for the periods indicated.

Trading $hare Price Share Price
Fiscal Year Volume High Low
2007:
4" Quarter 72,061 § 14.89 S 12.00
3™ Quarter 82,731 16.00 12.42
2™ Quarter 142,138 16,39 15.06
1% Quarter 115,074 16.84 15.17
2006:
4*® Quarter 114,460 $ 16.99 § 15.25
3" Quarter 68,485 21.00 15.10
2" Quarter 97,886 17.82 15.10
1%° Quarter 119,230 17.31 15.26

Ag of March 10, 2008, there were 721 registered shareholders cof the company’s common stock
and 7,955,011 shares of the company’s common stock outstanding.

On June 30, 2006, the company issued 3,842,015 shares in a two-for-one stock split paid in
the form of a stock dividend. All share and per share amounts have been retrcactively
adjusted to reflect the stock dividend for all periods presented.

Dividends

In 2007, quarterly dividends of $0.08 per share were paid in March, June, September and
December. Total 2007 dividends of 50.32 per share represented an increase of 14% compared
to total dividends of $0.28 also paid on a quarterly basis in 2006.

The c¢ompany maintains a dividend reinvestment plan (the "“DRP"). The DRP enables
stockheclders, at their discretion, to elect to reinvest dividends paid on their shares of
the company’s common stock by purchasing additional shares of common stock from the
company at a purchase price equal to fair market value. Shareholders utilized the DRP to
reinvest $1.1 million, of the $2.5 million dividends paid by the company in 2007, into
70,675 shares of the company’s common stock.
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On January 15, 2008, the company announced a quarterly dividend of $0.09, paid on March 3,
2008 to shareholders of record as of February 11, 2008. On an annualized basis, this
quarterly dividend represents a 12.5% increase over the 2007 dividend rate.

As the principal asset of the company, the bank currently provides the cnly source of cash
for the payment of dividends by the company. Under Massachusetts law, frust companies
such as the bank may pay dividends only out of "net profits" and only to the extent that
such payments will not impair the bank’s capital stock. Any dividend payment that would
exceed the total of the bank’s net profits for the current year plus its retained net
profits of the preceding two years would require the Commissioner’s approval. FDICIA also
prohibits a bank from paying any dividends on its capital stock if the bank is in default
on the payment of any assessment to the FDIC or if the payment of dividends would
otherwise cause the bank to become undercapitalized. These restrictions on the ability of
the bank to pay dividends to the company may restrict the ability of the company to pay
dividends to the helders of its common stock.

The statutory term "net profits" essentially equates with the accounting term “net income”
and is defined under the Massachusetts banking statutes to mean the remainder of all
earnings from current operaticns plus actual recoveries cn loans and investments and other
assets after deducting from such total all current operating expenses, actual losses,
accrued dividends on any preferred stock and all federal and state taxes.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2007 with respect to the
company’s Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as
amended, which together constitute all of the company’s existing equity compensation plans
that have been previcusly approved by the company’'s stockholders. The company dces not
have any existing equity compensation plans, including any existing individual equity
compensation arrangements, which have not been previously approved by the company’s
stockholders.

Number of Securities
remaining available for

Number of Securities future issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation plans
exercise of exercise price of (excluding securities
outstanding options, outstanding options, reflected in second column
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights from left)
Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders 671,418 513.89 329,168
Equity compensation
plans not appreoved
by security holders -0- -0- -0-
TOTAL 671,418 $13.89 329,168

22




Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total return (which assumes the reinvestment
of all dividends) on the company’s common stock with the cumulative total return reflected

by a broad based equity market index and an appropriate published industry index. This
graph shows the changes over the five-year period ended on December 31, 2007 in the value
of %100 invested in (i) the company’s common stock, (ii) the Standard & Poors 500 Index

and (iii) the NASDAQ Bank Index. As of February 14, 2005, the company’s shares began
trading on the NASDAQ National Market (now the NASDAQ Global Market) under the trading
symbol “EBTC”. Prior to February 14, 2005, there was no active trading market for the
company’s common stock, although shares were traded pericdically con a privately negotiated
basis. For each year prior to 2005 shown on the graph, the increase in the value of the
company’s common stock is based on the actual prices known to the company at which shares
of the common stock were traded as of the most recent date pricor to December 31 of each of
these earlier periods. For purposes of the graph, the reinvestment of dividends paid prior
te 2005 is based upon the annual valuation analysis of the company’s common stock that was
formerly undertaken in the years prior to the company’s listing on the NASDAQ National
Market pursuant to the company’s administration of its dividend reinvestment plan.
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Sales of Unregistered Securities and Repurchases of Shares

The company has not sold any equity securities that were not registered under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the year ended December 31, 2007. Neither the
company nor any “affiliated purchaser” (as defined in the SEC’'s Rule 10b-18(a) (3)) has
repurchased any of the company’'s outstanding shares, nor caused any such shares to be
repurchased on its behalf, during the fiscal gquarter ended December 31, 2007.




Item 6. Selected Financial Data

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
EARNINGS DATA
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision
for lcan losses
Non-interest income

Net gains (losses) on sales of
investment securities

Non-interest expense

Year Ended December 31,

Income before income taxes

Inceme tax expense

Net income

COMMON SHARE DATA

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Book value per share at year end

Dividends paid per share

Basic weighted average shares
cutstanding

Diluted weighted average shares
cutstanding

YEAR END BALAHNCE SHEET AND OTHER DATA
Total assets

Loans serviced for others

Investment assets under management

Total assets under management

Total leoans

Allowance for lcan losses
Investment securities at fair value
Total short-term investments
Deposits

Borrowed funds

Junior subordinated debentures
Total stockholders’ equity
RATIOS

Return on average total assets

Return on average stockholders' equity

Allowance for loan losses to total loans
Stockholders'
Dividend payout ratioc

equity to total assets

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$ 40,679 $ 41,560 § 38,102 32,120 3 28,352
1,000 1,259 1,135 1,650 1,075
39,679 40, 301 36,967 30,470 27,277
8,453 7,020 6,244 6,071 6,580
1,655 (204} 191 306 2,150
34,844 32,540 30,235 25,687 23,342
14,943 14,577 13,167 11,760 12,665
5,045 5,343 4,753 4,253 5,720
$ 9,898 $ 9,234 8,414 7,507 § 6,945
$ 1.27 § 1.21 § 1.13 1.03 ¢ 0.97
1.25 1.18 1.09 0.99 0.94
11.00 9.98 8.93 8.36 7.60
$ 0.320 s 0.280 $ 0.240 0.215 % 0.190
7,819,180 7,661,178 7,468,498 7,294,760 7,131,504
7,913,006 1,821,297 7,690,526 7,613,196 7,424,710
$ 1,057,668 % 879,259 $ 918,477 848,171 § 751,545
20,826 21,658 22,938 35,0867 27,474
573, 608 502,058 424,953 363,250 375,297
$ 1,652,100 § 1,502,937 $ 1,366,368 1,246,488 35 1,154,316
$ 833,813 $ 761,113 3 699,726 570,459 $ 488,839
13,545 12,940 12,050 10,823 9,986
145,517 131,540 156,521 187,601 196,308
7,788 15,304 5,431 40,290 14,000
868,786 867,522 775,387 768,644 660,824
81,429 15,105 58,639 3,651 21,424
10,825 10,825 10,825 10,825 10,825
87,012 77,043 67,830 61, 684 54,750
0.99% 0.98% 0.97% 0.95% 0.5%6%
12.11% 12.89% 13.10% 12.99% 13.52%
1.62% 1.70% 1.72% 1.91% 2.04%
8.23% 7.87% 7.39% 7.27% 7.28%
25.20% 23.14% 21.24% 20.87% 19.59%



Item 7. Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Cperations

Management's discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the company’s
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, contained in Item 8, the information
contained in the description of the company’'s business in Item 1 and other financial and
statistical information contained in this annual report.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report containg certain “forward-lcoking statements” within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including statements concerning plans,
objectives, future events or performance and assumptions and other statements that are
other than statements of historical fact. Forward-locking statements may be identified by
reference to a future period or periocds or by use of forward-looking terminology such as
wanticipates”, “believes”, “expects”, "intends”, “may”, “plans”, ‘“pursue”, *“views” and
similar terms or expressions. Various statements contained in Item 1 - “Business”, Item 7
- “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operaticns”
and Item 7A - “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk,” including, but
not limited to, statements related to management's views on the banking environment and
the economy, competition and market expansion opportunities, the interest <zrate
environment, credit risk and the level of future non-performing assets and charge-offs,
potential asset and deposit growth, future non-interest expenditures and non-interest
income growth, and borrowing capacity are forward-locking statements. The company wishes
to caution readers that such forward-looking statements reflect numerous assumptions and
involve a number of risks and uncertainties that may adversely affect the company’s future
results. The following important factors, among others, could cause the company’s results
for subsequent periods to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking
statement made herein: {i) changes in interest rates could negatively impact net interest
income; (ii) c¢hanges in the business cycle and downturns in the local, regional or
national economies, including deterioration in the 1local real estate market, could
negatively impact credit and/or asset quality and result in credit losses and increases in
the company's reserve for loan losses; ({iii) changes in consumer spending could negatively
impact the company’s credit quality and financial results; (iv] increasing competition
from larger regional and out-of-state banking organizations as well as non-bank providers
of varicus financial services could adversely affect the company's competitive position
within its market area and reduce demand for the company’s products and services; (v)
deterioration of securities markets could adversely affect the value or credit quality of
the company’'s assetsg and the availability of funding sources necessary to meet the
company’s ligquidity needs; (vi) changes in techneclegy could adversely impact the company’s
operations and increase technology-related expenditures; (vii) increases in employee
compensation and benefit expenses could adversely affect the company’s financial results;
{viii) changes in laws and regulations that apply to the company's business and operations
could increase the company's regulatory compliance costs and adversely affect the
company’s business environment, operations and financial results; ({ix) changes in
accounting standards, policies and practices, as may be adopted or established by the
regulatory agencies, the Financial Accounting Standards Board or the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board could negatively impact the company’'s financial results; and
(x) some or all of the risks and uncertainties described above in Item 1A could be
realized, which could have a material adverse effect on the company's business, financial
condition and results of operation. Therefore, the company cautions readers not to place
undue reliance on any such forward-looking information and statements.




Critical Accounting Estimates

The company's significant accounting policies are described in note 1, “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies”, to the consolidated financial statements contained in
Item 8. In applying these accounting policies, management is required to exercise
judgment in determining many of the methodologies, assumptions and estimates to be
utilized. Certain of the critical accounting estimates are more dependent on such
judgment and in some cases may contribute to wvolatility in the company’'s reported
financial performance should the assumptions and estimates used change over time due to
changes in circumstances. The two most significant areas in which management applies
critical assumptions and estimates include the areas described further below.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of credit losses inherent in the loan
portfolio. The company’'s allowance is accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 114, as
amended by SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan-Income
Recognition and Disclosures”, and SFAS N¢. S, ™“Accocunting for Contingencies®. The
allowance for lecan losses 1is established through a provision for loan losses, a direct
charge to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management
believes that the collectability of the loan principal is unlikely. Recoveries on loans
previously charged off are credited to the allowance. The company maintains the allowance
at a level that it deems adeguate to absorb all reascnably anticipated losses from
specifically known and other credit risks associated with the portfolio.

The company uses a systematic process to measure the amount of estimated locan loss
exposure inherent in the portfolio for purposes of establishing a gufficient allowance for
loan losses. The methodeclogy makes use of specific reserves for 1oans individually
evaluated and deemed impaired and general reserves for larger groups of homogenecus loans
which rely on a combination of qualitative and quantitative factors that could have an
impact on the credit quality of the portfoclio.

Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses involves a high degree of
management judgment. The adequacy of the allowance for loan 1losses is reviewed and
evaluated on a regular basis by an internal management committee, a sub-committee of the
board of directors and the full board itself.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb reasonably
anticipated losses from specifically known and other credit risks associated with the loan
portfolio as of the balance sheet dates. While management uses available information to
recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance may be necessary. In
addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process,
periodically review the company's allowance for loan losses, Such agencies may require
the company to recognize additions to the allowance based on Jjudgments different from
those of management .

Management's assessment of the adegquacy of the allowance for lcan losses is contained
under the headings "Credit Risk/Asset Quality” and “Allowance for Lecan Losses”, which are
contained in the “Financial Condition” section of this Item 7.

Impairment Review of Goodwill and Cther Intangible Assets

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the company does not amortize
goodwill and instead, at least annually, evaluates whether the carrying value of goodwill
has become impaired. Impairment of the goodwill occurs when the estimated fair value of
the company is less than its recorded value. A determination that gecodwill has become
impaired results in immediate write-down of goodwill to its determined value with a
resulting charge to operations.

26




The annual impairment test is a two-step process used to identify potential goodwill
impairment and measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized, 1if any.
The first step of the goodwill impairment test, used to identify potential impairment,
compares the fair wvalue of the reporting unit (in this case, the company} with its
carrying amount, or the book value of the reporting unit, including goodwill. If the fair
value of the reporting unit equals or exceeds its book value, goodwill is considered not
impaired, and the second step of the impairment test is unnecessary. The second step, if
necessary, measures the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized. The
reporting unit must determine fair wvalues for all assets and liabilities, excluding
goodwill. The net of the assigned fair value of assets and liabilities is then compared
to the book wvalue of the reporting unit, and any excess book value becomes the implied
fair wvalue of goodwill. If the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds the newly
calculated implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in the
amount required to write down the goodwill to the implied fair value.

The company’'s consolidated financial statements also include intangible assets (core

deposit intangibles), which are amortized to expense over their estimated useful life of
ten years and reviewed for impairment on an ongeing basis or whenever events or changes in
business circumstances warrant a review of the carrying value. If impairment 1is

determined to exist, the related write-down of the intangible asset's carrying value is
charged to operations.

Based on these impairment reviews the company determined that goodwill and core deposit
intangible assets were not impaired at December 31, 2007.

Overview

Summary

Cver the past two vyears, the flat interest rate enviromment and the competitive
marketplace has negatively impacted margins and challenged growth and earnings throughout
the banking industry. At Enterprise Bancorp, Inc., this environment has contributed to a
slight decline in low cost depesit balances and ceontinued pressure on the company’s net
interest margin from rising funding costs. Despite these economic and industry issues, the
company reported net income growth through December 31, 2007, of 7% for both the year-to-
date and guarter-to-date results.

Composition of Earnings

The company had net income of $9.898 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared
to $9.234 million during the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of 7%. Diluted
earnings per share were $1.25 for the year compared to $1.18 for 2006, an increase of 6%.

Net income for the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2007 amcunted to $2.735 million
compared to $2.545 million for the same period in 2006, an increase of 7%. Diluted
earnings per share were $0.34 for the guarter ended December 31, 2007 compared to $0.32
for the same period in 2006, an increase of 6%.

The company’s year-to-date net income growth resulted primarily from increases in non-
interest income and a decrease in the provision for loan 1losses, partially offset by
increases in non-interest expense and a decrease in net interest income. The company’s
earnings are largely dependent on its net interest income, which is the difference between
interest earned on loans and investments and the cost of funding (primarily deposits and
borrowings) . Tax eguivalent net interest income expressed as a percentage of average
interest earning assets is referred to as net interest margin (“margin®).
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Net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 amounted to $40.7 millien
compared to 541.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, a decrease of 2%. The
decrease was primarily due to a decline in net interest margin as discussed below,
partially offset by an increase in interest income, due to an increase in average loan
balances.

Net interest margin was 4.45% for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to 4.78% for
2006, From a gquarterly trend perspective, net interest margin was 4.33% for the three
months ended December 31, 2007 compared to 4.40% and 4.74% for the three-month periods
ended September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006. The overall decrease in margin through
2007 resulted primarily from both the flat yield curve environment and rising funding
costs, caused by the shift in funding from low-cost deposits to higher cost deposits, and
the continued lecan growth funded by higher cost brokered CD’'s and borrowings. In late
2007 and early 2008 the interest rate environment has shifted and the company has begun to
experience aspects of a declining yield curve environment. Rates on earning assets have
repriced downward, while rates on borrowing and deposits have declined at a slower pace
due to market conditions. As such, net interest margin compression may continue into
2008.

Non-interest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was 510.1 million, an increase of
$3.3 million, or 48%, over the prior year. Included in non-interest income were net gains
on sales of investment securities of $1.7 million in the current year, compared to net
losses of $204 thousand in 2006. 1In the fourth guarter of 2007, the company realized net
gains on sales of investment securities of $786 thousand. Non-interest income, excluding
net gains/losses on investment securities increased $1.4 million, or 20%, over the prior
vear. This growth resulted primarily from increases in deposit-service fees and
investment -advisory fees compared te the prior year.

Non-interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 amounted tc $34.8 million, an
increase of 7%, compared te $32.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
increases over the prior year were predominantly in salaries and employee benefits and
occupancy expenses which reflected the strategic and operational costs necessary to
support the company’'s continued growth.

The provision for loan losses, which is impacted by asset gquality and lecan growth,
amounted to $1.0 million for the year compared to $1.3 million in 2006. The provision for
loan losses increased to $650 thousand in the fourth quarter of 2007 as compared to $367
thousand in the fourth guarter of 2006 due to loan growth. Asset guality remained
favorable during the year with net charge-offs of only 0.05% of average total loans, or
$395 thousand compared to $369% thousand in the prior year. The allowance for leoan losses
to total loans ratio was 1.62% at December 31, 2007 compared to 1.70% at December 31,
2006.

Sources and Uses of Funds

The company’s primary sources of funds are deposits, brokered CD's, FHLB borrowings,
repurchase agreements, current earnings and proceeds from the sales, maturities and
paydowns on loans and investment securities. The company uses funds to originate loans,
purchage investment securities, conduct operations, expand the branch network, and pay
dividends to sharehclders.

Total assets amounted to $1.058 billion at December 31, 2007, an increase of 8% since
December 31, 2006. The company's core asset strategy is to grow loans, primarily
commercial loans. Total loans increased 10% since December 31, 2006 and amounted to
$833.8 million, or 79% of total assets. Commercial loans increased 9% over the prior year
and amounted to $707.9 million, or B5% of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2007.
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The investment portfolic is the other key component of the company’s earning assets and is
primarily used to invest excess funds, provide liquidity and to manage the company’s
asset-liability pogition. The fair value of total investments amounted to $145.5 miilion
at December 31, 2007, or 14% of total assets. The carrying value of the portfolio has
increased 11% since December 31, 2006 due primarily te purchases of municipal and agency
CMO/MBS securities, offset by sales, principal paydowns and maturities during the period.

Management's preferred strategy for funding asset growth is to grow low cost deposits
{comprised of demand deposit accounts, interest and business checking accounts and
traditional savings accounts). Asset growth in excess of low cost deposits is typically
funded through higher cost deposits (certificates of deposit, money market accounts and
“investment” savings products}, brokered CD's, repurchase agreements, FHLB borrowings, and
investment portfolio cash flow.

The current environment has continued to impact the company’'s ability to generate growth
in lower costing deposits and therefore the company has continued to utilize brokered CD's
and FHLB borrowings as alternative funding sources to support asset growth.

At December 31, 2007, total deposits, which included brokexred CDs, amounted to $868.8
million, representing $1.3 million, or 0.1%, growth over December 31, 2006 balances.
Total deposits, excluding brokered CDs, amcunted to $798.1 million at December 31, 2007,
representing a decline of $54.5 million, or 0.6% since December 31, 2006, compared to an
increase of $37.2 million, or 5%, for 2006 over 2005.

At December 31, 2007, the company had $70.7 million in brokered CDs and $73.2 million in
FHLB borrowings outstanding compared to $64.% million and $10.3 million, respectively, at
December 31, 2006.

Opportunities and Risks

Management remains committed to a lcng-term strategy of geographic market expansion and
commercial banking growth. The company’s primary market is the Merrimack Valley and North
Central regions of Massachusetts and the South Central region of New Hampshire. Management
recognizes that substantial competition exists in the marketplace and views this as a key
business risk. Market competition includes the expanded commercial lending capabilities
of credit unions, the shift to commercial lending by traditicnal savings banks, the
presence of large regional and national commercial banks, and the products offered by non-
bank financial services competitors.

Management continually strives to differentiate the company and provide a unique customer
experience through highly competitive commercial banking, investment, and insurance
products delivered through consistent, responsive and personal service based on an
understanding of the financial service needs of its customers. Management believes the
company’s business model, strong service culture, skilled management team and brand name
create opportunities for the company to be the leading provider of banking and investment
management services in its growing market area.

Despite these competitive challenges, the company has been successful in growing its
commercial banking base and its investment advisory and management services. Management
believes this growth is the result of ongoing business development efforts and continued
market expansion within existing and inte new markets. The company has fourteen branch
locations; its fifteenth branch facility is currently under construction in the city of
Methuen, Massachusetts and is expected to open in the spring of 2008. The company is also
currently in the process of obtaining regulatory approvals to establish a branch to be
located in the southern New Hampshire town of Derry, which will be the company’'s second
New Hampshire branch office and is anticipated to open in early 2009. The company
continues to look for market and Dbranch opportunities that will increase long-term
franchise value and shareheclder returns. Such expansion typically increases the company’s
operating expenses, primarily in salary and benefits, marketing, and occupancy, before the
growth benefits are fully realized in those markets.
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In addition to competition and growth, the company’s significant challenges continue to be
the effective management of interest rate, credit and operational risk.

The re-pricing frequency of interest earning assets and liabilities are nct identical, and
therefore subject the company to the risk of adverse changes in interest rates. This is
often referred to as “interest rate risk” and is reviewed in more detail under Item 74,
“"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.”

The risk cof leoss due toc customers’' non-payment of loans or lines of credit is called
“credit risk." Credit risk management is reviewed below in this Item 7 under the headings
“Credit Risk/Asset Quality” and “Allowance for Loan Losses.”

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people or systems, or from external events. Operational risk
management is also a key component of the company's risk management process, particularly
as it relates to technology administration, information security, and business continuity.

Management utilizes a combination of third party security assessments, key technelegies
and ongoing internal evaluations in order to protect nen-public customer information and
continually monitor and safeguard information on its operating systems and those of third
party service providers. The company contracts with outside parties to perform a broad
scope of both internal and external security assessments on the company’'s systems on a
regular basis. These third parties test the company's network configuration and security
controls, and assess internal practices aimed at protecting the company’s operating
systems. In addition, the company contracts with an outside service provider te monitor
usage patterns and identify unusual activity on bank issued debit/ATM cards. The company
also utilizes firewall technology and an intrusion detection system to protect against
unauthorized access and commercial software that continuously scans for computer viruses
on the company's information systems.

The company has a Business Continuity Plan that consists of the information and procedures
required to enable rapid recovery from an occurrence that would disable the company for an
extended period. The plan establishes responsibility for assessing a disruption of
business, contains alternative strategies for the continuance of critical business
functions, assigns responsibility for restoring services, and sets priorities by which
critical services will be restored.

See Item 1A. "Risk Factors” for additional factors that could adversely affect the
company’s future results of cperations and financial condition.

Financial Condition

Total assets increased $78.4 million, or 8%, over the pricr year, amounting to $1.058
billion at December 31, 2007. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in
total loans.

Loans

Total 1lcans increased $72.7 million, or 10%, and amcunted tc 79% of total assets at
December 31, 2007, compared with 78% of total assets, at December 31, 2006. The company
attributes the increase to its seasoned lending team, the company’s sales and service
culture and geographic expansion. The mix of loans within the company's portfolic
remained relatively unchanged with commercial loans amounting to approximately B85% of
total loans, reflecting the company’s centinued focus on commercial lcan development.
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The following table sets forth the loan balances by certain loan categories at the dates
indicated and the percentage of each category to gross loans.

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{Doliars in thousands) Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Bmount 5

Comm’l real estate 5 406,410 48.7% $ 368,621 48.3% $ 326,963 46.6% S 257,657 45.1% § 224,450 45.8%

Comm’l & industrial 188,866 22.06% 164,865 21.6% 165,982 23.7% 142,909 25.0% 132,313 27.0%
Comm’1l constructiocn 112,671 13.5% 114,078 15.0% 108,048 15.4% 80,597 14.1% 50,699 10.3%
Total Commercial 707,947 84.B% 647,564 84.9% 600,993 85.7% 481,163 B4.2% 407,462 B3.1%
Residential mortgages 73,933 8.9% 61,854 B.1% 47,207 6.7% 40,654 7.1% 39,465 B.0%
Resid construction 4,120 0.5% 3,681 0.5% 4,154 0.6% 2,848 0.5% 3,488 0.8%
. Home equity 44,292 5.3% 44,038 5.8% 44,444 6.4% 42,823 7.5% 35,139 T.2%
Consumer 4,493 0.5% 4,307 0.6% 3,986 0.6% 4,139 0.7% 4,558 0.9%
Loans held for sale 268 0.0% 549 0.1% 267 C.0% 101 0.0% 262 0.0%
Gross loans 835,053 100.0% 762,293 100.0% 701,051 100.0% 571,728 100.0% 490,374 100.0%
Deferred fees, net {1,234) {1,180) {i,325) {1,269} {1,535)
Total loans 233,819 761,113 699,726 570,459 488,839
Allowance feor loan
losses (13,545) {12,940} {12,050) (10,923) (9,986}
Net loans $ 820,274 5 748,173 S 687,676 $ 559,536 $ 478,853

The following table sets forth the scheduled maturities of commercial real estate,
commercial & industrial and commercial constructien loans in the company’s portfolio at
December 31, 2007. The table alsc sets forth the dollar amount of loans which are
scheduled to mature after one year which have fixed or adjustable rates.

Commercial Commercial & Commercial

{Dollars in thousands) real estate industrial construction
Amounts due:

One year or less $ 25,165 s 86,508 $ 70,041

After one year through five years 14,515 51, 664 27,199

Beyond five years 366,730 50, 694 15,431

3 406,410 S 188,866 s 112,671

Interest rate terms en amounts due after one year:

Fixed 5 24,307 $ 43,292 $ 5,955

Adjustable 356,938 59,066 36,675

Scheduled contractual maturities may not reflect the actual maturities of loans. The average

maturity of loans may be shorter than their contractual terms principally due to prepayments.
During 2007, commercial real estate loans increased $37.8 million, or 10%. Commercial
real estate loans are typically secured by apartment buildings, office or mixed-use
facilities, strip shopping malls or other commercial property.

Commercial and industrial loans increased by $24.0 million, or 15%, since December 31,

2006. These loans include seasonal revelving lines of credit, working capital loans,
equipment financing (including equipment leases}, term loans, and revolving lines of
credit. Also included in commercial and industrial loans are loans under various U.S.

Small Business Administration programs.

Commercial construction loans decreased slightly year over year, by $1.4 million, or 1%.
Commercial construction loans include the development of residential housing and
condominium projects, the development of commercial and industrial use property and lecans
for the purchase and improvement of raw land.

Residential real estate loans, residential construction and home equity mortgages
combined, increased by $12.5 millien, or 11%, and consumer loans increased %186 thousand
or 4% since December 31, 2006.
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At December 31, 2007 the company had commercial loan balances participated out to various
banks amounting to $6.8 million, compared to 5$8.2 million at December 31, 2006. These
balances participated out tc other institutions are not carried as assets on the company's
financial statements. Loans originated by other banks in which the company is the
participating institution are carried at the company’s prorata share of ownership and
amounted to $13.9 million and $18.3 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,

Credit Risk/Assert Quality

Inherent in the lending process is the risk of loss. The company’s primary lending focus
is on the development of high guality commercial real estate, commercial construction and
commercial and industrial lending reilationships with business entities, non-profit
organizations, professionals and individuals. However, commercial lending may entail
significant additiocnal risks compared to long term financing on existing owner occupied
residential real estate. Commercial loan size 1is typically larger and the underlying
collateral values, the actual cost necessary to complete a project or customer cash flow
and payment expectations cn such loans can be more easily influenced by adverse conditions
in the related industries, the real estate market or in the economy in general. While the
company endeavors to minimize this risk through the risk management function, management
recognizes that loan losses will occur and that the amount of these losses will fluctuate
depending on the risk characteristics of the loan portfolio.

The company’s credit risk management function focuses on a wide variety of factors,
including, ameong others, current and expected economic conditions, the real estate market,
the financial condition of borrowers, the ability of borrowers to adapt to changing
conditions or circumstances affecting their business and the continuity of borrowers’
management teams. Early detection of credit issues is critical to minimize credit losses.
Accordingly, management regularly monitors these factors, among others, through ongoing
credit reviews by the credit department, an external loan review service, reviews by
members of senior management and the Loan Committee of the board of directors.

On a quarterly basis, the company prepares an estimate of the necessary reserves. Except
for loans specifically identified as impaired, the estimate is a two-tiered approach that
allocates loan loss reserves to “"adversely classified” locans by c¢redit rating and to non-
classified loans by credit type. The general loss allocations take intc account the
quantitative and qualitative factors identified above.

The loan risk rating system, classifies lcans depending on risk of loss characteristics.
The classifications range from "substantially risk free” for the highest quality loans and
loans that are secured by cash collateral, to the most severe classifications of
"substandard”, “doubtful" and “loss” based on criteria established under banking
regulations. Loans classified as substandard include those characterized by the distinct
possibility that the bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in a substandard rated loan
with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full,
on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and wvalues, highly gquestionable and
improbable. Loans classified as loss are generally considered uncollectible at present,
although long term recovery of part or all of loan proceeds may be possible. These "loss”
lcans would reguire a specific lossg reserve or charge-off. Adversely classified loans may
be accruing or in non-accrual status and may be additionally designated as impaired or
restructured, or some combination thereof.
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Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated as non-accrual
loans. Accrual of interest on loans is generally discontinued when a loan becomes
contractually past due, with respect to interest or principal, by ninety days for real
estate loans and generally sixty days for all other loans, or when reasonable doubt exists
as to the full and timely collection of interest or principal. When a loan is placed on
non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against
current period interest income. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when
payments are brought current and when, in the judgment of management, the collectability
of both principal and interest is reasonably assured, Interest payments received on loans
in a non-accrual status are generally applied to principal.

Impaired loans are individually significant leoans for which management considers it
probable that not all amounts due in accordance with original contractual terms will be
collected. The majority of impaired loans are included within the non-accrual balances;
however, not every loan in non-accrual status has been designated as impaired. Management
does not sget any minimum delay of payments as a factor in reviewing for impaired
classification. Management considers the payment status, net worth and earnings potential
of the borrower, and the value and cash flow of the collateral as factors te determine if
a loan will be paid in accordance with its contractual terms. When a loan is deemed to
be impaired, management estimates the credit loss by comparing the loan’s carrying value
against either 1) the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the
loan's effective interest rate; 2) the loan’'s observable market price; or 3) the expected
realizable fair wvalue of the collateral, in the case of collateral dependent loans. A
specific allowance is assigned to the impaired loan for the amount of estimated credit
loss. Impaired loans are charged off, in whole or in part, when management believes that
the recorded investment in the loan is uncollectible.

Impaired loans exclude large groups of smaller-balance homogenecus loans, such groups may
include residential mortgage loans and consumer loans, that are collectively evaluated for
impairment, lcans that are measured at fair value and leases as defined in SFAS No. 114.

Loans are designated as “restructured” when a concession is made on a credit as a result
of financial difficulties of the borrower. Typically, such concessions consist of a
reduction in interest rate to a below market rate, taking into account the credit quality
of the note, or a deferment of payments, principal or interest, which materially alters
the bank’s position or significantly extends the note‘s maturity date, such that the
present value of cash flows to be received is materially less than those contractually
established at the loan’s origination. Restructured loans are generally included in the
impaired loan category.

Real estate acquired by the company through foreclosure proceedings or the acceptance of a
deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as Other Real Estate Owned (“OREO”}., When
property is acquired, it 1is recorded at the lesser of the lecan’s remaining principal
balance or the estimated fair value of the property acquired, less estimated costs to
sell. Any loan balance in excess of the estimated realizable fair value on the date of
transfer is charged tc the allowance for loan losses on that date. All costs incurred
thereafter in maintaining the property, as well as subsequent declines in fair value are
charged to non-interest expense.

Non-performing assets are comprised of nen-accrual loans, accruing loans that are more
than 90 days past due but still accruing interest and OREO. The designation of a lean or
other asset as non-performing does not necessarily indicate that loan principal and
interest will ultimately be uncollectible. However, management recognizes the greater
rigk characteristics of these assets and therefore considers the potential risk of loss on
asgets included in this category in evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loan
losses. Despite prudent loan underwriting, adverse changes within the bank’s market area,
or deterioration in local, regional or national economic conditicns, could negatively
impact the company’s level of non-performing assets in the future.




The following table sets forth information regarding non-performing assets, restructured
loans and delinguent loans 60-89 days past due as to interest or principal, held by the
company at the dates indicated:

December 31,

(bellars in thousands} 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Hon-accrual loans $ 3,856 ¢ 1,785 § 1,475 S 2,140 $ 2,983
Accruing loans > 90 days past due - 7 1 - -
Total non-performing loans 3,956 1,792 1,476 2,140 2,983
Other real estate cwned 200 - - - -
Total non-performing assets $ 4,15 & 1,79%2 § 1,476 5 2,140 § 2,983
Total Loans $833,819% $761,113 $6993,726 $570,459 5488,839
Accruing restructured leans not included above 76 128 82 26 2,370
Delinguent loans 60-8% days past due 275 964 39 404 83
Non-performing loans to total leoans 0.47% 0.24% 0.21% 0.38% 0.61%
Non-performing assets to total assets 0.39% 0.18% 0.16% 0.25% 0.40%
Loans 60-85% days past due to total loans 0.03% 0.13% 0.01% 0.07% 0.02%
Adversely Classified loans to total loans 0.76% 0.88% 0.77% 1.55% 1.25%

At December 31, 2007, the company had adversely classified loans (loans carrying
“substandard” or “doubtful” classifications) amounting to $6.3 million, compared to $6.7
million at December 31, 2006. Included in these classified balances were $3.6 million
and $1.4 million of non-performing loans at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
remaining balances of adversely classified lcans were performing but possessed potential
weaknesses and, as a result, could ultimately become non-performing loans.

The $2.2 million net increase in total non-performing loans, and the resulting increase in
the ratic of non-performing loans as a percentage of total loans outstanding, was due
primarily to loans added to non-accrual status within the commercial real estate
portfolio. The majority of this increase was due to four commercial relationships
amounting to approximately $1.% million as of December 31, 2007. These non-accrual
relationships were adequately supported by the value of the underlying property and
management expects that all principal advanced will ultimately be c¢ollected. One of these
relationships, with a carrying amount of approximately $475 thousand, was subsequently
fully paid in February 2008.

Impaired loans included in non-accrual balances were $3.9 million and $1.7 million as of
Cecember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase since December 2006 was mainly due
to the addition of the four relationships referred to above. Accruing impaired loans
amounted to 575 thousand and $80 thousand at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In
the opiniecn of management, impaired loans totaling $195 thousand required specific reserve
allocations of $195 thousand and impaired loans tctaling $3.8 million required no specific
reserves at December 31, 2007. 1In the opinion of management, there were no impaired loans
requiring specific reserve allocations at December 31, 2006.

Total restructured loans outstanding as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $1.3 million
and $653 thousand, respectively. The increase was primarily due to one of the commercial
relationships referred to above being restructured in 2007, Restructured leoans included in
non-performing assets amounted to $1.2 million and $525 thousand at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

One loan was transferred into OREQ in 2007 as the result cf foreclesure proceedings. The
OREQ property was subsequently sold in February 2008 and the company recovered the
December 31st carrying value. There was no OREQO during the year ended December 31, 2006.

As noted above, general non-performing statistics have trended slightly upward recently;
hncwever non-performing assets in 2006 and 2005 represented historically low levels. Asg
such, management does not consider the increase since 2006 to be indicative of
deterioration in the credit quality of the general loan portfolic. Qverall asset quality
remained favorable during the year and non-performing assets at December 31, 2007 are
considered to be at low levels by histerical standards.

34




Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of c¢redit risk inherent in the loan portfolio
as of the balance sheet dates. 1In making its assessment on the adequacy of the allowance,
management considers several quantitative and qualitative factors that could have an
effect on the credit quality of the portfolio including individual assessment of larger
and high risk credits, delinguency trends and the level of non-performing loans, net
charge-offs, the growth and composition of the loan portfolio, expansion in geographic
market area, the strength of the local and national economy, and comparison to industry
peers, among cother factors. There were no significant changes to the allowance assessment
methodology, the company’s underwriting, or in credit gquality during the current period.

The allowance for loan loss to total loans ratio was 1.62% at December 31, 2007 compared
to 1.70% at December 31, 2006. The reduced allowance reflects the continued favorable
asset quality, level of loan growth and the low level of charge-offs during the 2007
period. The allowance for loan loss to total loans ratio was 2.04% at December 31, 2003
and reflected increased provisions for loan losses made after the $/11 terrorist attacks,
which brought the ratio from 1.99% at December 31, 2000, to a high of 2.27% at December
31, 2001, The increased provisions in that period resulted from expected economic
weakness and anticipated credit gquality deterioration. However, in the ensuing periods
credit quality remained stable, and in 2003 it began to improve measurably. Consequently,
the loan loss reserve ratio began declining in 2003.

Based on the foregoing, as well as management's judgment as to the existing credit risks
inherent in the loan portfelio, the company's allowance for loan losses is deemed adequate
to absorb reasonably anticipated losses from specifically known and other credit risks
associated with the portfolio as of December 31, 2007.

The following table summarizes the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the

periods indicated:
Years Ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Balance at beginning of year $ 12,940 5 12,050 3 10,923 & 9,586 $ 9,371
Charged-off loans:
Commercial real estate 27 200 - ~ -
Commercial and industrial 422 241 70 901 628
Construction 100 - - - -
Residential mortgage - - - - -
Home equity 77 68 - - -
Consumer 25 70 57 84 55
Total charged-off 651 579 127 985 683
Recovereries on charged-off lecans:
Commercial real estate 82 - - - 2
Commercial and industrial 152 182 102 259 193
Construction - - - - -
Residential mortgage - - - - -
Home equity - - - - -
Consumer 22 28 17 13 28
Toctal recoveries 256 210 119 272 223
Net leoans charged-off 395 369 8 713 460
Provision charged to operations 1,000 1,259 1,135 1,650 1,075
Balance at December 31 $ 13,545 $ 12,940 5 12,050 $ 10,823 5 9,986
Allowance to non-performing loans 342.39% 722.10% 816.40% 510.42% 334.76%
Recoveries to charge-offs 39.32% 36.27% 93.70% 27.61% 32.65%
Net lecans charged-off to allowance 2.92% 2.85% 0.07% 6.53% 4.61%
Average loans outstanding $ 793,395 5 732,813 5 625,403 5 527,903 S 448,178
Increase in avg loans over prior year 8% 17% 18% 17% 13%
Net icans charged-off to avg total lecans 0.05% 0.05% 0.00% 0.14% 0.10%

Allowance to total loans outstanding 1.62% 1.70% 1.72% 1.91% 2.04%




The following table sets forth the allocation of the company’'s allowance for loan losses
amongst the categories of loans and the percentage of loans in each category to gross
loans for the periods ending on the respective dates indicated:

December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Loan Loan Loan Loan Loan
category category category category category
as % of as % of as % of as % of as % of
Allowance  gross Allowance gross Allowance gross Allowance gross Allowance gross
(Dollars in thousands) aliocation loans allocation  loans allpcation loans allocation loans allocation loans

Comm’l real estate § 6,908 48.7% § 6,551 48.3% % 5,753 46.6% $ 5,617 45.1% § 4,855 45.8%

Comm' 1 industrial 3,196 22.6% 2,929 21.6% 2,979 23.7% 2,925 25.0% 3,409 27.0%

Comm’ 1l constz. 2,341 13.5% 2,423 15,.0% 2,373 15.4% 1,613 14.1% 1,141 i0.3%

Resid: mortg,cnstr

and HELOC's 988 14.7% 4925 14.5% B40 13.7% 699 15.1% 529 16.0%

Consumer 112 0.5% 112 0.6% 105 0.6% 69 0.7% 52 0.9%
Total $ 13,545 100.0% $ 12,940 100.0% $ 12,050 100.0% $ 10,923 100.0% § 9,986 100.0%

The allocation of the allowance for lcan lcsses above reflects management’s Jjudgment of
the relative risks of the various categories of the company's loan portfolio. This
allocation should not be considered an indication of the future amounts or types of
possible loan charge-offs.

Short-Term Invegtments

As of December 31, 2007, short-term investments amounted 0.7% of total assets, compared to
2% of total assets, at December 31, 2006. Short-term investments carried as cash
equivalents at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of overnight and term federal funds
sold and money market mutual funds. The company had no “other short-term investments” at
December 31, 2007 or 2006.

Investment Securities

As of December 31, 2007, the carrying amount of the investment portfclic increased $14.0

million, or 11%, compared to December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily due to
purchases of municipal and agency CMO/MBS securities, offset by sales, principal paydowns
and maturities during the period. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, all investment

securities (other than FHLB stock) were classified as available for sale and were carried
at fair market wvalue. At December 31, 2007, the investment portfolic represented 14% of
total assets compared to 13% at December 31, 2006. Fixed income securities comprised the
majority ©f the carrying value of the portfolio and represented 93% and 922% of total
investments at December 31, 2007 and 2006 respectively.

The following table summarizes the fair market value of investments at the dates
indicated:

December 31,

{(Dollars in thousands} 2007 2006 2005
Federal agency obligations' § 12,543 5 10,405 $ 15,202
Collateralized mortgage obligations and other
Mcrtgage backed securities (CMO/MBS) 62,218 61,431 77,143
Municipal securities 60,048 48,762 54,915
Fixed income securities 134,810 120,598 147,260
Certificates of depesit - 1,033 1,000
Federal Home Loan Bank stock'’ 3,895 1,428 3,205
Equity securities 6,812 8,481 5,056
Total investments 5 145,517 3 131,540 3 156,521

(1) Federal agency obligations include securities issued by government-sponsored enterprises such as
Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and the FHLE. These securities do not represent obligations of the U.S.
government and are not backed by the full faith and credit of the United States Treasury.

{2} The bank is required to purchase FHLB stock in association with outstanding advances from the FHLB;
this stock is classified as a restricted investment and carried at cost.
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As of December 31, 2007, the net unrealized gains in the investment portfolioc were $382
thousand compared to the net unrealized losses of $163 thousand at December 31, 2006. The
unrealized gains at December 31, 2007 consisted of net unrealized gains on fixed income
securities of $522 thousand (comprised of $1.2 million gains and $637 thousand losses) and
net unrealized losses on equity sgecurities of $140 thousand (comprised of $248 thousand
gains and $388 thousand losses).

Unrealized gains or losses will only be recognized in the statements of income if the
securities are sold. However, if an unrealized loss on a fixed income or equity security
is deemed to be other-than-temporary, the company marks the investment down to its
carrying value through a charge to earnings.

The net unrealized gain or loss in the company’'s fixed income portfolio fluctuates asg

market interest rates rise and fall. Due to the fixed rate nature of this portfolio, as
market rates fall the value of the portfolio rises, and as market rates rise, the value of
the portfolic declines. The unrealized gains or loss on fixed income investments will

also decline as the securities approach maturity. The decline in market value on the fixed
income portfolio at December 31, 2007 was due to interest rate volatility and not ecredit
quality as all of these securities were AAA credit rated. Therefere, these unrealized
losses were not considered other-than-temporary in nature at December 31, 2007.

The net unrealized gain or loss on equity securities will fluctuate based on changes in
the market wvalue of the individual securities and mutual funds in the portfolic. The
unrealized losses on the equity portfolio at December 31, 2007, were due to normal market
veolatility. Management regularly reviews the portfolio for securities with unrealized
losses that are other than temporarily impaired. Management’s assegsment includes
evaluating if any equity securities/mutual funds exhibit fundamental deterioration and
whether it is unlikely that the security/fund will completely recover its unrealized loss.
Upon such review, there were no equity securities/funds that were considered other than
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2007.

At December 31, 2007, management had the intent and ability to hold the fixed income
securities in the portfolio with unrealized losses until the recovery of fair value, which
may be maturity.

During 2087 the company recognized net gains on the sales of $9.9 miliion of equity
securities, amounting to $1.6 million. Principal paydowns and maturities totaled §15.9
million during the current period, and were primarily comprised of payments in the
mortgage backed securities portfolio. These proceeds along with additional funds were
utilized to purchase $39.2 million of securities during 2007.

The contractual maturity distributicon at amortized cost, as of December 31, 2007, of the
fixed income securities above with the weighted average yield for each category is set
forth below:

Under 1 Year >l - 3 Years >3 - 5 Years >5 - 10 Years Over 1§ Years
{Dollars in thousands) Balance Yield Balance Yield Balance Yield Balance Yield Balance Yield
Agency cbligations $ 4,000 4.36% & 6,519 4.75% % 2,000 5.68% § - - 8 - -
CMO/MBS 78 6.50% - - - - 24,581 4.19% 37,738 4.78%
Municipals®™ 4,340 4.22% 12,497  4.60% 12,406 5.10% 13,896 7.02% 16,233 5.75%

5 8,418 4.31% $ 19,016 4.65% $ 14,406 5.18% $ 38,477 5.21% S 53,971 5.07%

{1) Municipal security yields and total yields are shown on a tax equivalent basis.

Scheduled contractual maturities may not reflect the actual maturities of the investments.
CMO/MBS are shown at their final maturity. However, due to prepayments and amortization
the actual CMO/MBS cash flows may be faster than presented above. Similarly, included in
the agency and municipal categories were $52.5 million in securities which can be *called®
before maturity. Actual maturity of these callable securities could be shorter if market
interest rates decline further. Management considers these factors when evaluating the
net interest margin in the company’s asset-liability management program.




Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI”)

Beginning in 2005, the company purchased BOLI as an investment, utilizing the earnings on
BOLI to offset the cost of the company’'s benefit plans. There were no BOLI purchases in
2007. During 2006, the company made net BOLI purchases of 3$8.0 million. The cash
surrender value of BOLI was $12.7 million and $12.2 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The company recorded income from the BOLI policies, net of related expenses,
of $548 thousand in 2007 and $339 thousand for 2006.

Further information regarding the company’s retirement benefit plans, is contained in note
10, "Employee Benefit Plans”, to the consolidated financial statements contained in Item B
below, under the heading “Supplemental Retirement Plan.”

Deposits

Total deposits increased $1.3 million, or 0.1%, as of December 31, 2007 compared to¢ year
end balances at December 3%, 2006. Deposits, excluding brokered deposits, decreased $4.5
million, or 0.6%, compared to the prior year-end balance. The current environment has
continued to impact the company’s ability to generate growth in lower costing deposits and
therefore the company has continued to utilize brokered CD’'s and FHLB borrowings as
alternative funding sources to support asset growth. Total deposits as a percentage of
total assets were 82% at December 31, 2007 compared to 89% at December 31, 2006.

The following table sets forth deposit balances by certain categories at the dates
indicated and the percentage of each deposit category to total deposits.

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
(Dollars in thousands) Amount % Amount % Amount %

Non~interest demand deposits 167,039 19.2% 149,910 19.6% 173,804 22.4%
Interest bearing checking 160, 668 18.5% 179,533 20.7% 171,611 22.1%
Total checking 327,707 37.7% 349,443 40.3% 345,415 44.5%

Retail savings/money markets 145, 959 16.8% 141,202 16.3% 151,969 19.6%
Commercial savings/money markets 120,768 13.9% 125, 584 14.5% 115,126 14.9%
Total savings/money markets 266,727 30.7% 266,786 30.8% 267,085 34.5%

Certificates of deposit 203,657 23.5% 186, 349 21.4% 152, 889 19.7%
Total non-brokered deposits 798,091 91.9% 802,578 92.5% 765, 399 98.7%

Brokered certificates of deposit 70,685 8.1% 64,944 7.5% 9,988 1.3%
Total deposits S 868,786 100.0% 5 867,522 100.0% $ 775,387 100.0%

Checking deposits decreased $21.7 million, or 6%, at December 31, 2007 compared to
December 31, 2006 and accounted for approximately 38% and 40% of total deposits at those
respective dates. The decline in both balance and concentration reflects the shift in
funds by rate sensitive depositors to higher yielding products as interest rates increased
over the period.

Savings and money market accounts remained relatively flat at December 31, 2007 compared
to December 31, 2006 with respect to both year-end balances and concentration,
representing approximately 31% of total deposits at both those regpective periods.

Year-end balances of higher costing certificates of deposit increased by $17.3 million, or
9%. The increase reflects the trend of depositors shifting excess funds to higher
yielding term products. In addition, brokered CD's increased $5.8 million, or 9%, as of
December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006, which reflected the ceompany’s strategic
utilization of alternative sources to fund the company’s continued loan growth over the
period. These combined CD balances represented 32% and 29% of total deposits at December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The majority of the December 31, 2007 combined CD
balances were scheduled to mature within one year, with approximately 44% due to mature
within three months and 48% due in over three through twelve months.




The table below sets forth a comparison of the company’s average depe¢sits and average
rates paid for the pericds indicated, as well as the percentage of each deposit category
to total average deposits. The anmmualized average rate on total deposits reflects both
interest bearing and non-interest bearing deposits.

Year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Average Average % of Average Average % of Average Average % of
(Dollars in thousands} Balance Rate Total Balance Rate Total Balance Rate Total
Non-interest demand 5 165,653 - 18.9% § 165,957 - 19.9% S 163,429 - 21.4%
Interest checking 151,835 1.13% 17.3% 159,009 0.80% 19.0% 167,178 0.53% 21.9%
Savings 151,480 2.15% 17.2% 167,353 2.05% 20.,0% 176,143 1.37% 23.1%
Money market 123,652 2.94% 14.1% 109,783 2.25% 13.1% 115,422 1.41% 15.2%
Total interest bearinc
non-term deposits 426,967 2.02% 18.6% 436,145 1.65% 52.1% 458,743 1.08% 60.2%

Certificates cof Deposit 185,565 4.45% 22.3% 173,433 3.78% 20.7% 139,775 2.34% 18.4%
Total non-brokered

deposits 788,185 2.20% 89.8% 775,535 1.77%  92.7% 761,947 1.08% 100.0%
Brokered CDs 89,506 5.34% 10.2% 61,082 5.12% 7.3% 82 5.90% -
Total $ 877,691 2.52% 100.0% $ 836,617 2.02% 100.0% S 762,029 1.08% 100.0%

The increase in the average rate paid on total deposit accounts to 2.52% for 2007, from
2.02%, for 2006, is attributable to increases in market interest rates and the shift in
funding mix from lower costing deposzits to higher cost certificates and brokered CD‘s as
discussed above.

Borrowed Funds

Total borrowed funds, consisting of securities so0ld tc customers under agreements to
repurchase (repurchase agreements) and FHLB borrowings, increased $66.3 wmillion from
December 31, 2006. The increase resulted from the increased use of FHLBE borrowings to fund
agset growth during the year.

The following table sets forth borrowed funds by categories at the dates indicated and the
percentage of each category to total borrowed funds.

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

(Dollars in thousands) Amount % Amount % Amount %
Repurchase agreements $ 8,267 10.2% $ 4,835 32.0% $ 706 1.2%
FHLE Borrowings 73,162 89.8% 10,270 68.0% 57,5933 98.8%
Total borrowed funds $ 81,429 100.0% $ 15,105 100.0% $ 58,639 100.0%

At December 31, 2007, the bank had the ability to borrow additional funds from the FHLB of
up to $97.7 wmillion,

The contractual maturity distribution as of December 31, 2007, of borrowed funds with the
weighted average cost for each category is set forth below:

Cvernight Under 1 month >1 - 3 menths >3 - 12 months Over 12 months
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate BRalance Rate

Repurchase agreements $ - - § 2,150 5.00% & 6,050 4.48% $ &7 3.00% § - -
FHLB Borrowings 45,830 3.00% - - 362 5.36% _ 26,500 4.68% 470 5.94%

Total borrowed funds $ 45,830 3.00% $ 2,150 5.00% § 6,412 4.53% $26,567 4.68% § 470  5.94%
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Maximum FHLE advances outstanding at any month end during 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $73.2
million, $31.9 million and $59.0 million respectively. Maximum amounts outstanding under
repurchase agreements at any month end during 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $8.3 million, §6.7
million, and $6.4 million, respectively.

The table below shows the comparison of the company’s average repurchase agreements and
FHLB advances and average rates paid for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average Average Average Average
{Dollars in thousands) Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Repurchase agreements 5 3,464 4,.54% s 2,325 4.41% 5 2,823 2.59%
FHLB advances 18,547 5.02% 17,100 4.71% 19,250 3.85%
Total borrowed funds s 22,011 4.94% 5 19,425 41.67% S 22,073 3.69%

The increase in the average rate on borrowed funds for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to the prior period was due to the increase in market interest rates over the
period.

Liguidity

Ligquidity is the ability to meet cash needs arising from, among other things, fluctuations
in loans, investments, deposits and borrowings. Liquidity management is the coordination
of activities so that cash needs are anticipated and met, readily and efficiently.
Liguidity policies are set and monitored by the company's Asset-Liabilicy Committee of the
board of directors. The company's liquidity is maintained by projecting cash needs,
balancing maturing assets with maturing liabilities, menitoring various liquidity ratios,
monitoring deposit flows, maintaining liquidity within the investment portfolic and
maintaining borrowing capacity in the brokered CD market and at the FHLB, and through
commercial lines of credit with correspondent banks.

The company's asset-liability management objectives are to maintain liquidity, provide and
enhance access to a diverse and stable source of funds, provide competitively priced and
attractive products to customers, conduct funding at a low cost relative to current market
conditicns and engage in scund balance sheet management strategies. Funds gathered are
used to support current asset levels and to take advantage of selected leverage
opportunities. The company funds earning assets primarily with deposits, brokered CDs,
repurchase agreements, FHLB borrowings, commercial lines of credit, junior subordinated
debentures and earnings. Management believes that the company has adequate liquidity to
meet its commitments.

Capital Adeqguacy

The company is subject to various regulatory capital reguirements administered by the
federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can result in
certain mwandatory and possible additional discretionary, supervisory actions Dby
regulators, which, if undertaken, could have a material adverse effect on the company’'s
consolidated financial condition. At December 31, 2007 the capital levels of both the
company and the bank complied with all applicable minimum capital requirements of the
Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC, respectively, and both qualified as "well-capitalized"
under applicable regulation of the Federal Reserve Beard and FDIC regulations.

For additional information regarding the capital requirements applicable tc the company
and the bank and their respective capital levels at December 31, 2007, see the section
entitled “Capital Resources” contained in Item 1 “Business” and note 8, 'Stockholders’
Equity", to the consolidated financial statements contained in Item 8.
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Contractual Obligationg and Commitments

The company 1s required to make future cash payments under various contractual
obligations. These obligations include the repayment of short and long-term borrowings
and long-term subordinated debentures, payment of fixed-cash supplemental retirement
benefits, payments under non-cancelable operating leases for variouse premises, and
payments due under agreements to purchase goods and future services from a variety of
vendors.

The company is also party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the
normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial
instruments include commitments to originate loans, commitments to sell loans, standby
letters of c¢redit and unadvanced loans and lines of credit. The instruments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance
sheets. The contract amounts of these instruments reflect the extent of involvement the
company has in the particular classes of financial instruments.

The following table summarizes the contractual cash obligations and commitments at
December 31, 2007.

Payments Due By Pericd

With-in >1 - 3 >3 -5 After 5
(Dollars in thousands) Total 1l Year Years Years Years
Contractual Cash Cbligations:

Repurchase agreements $ 8,267 5 8,267 $ - $ - § -
FHLB borrowings 73,162 72,692 - - 470
Junior subordinated debentures 10,825 - - - 10,825
Supplemental retirement plans 5,516 98 425 352 4,441
Operating lease obligations‘! 4,706 731 899 553 2,523
Vendor contracts 5,809 4,617 1,021 171 -
Tetal contractual obligations $ 108,285 & 86,405 S 2,345 5 1,276 5 18,259

Commitment Expiration - By Peried

With-in »1 - 3 >3 - 5 kRfter 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Other Commitments:

Unadvanced loans and lines 5 283,185 $ 183,808 $ 30,337 $ 20,290 5 48,750

Standby letters of credit 14,780 9,441 5,199 125 15

Commitments to originate loans 15,323 15,323 - - -

Commitments tec originate loans for sale 2,104 2,104 - - -

Commitments to sell loans 2,31 2,371 - - -

Total commitments $ 317,763 § 213,047 $ 35,536 $ 20,415 5 48,765
(1) 1In addition, on January 1, 2008, the company entered into a lease agreement for a

planned branch location in Derry, NH, which calls for total lease payments of
approximately $733 over the next ten years.

Investment Assets Under Management

The company provides a wide range of investment management services. These services
include management of equity, fixed income, balanced and strategic cash management
portfolios through the company‘’s investment advisory group. The market value of each of
these components is affected by fluctuations in the financial markets.

Alsco included in the investment assets under management total are commercial sweep
accounts that are invested in third party money market mutual funds.
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The following table sets forth the fair market value of investment assets under management
py certain categories at the dates indicated.

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 20405

Investment adviscry assets 5 443,712 $ 401,269 |3 346,322
Commercial sweep accounts 129,896 100,750 78,631
Investment assets under management 5 573,608 3 502,059 5 424,953

Investment assets under management increased by $71.5 million, or 14%, from December 31,
2006 to December 31, 2007. The increase was due to an increase in investment advisory
assets of $42.4 million and in commercial sweep accounts of $29.1 million. The increase
in investment advisory assets was primarily due to growth from new business and general
increases in investment market value due to higher market rates.

The commercial sweep account balance generally fluctuates in accordance with the cash
needs of the bank’'s customers. At December 31, 2007, the 3529.1 millicn, or 29%, increase
over the prior year end resulted from sales growth and a migration from deposit balances
due to customer sensitivity for higher earning products.

Results of Operations

Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table sets forth the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes
in the average balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have
affected interest income and expense during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.
For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information
is provided on changes attributable to (1) veolume (change in average portfolic balance

multiplied by pricr year average rate); (2} interest rate ({(change in average interest rate
multiplied by prior year average balance); and {3) rate and volume (the remaining
difference) .

December 31,

2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005
Rate/ Rate/
{Dollars in thousands) valume Rate Volume Total Volume Rate volume Total
Interest Income
Loans $ 4,471 $ 440 5 48 5§ 4,959 $ 7,057 $ 5,066 $ 400 513,023
Investments (652) 314 {95) {433) (1,297) 485 (6} {818)
Total 3,819 754 (47) 4,526 5,760 5,551 894 12,205
Interest Expeénss
Int Chkg/Savings/MM (151) 1,614 (33) 1,430 (244) 2,615 (131 2,240
Certificates of deposit'® 2,088 1,407 302 3,797 2,215 2,503 1,696 6,414
Borrowed funds 121 52 7 180 (98) 216 {25) 93
Total 2,058 3,073 276 5,407 1,873 5,334 1,540 8,747
Change in net interest
income $ 1,761 5(2,319) $§ (323) $§ (881) 5 3,887 § 217 % (646) § 3,458
(1) Investments include investment securities and short-term investments.
(2) Certificates of deposit include brokered and non-brokered CDs.

The table on the following page presents the company’s average balance sheet, net interest
income and average rates for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
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COMPARISON OF YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Unless otherwise indicated, the reported results are for the year ended December 31, 2007 with the
“comparable year” or “prior year” being the year ended December 31, 2006.

Net Income

The company had net income in 2007 of $9.898 million compared to $9.234 million for 2006,
an increase of 7%. Earnings per share for 2007 were $1.27 and $1.25 on a basic and
diluted basis, compared to $1.21 and $1.18 in the prior year, increases of 5% and 6%,
respectively.

Net Interest Income

The company’s net interest income was $40.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007,
a decrease of $8B81 thousand, or 2%, over the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to
a decline in net interest margin as discussed below, partially offset by an increase in
interest income, due to an increase in average loan balances. Total interest and dividend
income for the 2007 period increased by $4.5 million, while total interest expense
increased by 5.4 million over the prior year.

Net Interest Margin

Tax equivalent net interest margin decreased by 32 basis points, to 4.45% for the year
ended December 31, 2007, compared to 4.78% for the prior year. The decrease in margin was
primarily due tc a 49 basis peint increase in the total cost of funds, partially offset by
a 14 basis point increase in the yield on interest earning assets. The basis point
increases were primarily due to increases in market interest rates. In addition, the
increase in cost of funds was impacted by a shift in the funding mix from lower-costing
deposits to higher-costing deposits and the utilization of higher cost funding sources to
support loan growth.

Interest Income

Total interest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $65.0 million, an increase
of $4.5 million, or 7%, over the prior year. The increase resulted primarily from an
increase in the average balance of interest earning assets of $46.7 million, or 5%, to
$936.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, and, to a lesser extent, an increase
in the average tax equivalent yield on interest earning assets of 14 basis points, to
7.05% due to the higher market interest rates during the period.

Average loan balances increased $%60.6 million, or 8%, compared to the prior year, and
amounted to $793.4 million, while the average balance of investments decreased by $14.0
million, or 9%, to $143.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.

This shift in average balances from lower yielding investments into higher yielding loans,
coupled with the higher market interest rates over the period, resulted in the increase in
the average tax equivalent yield on interest earning assets to 7.05%, with loan yields
increasing 6 basis points to 7.44% and the tax eguivalent yield realized on investments
increasing 2¢ basis points to 4.89%. Loan yields, though higher than the prior year, were
relatively flat during the first three quarters of 2007, but declined during the fourth
quarter. This is primarily a result of recent prime rate decreases that began in September
2007. Interest income on loans increased $5.0 million over the comparable year.

Investment yields have increased as a result of sales of lower yielding securities in the
fourth quarter cf 2006, as well as investments purchased in 2007 at higher market rates.
Income on investment securities and total short-term investments (together, "“investments”)
decreased $433 thougand ccompared to the pricr year.

Interest Expense

Total interest expense amounted to $24.4 million, an increase of $5.4 million compared to
the prior year. The increase resulted primarily from an increase in the average cost of
total funds, and to a lesser extent an ingrease in the average balance of total funding
sources. The average cost of total funds increased to 2.68% for the year ended December
31, 2007 compared to 2.19% in the prior year. This increase in total cost of funds was
primarily due to increased mwarket interest rates and the shift in funding mix from lower
costing deposits to higher cost funding sources. Funding costs increased during the first
three quarters of 2007, but declined slightly during the fourth quarter. This is primarily
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a result of market rate decreases that began in September 2007. Overall the average
balance of total funding sources increased 5% over the prior year.

Interest expense on interest checking, savings and money market accounts increased $1.4
million over the comparable year. This increase resulted from a 37 bagis point increase in
the average cost of these accounts to 2.02%, due to higher market interest rates,
partially offset by a reduction in the average balance of these accounts by 2% over the
prior year.

Interest expense on CDs increased $3.8 million over the prior year primarily due to an
increase in the average balance of CDs and to a lesser extent due to an increase in the
average cost of CDs. The average balance of CDs increased by $50.6 million, or 22% over
the prior year. The increase in the average CD balances resulted from a $28.4 million, or
47%, increase in the average balance of brokered CDs and a $22.1 million, or 13%, increase
in the average balance of CDs generated from bank customers. The average cost of
certificates of deposit increased 60 kasis points for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily due toc higher market rates,
consumer price sensitivity and the higher costing brokered CD balances.

Interest expense on borrowed funds, consisting of FHLB borrowings and term repurchase
agreements, increased by %180 thousand, or 20% over the prior year. The average balance
of borrowed funds, primarily FHLB borrowings, increased by $2.6 million. The average cost
of borrowed funds increased 27 basis points, to 4.94%, for the year ended December 31,
2007, due to increased market interest rates over the prior year. These market rates were
relatively flat for most of 2007 and began declining in September 2007.

The interest expense and average rate on junior subordinated debentures was $1.2 millicn
and 10.88%, respectively, for both years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

The average balance of non-interest bearing demand deposits remained relatively consistent
at $165.7 million and $166.0 million, and represented 18% and 19% of total average funding
sources for the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Non-interest bearing
demand deposits are an important component of the bank’s core funding strategy.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $1.0 million and $1.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The reduced provision reflects the continued
favorable asset quality during the period, the level of loan growth, and the low level of
charge-offs during 2007. The provision reflects management’s estimate of the loan loss
allowance necessary to support the level of credit risk inherent in the portfolio during
the period.

See “Risk Elements/Asset Quality” and “Allowance for Loan Losses” under the heading,
“Financial Condition®, in this Item 7 above, for further information regarding the
provision for loan losgses.

Non-Interest Income

Non-interest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased $3.3 million, or 48%,
compared to 2006. The primary components of the increase were increases in net gains on
sales of investment securities, deposit-service fees, investment-advisory fees, and bank-
owned life insurance income. Non-interest income, excluding net gains/losses on investment
securities, increased $1.4 million, or 20%, over the prior year.
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The following table sets forth the components of non-interest income and the related
changes for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 Change
Investment advisory fees $ 3,177 $ 2,735 $ 442
Deposit service fees 2,848 2,302 546
Bank-owned life insurance income 602 391 211
Net gains (losses) on sales of

investment securities 1,655 {204} 1,859
Gains cn sales of loans 201 147 54
Other income 1,625 1,445 180
Total non-interest income $ 10,108 $ 6,816 $ 3,292

Investment-advisory fees increased by $442 thousand, or 16%, in 2007 compared to 2006. The
change resulted from new business generated and increases in the value of the portfolio
due to increases in market values.

Deposgit-gervice fees increased by 5546 thousand, or 24%, in 2007 compared to 2006. The
increase resulted primarily from increased fee income on commercial deposit accounts
attributed to lower earnings credit rates paid, as a result of decreases in market rates
during the periecd and increased overdraft fees earned. The earnings credit rate allows
customers to earn credit on depesit balances, which are used to offset service charges.

Bank-owned life insurance income increased $211 thousand, or 54%, due primarily to income
on additional policies purchased in the second quarter of 2006.

The net gain on the sales of investment securities in 2007 and the net loss in 2006
resulted from sales of $9.% million and $19.% million, respectively, in those periods. The
realized gains in the current year resulted primarily from sales in the egquity portfolio.
The net losses realized in 2006 primarily resulted from management’s decision teo sell a
portion of lower yielding fixed income securities in December of that year.

Included in the increase in other income was 3112 thousand in purchased tax c¢redit income.
Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2007, increased $2.3 million, or 7%,
compared to 2006. The primary components of the increase were salaries and benefits and

occupancy costs.

The following table sets forth the components of non-interest expense and the related
changes for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 Change

Salaries and employee benefits 5 21,044 $ 19,169 $ 1,875
Occupancy expenses 6,470 6,095 375
Audit, legal and other professional fees 1,487 1,447 40
Advertising and public relations 1,389 1,372 17
Supplies and postage B96 874 22
Investment advisory and custcdial expenses 498 500 (2)
Other operating expenses 3,060 3,083 {23)
Total non-interest expense 5 34,844 $ 32,540 5 2,304

Salaries and benefits expense increased $1.9% million, or 10% over the prior year. The
increase primarily resulted from staffing increases necessary tc support the company’'s
strategic growth initiatives and salary adjustments. Increases in health insurance
premiums, taxes, performance based incentive compensation and employee stock compensation
expense also contributed tc the increase in salaries and benefits.

Occupancy expenses increased $375 thousand, or 6%, compared te the prior year, primarily

due to ongeing increases in maintenance and service costs, and facility expansion
necessary to support the company’s growth and strategic initiatives.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was $5.0
million and $5.3 million, respectively. The effective tax rate for the year ended December
31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was 33.8%, and 36.7%, respectively. The decrease in the
effective tax rate in 2007 as compared to 2006 is primarily due teo increased levels of
non-taxable income on certain tax-exempt investments and loans, non-taxable income on
BOLI, and the impact on state taxes of the company‘’s two security corporations that were
formed in the fourth quarter of 2007.

COMPARISON OF YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005

Unless otherwise indicated, the reported results are for the year ended December 31, 2006 with the
"comparable year” or "prior year” being the year ended December 31, 2005.

Net Income

The company had net income in 2006 of $9.2 million compared to $8.4 million for 2005, an
increase of 10%. Earnings per share for 2006 were $1.21 and $1.18 on a basic and diluted
basis, compared to $1.13 and $1.09% in 2005, increases of 7% and 8%, respectively.

Net Interest Income

The company’s net interest income was $41.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006,
an increase of $3.5 million, or 9%, over 2005. The primary driver of the increase was a
$107.4 million, or 17%, increase in average loan balances, partially offset by funding
costs rising more rapidly than asset yields during the year (i.e., net interest margin
decreased) .

Net Interest Margin

Tax eguivalent net interest margin decreased by 4 basis points, to 4.78% for the year
ended December 31, 2006, compared to 4.82% for the prior year. The decrease in margin was
due to an 83 basis point increase in the yield on interest earning assets, exceeded by a
91 basis point increase in the total cost of deposits and borrowed funds (“cost of
funds”) . The primary reason for the yield increases were higher market interest rates
during the 2006 period. The increase in cost of funds exceeded asset yields mainly due to
the flat yield curve and the timing of rate adjustments. Asset yields re-priced more
guickly than funding costs over the rising rate c¢ycle that began in mid 2004. On an
incremental basis, funding cost increases caught up to the previously realized asset yield
increases in the latter half of 2006.

Total Interest Income

Teotal interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $60.5 million, an increase
of $12.2 million, or 25%, over the prior year. The increase resulted from an increase in
the average balance of interest earning assets of $78.1 million, or 10%, to $B890.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006, and an increase in the average tax eguivalent yield
on interest earning assets of 83 basis points, to 6.91%.

Interest income on loans increased by $13.0 million, or 32%, for the year ended December
31, 2006 to $54.1 million. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the average loan balance
increased by $107.4 million, or 17%, while the average rate earned on loans increased by
81 basis points to 7.38%. The increase in leocan yield was driven by the higher market
rates, as variable rate loans indexed to Prime re-priced to the higher market rates over
the 2006 period.

Income on investment securities and total shert-term investments {together, “investments”)
declined by 5818 thousand, to $6.4 million for the vyear ended December 31, 2006. The
average balance of investments decreased by $29.3 million, or 16%, for the vyear ended
December 31, 2006, compared to the prior year, as investment cash flow was primarily
redeployed to fund lecan growth. The average tax equivalent yield on investments increased
by 26 basis points, to 4.69%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the average
tax equivalent yield of 4.43% for the prior year.
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Total Interest Expense

Total interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $1%.0 million compared to
$10.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of $8.7 million or B86%.
The increase resulted primarily from a 108 basis point increase in the average interest
rate paid on interest bearing liabilities, to 2.70%, for the year ended December 31, 2006,
and to a lesser extent, from the $69.4 million, or 11%, increase in the average balance of
interest-bearing deposits, borrowed funds and debentures, to $700.9 millien for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

Interest expense on deposits increased by $8.7 million, or 105%, to $16.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006. The average balance of savings, checking and money market
deposit accounts decreased by $22.6 million, or 5%, to $436.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, while the average interest rate paid on such deposit accounts increased
57 basis points over the prior year.

The average balance on certificates of deposit increased by $94.7 million, or 68% over the
prior year, to $234.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase resulted
from customers seeking higher rate deposgit products as interest rates rose in 2005 and
2006. Also, in late 2005 the company began to utilize brokered certificates of deposit as
an alternative funding source. The average balance in brokered certificates of deposit
increased $61.0 million in 2006 compared to 2005. The average interest rate on
certificates of deposit increased 179 basis points for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in deposit rates during the
2006 period was primarily due to higher market rates and the increased use of brokered
deposits, which are generally more rate sensitive than internally generated deposits.

Interest expense on borrowed funds, consisting of FHLB borrowings and term repurchase
agreements, increased by $93 thousand over 2005. The average balance of borrowed funds
for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased by $2.6 million, to $19.4 million. The
average cost of borrowed funds increased 98 basis points, to 4.67%, for the year ended
December 31, 2006, due to the increase in market interest rates.

The interest expense and average rate on junior subordinated debentures was $1.2 million
and 10.88%, respectively, for both years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

The average balance of non-interest bearing deposits increased by $2.5 million, or 2%, for
the year ended December 31, 2006. The total cost of funds (cost of interest bearing
liabilities and non-interest bearing deposits) was 2.19% for the year ended December 31,
2006, compared to 1.28% for the same period ended December 31, 2005.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $1.3 million and $1.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Net charge-coffs for 2006 were $369 thousand
compared to net charge-offs of $8 thousand for 2005. The provision reflects management’s
ongoing assessment of the adeguacy ©f the allowance for loan losses to support the
estimated ecredit risk in the loan portfolio, including the real estate values and economic
conditions in New England and, in particular, the Merrimack Valley and the North Central
regions of Massachusetts and South Central New Hampshire, the level of non-accrual loans,
levels of charge-offs and recoveries during the period, growth of outstanding loans and
inherent risks in the nature of the loan portfolio. Despite the growth in the company's
loan portfolic, there were no material changes to the company’s underwriting practices or
the methodology used to estimate loan loss exposure. The provision for loan losses is a
significant factor in the company's operating results.

See "Credit Risk/Asset Quality” and *“Allowance for Loan Losses” under the heading,
“Financial Condition”, in this Item 7 above, for further information regarding the
provision for loan losses.

Non-Interest Income
Non-interest income was $6.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of
$381 thousand compared to 2005. The primary components of the increase were increases in

investment advisory fees and BOLI income, partially offset by losses on sales of
investment securities.
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The following table sets forth the components of non-interest income and the related
changes for the periecds indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 Change
Investment advisory fees $ 2,735 $ 2,262 $ 473
Deposit service fees 2,302 2,158 144
Bank-owned life insurance income 391 88 303
Net gains (losses) on sales of

Investment securities (204) 191 {395)
Gains on sales of loans 147 244 (99)
Cther income 1,445 1,490 (45)
Total non-interest inceome $ 6,816 $ 6,435 % 381

Investment advisory fees increagsed by $473 thousand, or 21%, in 2006 compared to 2005. The
increase resulted from new business generated in 2006 and 2005 and an increase in fees
earned per average asset due to the company’s restructured fee schedule implemented in
mid-2005, and 401(k) referral fees of $73 thousand earned in 2006.

Income from BOLI amounted to $391 thousand and increased $303 thousand in 2006 compared to
2005. The increase resulted from a full year of activity and from additional purchases in
2006. The average balance was $58.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared
to $2.6 million for the same pericd in 2005, reflecting purchases made in 2005 and 2006.

Net gains or losses on the sales of investment securities amounted to a loss of 5204
thousand and a gain of $191 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The net loss in 2006 and net gain in 2005 resulted from sales of $19.9
million and $1.5 million, respectively, in those periods. The net losses realized in 2006
primarily resulted from management’s decision to sell a portion of the fixed income
portfolio in December based on the expectation of improving net interest income in
subsequent reporting periods through reinvestment at higher yields or through paydowns of
borrowed funds and brokered deposits.

Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense was $32.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 an increase of
$2.3 million, or 8%, compared to 2005. The primary components of the increase were
salaries and bhenefits, occcupancy costs, advertising and public relations and other
operating expenses.

The following table sets forth the components of non-interest expense and the related
changes for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

(Dellars in thousands) 2006 2005 Change

Salaries and employee benefits $ 19,169 $ 18,326 3 843
Occupancy expenses 6,085 5,537 558
Audit, legal and other professional fees 1,447 1,273 174
Advertising and public relations 1,372 875 497
Supplies and postage 874 862 12
Investment advisory and custodial expenses 500 505 {5)
Other operating expenses 3,083 2,857 22%
Total non-interest expense ] 32,540 5 30,235 S 2,305

Salaries and benefits expense totaled $19.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006,
compared with $18.3 million for 2005, an increase of $843 thousand, or 5%. The increase
wag due to additional staffing necessary to support the company’s strategic growth
initiatives, annual compensation adjustments and corresponding increases in health
insurance premiums and the additional expense related to employee stock compensation.
Performance based incentive compensation, a component of salary and benefit expense,
decreased by $1.4 million in 2006. Excluding this reduction, salary and benefit expense
increased $2.2 million, or 13%, over the prior year.
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Occupancy expenses totaled $6.1 millien, an increase of $558 thousand, or 10%, compared to
the prior year, primarily due to ongoing occupancy cost increases and facility expansion
necessary to support the company’s growth and strategic initiatives.

Advertising and public relations expense increased $497 thousand and amounted to $1.4
million in 2006. The increase resulted primarily from the company’s branding initiatives,
business development efforts and community relations.

Other operating expenses increased $226 thousand, or 8%, to $3.1 million in 2006. The
increases in this category were due primarily to the company's growth and related
increases in business development costs, courier services, staff development initiatives,
and expense related to BOLI, partially offset by reductions in ATM network/
telecommunication charges and security related expenses.

Income Tax EXpense

Income tax expense and the effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005 were $5.3 million and 36.7%, and $4.8 million and 36.1%, respectively.
The effective rates for 2006 and 2005 reflect normal activity with the decrease from the
statutory rate of 40.93% due primarily to the effect of interest income earned on tax-
exempt municipal securities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the FASE's Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus regarding
Tssue No. 06-4 (*EITF No. 06-4") “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement
Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.” The Task Force
affirmed that an employer should recognize a liability for future benefits associated with
an endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangement that provides a benefit to an
employee that extends to postretirement periods. The liability and related compensation
cost are to be determined in accordance with the appropriate previously issued financial
standards. The Task Force concluded that this Issue should be effective through either (a)
a change in accounting principle through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained
earnings or to other components of equity or net assets in the statement of financial
position as of the beginning of the year of adoption, or (b) a change in accounting
principle through retrospective application to all prior periods. The Task Force reached
a consensus that this Issue should be effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2007. Upon adoption of EITF No. 06-4, on January 1, 2008, the company recorded a
cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings of approximately $1 million. Management
has determined the effect of adoption did not have a material impact on the company’s
financial position or regulatory capital levels.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157,

“Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). This Statement provides a single definition
of fair value based on the exchange price notion and establishes a framework for measuring
fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), with the intention to

increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements. This Standard also
expands the required disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies
under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements.
Accordingly, this Statement does not require any new fair value measurements. However, for
some entities, the application of this Statement will change current practice related to
the definition of fair value, the methods used to measure fair value, and the expanded
disclosures about fair wvalue measurements. This Statement establishes a fair wvalue
hierarchy segregating fair value measurements using (Level 1) quoted market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities; (Level 2} significant other observable
inputs; (Level 3) significant unobservable inputs. The expanded disclosures focus on the
inputs used to measure fair value and the effects of the measurements on earnings within
Level 3 of the fair wvalue hierarchy. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years that
begin after November 15, 2007, and interim pericds within those fiscal years. In November
2007, the FASB proposed a one-year deferral of SFAS No. 157's fair value measurement
requirements for non-financial assets and liabilities that are not required or permitted
to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Management does not anticipate that the
adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact on the company'’s financial position
or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities - Including an Amendment for FASB Statement No. 115”7.
This Statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and
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certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by
providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused
by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex
hedge accounting provisions, This Statement allows the fair value option to be applied
to eligible items, irrevocably, on an instrument by instrument basis with unrealized gains
and losses on the instruments reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date.
SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years that begin after November 15, 2007, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. Early adopticon was permitted as of the beginning of a
fiscal year that begins on or before November 15, 2007, provided the entity also elects to
apply the provisions of SFAS No. 157. This statement permits application teo eligible
items existing at the effective date {or early adoption date). Management adopted SFAS No
159 as of January 1, 2008 and did not choose the fair wvalue option under this statement
for any assets or liabilities. The adoption did not have a material impact on the
company’'s financial position or results of cperations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141R, "Business C(Combinations”. This revised
statement replaces SFAS No. 141, “Business Combination”, but retains the fundamental
requirements in Statement 141 that the acquisition method of accounting {which Statement
141 called the purchase method) be used for all business combinations and for an acquirer
to be identified for each business combination. It also retaing the guidance in Statement
141 for identifying and recognizing intangible assets separately from goodwill. However,
SFAS 141R's scope is broader than that of Statement 141. SFAS 141R applies prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier
adoption is prohibited. For any business combinations entered into by the Company
subsequent to January 1, 2008, the Company will be reqguired to apply the guidance in SFAS
141R.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The company's asset and liability structure is substantially different from that of an
industrial company in that virtually all assets and liabilities of the company are

monetary in nature. Management believes the impact of inflation on financial results
depends upon the company's ability to react to changes in interest rates and by such
reaction, reduce the inflationary impact on performance. Interest rates do not

necessarily move in the same direction, or at the same magnitude, as the prices of other
goods and services. As discussed previously, management seeks to manage the relationship
between interest-sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide net
interegt income fluctuatioms, including those resulting from inflation.

Various information shown elsewhere in this annual report will assist in the understanding
of how well the company is positioned to react to changing interest rates and inflaticnary
trends. In particular additional information related to the net interest margin
sensitivity analysis is contained in Item 7A and other maturity and repricing information
of the company’s investment securities, certificates of deposits and borrowed funds is
contained in Item 7, “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” under the heading “Financial Condition” in this report.

51




Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Margin Sensitivity Analysis

The company's primary market risk is interest rate risk and interest rate risk management
is centered on the company's Asset-Liability Committee (“the committee”). The committee is
comprised of five outside directors of the company and three executive officers of the
company, whoe are alsc members of the board of directors. In addition, several directors
who are not on the committee rotate in on a regular basis. Annually, the committee
approves the company’s asset-liability management policy, which provides management with
guidelines for controlling interest rate risk, as measured through net interest income
gensitivity to changes in interest rates, within certain tolerance levels. The committee
also establishes and monitors guidelines for the company’s liquidity and capital ratios.

The asset-liability management strategies are reviewed on a periodic basis by management
and presented and discussed with the committee on at least a quarterly basis. The asset-
liability management strategies and guidelines are revised based on changes in interest
rate levels, general economic conditiens, competition in the marketplace, the current
interest rate risk position of the company, anticipated growth and other factors.

One of the principal factors in maintaining planned levels of net interest income is the
ability to design effective strategies to manage the impact of interest rate changes on
future net interest income. Quarterly, management completes a net interest income
sensitivity analysis, which is presented to the committee. This analysis includes a
simulation of the company’'s net interest income under various interest rate scenarios.
Variaticns in the interest rate environment affect numercus factors, including prepayment
speeds, reinvestment rates, maturities of investments (due to call provisions), and
interest rates on various asset and liability accounts.

At December 31, 2007 management considers the company's primary interest rate risk
exposure to be margin compression that may result from changes in interest rates and/or
changes in the mix of the company’s balance sheet components. Specifically, these
compcnents include fixed versus variable rate lcans and investments on the asset gide, and
higher cost deposits and borrowings versus lower cost deposits on the liability side.

Under the company’s current balance sheet position, the company's net interest margin
generally performs better in a rising rate environment, while it generally decreases when
the yield curve is flat, inverted or declining.

Under a flat yield curve scenario, margin compression occurs as the spread between the
cost of funding and the yield on interest earning assets narrows. Under this scenario the
degree of margin compression is highly dependent on the company’s ability to fund asset
growth through lower cost deposits. However, if the curve is flattening, while short-term
rates are rising, the adverse impact on margin may be somewhat delayed, as increases in
the prime rate will initially result in the company's asset yields re-pricing more quickly
than funding costs.

Under an inverted yield curve situation, shorter-term rates exceed longer-term rates, and
the impact on margin is similar but wmore adverse than the flat curve scenario. Again,
however, the extent of the impact on margin is highly dependent on the company’s balance
sheet mix.

Under a declining yield curve scenario, margin compression will eventually occur as the
yield on interest earning assets decreases more rapidly than decreases in funding costs.
The primary causes would be the impact of interest rate decreases {inciuding decreases in
the prime rate} on adjustable rate loans and the fact that decreases in deposit rates may
be limited or lag decreases in the prime rate.
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During 2007 the interest rate environment had aspects of a flat yield curve scenarioc. In
late 2007 and early 2008 the interest rate environment has shifted and the company has
begun to experience the aspects of a declining yield curve scenario. Rates on earning
assets have repriced downward, while rates on borrowings and deposits have declined at a
slower pace due to market conditions. As such, net interest margin compression may
continue intg 2008,

It should be noted that the interest rate scenarios used do not necessarily reflect
management’s view of the "most likely" change in interest rates over the next 24 months.
Furthermore, since a static balance sheet i3 assumed, the results do not reflect the
anticipated future net interest income of the company.

The following table summarizes the projected cumulative net interest income for a 24-month
period as of December 31, 2007, assuming a parallel yield curve shift and gradual interest
rate changes applied over the first twelve months.

December 31,2007

Rates Fall Rates Rates Rise
{Dollars in thousands} 200 BP Unchanged 200 BP
Interaest Earning Assets:
Leoans S 106,765 S 118,406 § 128,524
Collateralized mortgage cokligations and
other mortgage backed securities 6,959 7,016 6,725
Other investments 4,790 5,361 6,277
Total interest inccome 118,514 130,783 141,526
Interest Earning Liabilities:
Certificates of deposit 20,570 25,250 29,930
Interest bearing checking, money market, savings 12,394 16,236 20,079
Borrowed funds 5,236 7,257 9,280
Junior subordinated debentures 2,356 2,356 2,356
Total interest expense 40,556 51,089 61,645
Net interest income S 77,958 S 79,684 S 79,881

Maturity and composition information of the company’s 1loan portfolio, investment
portfolio, certificates of deposit, and borrowed funds are contained in Part I, Item 7,
*Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”,
under the captiona “Loans,” “Short-Term Investments,” “Investment Securities,” “Deposits”
and "Borrowed Funds.” Management uses this information in the simulation model along with
other information about the company's assets and liabilities. Management makes certain
prepayment assumptions based on an analysis of market «consensus and management
projections, regarding how the factors discussed above will affect the assets and
liabilities of the company as rates change. One of the more significant changes in the
anticipated maturity of assets occurs in the investment portfolio, specifically the
reaction of mortgage backed securities (including collateralized mortgage obligations) and
callable securities as rates change.
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ENTERPRISE BAMCORP, IRC,
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Lecember 31,

{Dellars in thousands) 2007
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and due from banks 5 24,8930
Short-term investments 7,788
Total cash and cash equivalents 32,718
Investment securities at falr wvalue 145,517
Loans, less allowance for leoan losses of 513,545
and $12,940 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively 820,274
Premises and equipment 19,296
Accrued interest receivable 5,777
Deferred income taxes, net 7,722
Bank-owned life insurance 12,736
Prepald expenses and other assets 1,250
Income taxes recelvable 378
Core deposit intangible, net of amortization 342
Goodwill 5,656
Total assets $ 1,057,666
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Deposits $ 868,786
Borrowed funds 81,429
Junior subordinated debentures 10,825
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,245
Income taxes payable -
Accrued interest payable 3, 369
Total liabilities 970,654
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Eguity
Preferred stock, 50.01 PAr value per share;
1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued -
Common stock $0.01 par value per share; 20,000,000 shares
authorized; 7,912,715 and 7,722,288 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively 79
Additienal paid-in capital 28,051
Retained earnings 58,527
Accumulated other comprehensive income 355
Total stockholders’ equity 87,012
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,057,666

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements.
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2006

35,583
15,304

50,887

131,540

748,173
16,015
5,464
6,861
12,212
1,976
475
5,656

979,25%

867,522
15,105
10,825

6,587
92
2,105

902,216

17
25,806
51,127

33

77,043
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ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
Interest and dividend income:
Loans S 59,065 & 54,106 § 41,083
Investment securities 5,671 5,997 6, 996
Total short-term investments 301 408 227
Total interest and dividend income 65,037 60,511 48,306
Interest expense:
Deposits 22,093 16,866 8,212
Borrowed funds 1,088 908 815
Junior subordinated debentures 1,177 1,177 1,177
Total interest expense 24,358 18,951 10,204
Net interest income 40, 67% 41,560 38,102
Provision for lcan losses 1,000 1,259 1,135
Net interest income after provision for
loan losses 39,679 40,301 36,967
Non-interest income:
Investment advisory fees 3,177 2,735 2,262
Depcsit service fees 2,848 2,302 2,158
Bank-owned life insurance 602 391 88
Net gains (losses) on sales of investment
Securities 1,60h% (204) 191
Gains on sales of loans 201 147 246
Other income 1,625 1,445 1,490
Total non-interest income 10,108 6,816 6,435
Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 21,044 19,169 18,326
Occupancy expenses 65,470 6,065 5,537
Audit, legal and other professicnal fees 1,487 1,447 1,273
Advertising and public relations 1,389 1,372 875
Supplies and postage 896 874 862
Investment adviscry and custodial expenses 498 500 505
Other operating expenses 3,060 3,083 2,857
Total non-interest expense 34,844 32,540 30,235
Income before income taxes 14,943 14,577 13,167
Income tax expense 5,045 5,343 4,753
Net income 5 9,898 S 9,234 § 8,414
Basic earnings per share $ 1.27 S 1.21 § 1.13
Diluted earnings per share 5 1.25 § 1.18 § 1.09
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 7,819,160 7,661,178 7,468,498
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 7,913,006 7,821,297 7,690,526

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 9,898 s 9,234 § 8,414

Adjustments toc reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Provision for loan losses 1,000 1,259 1,135
Depreciation and amortization 2,490 2,571 2,652
Amortization of intangible assets 133 133 133
Stock-based compensation expense 573 459 215
Mortgage loans criginated for sale (20,49¢6) (16,0%4) (23,112)
Proceeds from mortgage loans sold 20,978 15,959 23,192
Gains on sales of loans (201) {147) (246)
Net (gains)losses on sales ¢f investments {1l,655) 204 {191)
Income cn bank-owned life insurance, net (548) (339) (87)
Change in income taxes 1,103 840 852
Tax benefit from exercise of stcck opticns - - 104
{Increase} decrease in:
Accrued interest receivable (313) {576) (1,259
Prepaid expenses and other assets (4,631) 416 5,236
Deferred income taxes (1,084) {1,009) (603)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (362) 1,838 1,985
Accrued interest payable 1,264 933 432
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,149 15, 681 18,852
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net decrease in other short-term investments - - 8,200
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 11,562 19,713 1,677
Proceeds from maturities, calls and pay-downs of
investment securities 15,872 20,145 39,739
Purchase of investment securities (39,235) (14,340} {14,213}
Purchase of tax credits {1,735) - (1,468)
Net increase in loans (73,648) (61,474) (129,109)
Additions to premises and equipment, net (5,920) {6,945) (2,007
Net withdrawals/ (purchases) of bank-owned life insurance 24 {7,996) (1,878)
Net cash used in investing activities {93,080 (50,897 {99,05%)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in deposits 1,284 92,135 6,743
Net increase {decrease) in borrowed funds 66,324 (43,534) 54, 988
Cash dividends paid (2,498) {2,141} (1,788)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 1,058 944 871
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 598 296 504
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 16 22 -
Net cash provided by financing activities 66,762 47,722 61,318
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (18,169) 12,506 (18,8885)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vyear 50,887 38,381 57,270
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 32,718 $ 50,887 S 38,381

Supplemental financial data:

Cash Paid For: Interest $ 24,358 § 18,018 § 9,772
Inceome taxes 5,013 5,500 4,447

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing activity:
Transfer from loans to other real estate cwned 266 - -

See accompanving notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ENTERFRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Ceonsolidated Financial Statements
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. (the “company”)
include the accounts of the company and its wholly owned subsidiary Enterprise Bank
and Trust Company {the “bank”). The bank is a Massachusetts trust company organized
in 1989. Substantially all of the company’s operations are c¢onducted through the
bank.

The bank has five wholly owned subsidiaries. The bank’s subsidiaries include

Enterprise Insurance Services, LLC and Enterprise Investment Services, LLC, organized
for the purposes of engaging in insurance sales activities and offering non-deposit
investment products and services, respectively. In additien, the bank has three
subsidiary security corporations {Enterprise Security Corporation, Enterprise
Security Corporation II, and Enterprise Security Cerporaticn III), which heold various
types of qualifying securities. The security cerporations are limited to conducting
securities investment activities that the bank itself would be allowed to conduct
under applicable laws.

Through the kank and its subsidiaries, the company offers a range of commercial and
consumer loan products, deposit and cash management products, investment advisory
services, trust and insurance services. The services offered through the bank and
subsidiaries are managed as one strategic unit and represent the company’s only
reportable operating segment.

The company's deposit accounts are insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corpcration (the "FDIC") up to the maximum amount provided
by law. The FDIC and the Massachusetts Commissioner of Banks (the "Commissioner™}
have regulatory authority over the bank.

The business and operations of the company are subject to the regulatory oversight of
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System {the “Federal Reserve Board”).
The Commissioner also retains supervisory jurisdiction cver the company.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported values of assets and liabilities at the balance

sheet date and income and expenses for the years then ended. Actual results,
particularly regarding the estimate of the allowance for leoan losses, may differ from
these estimates. |

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

(b} Reclassification

Certain amounts in previous years’ financial statements have been reclassified to
conferm to the current year’s presentation.

(c} Short-term Investment Securities

The company utilizes short-term investments to earn returns on short-term excess
liquidity. The company’s short-term investments may consist of investments carried as
both cash equivalents and non-cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are defined as
short-term highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are so near their maturity date that they present insignificant

risk of changes in value due to changes 1in interest rates. The company’s cash
equivalent short-term investments may be comprised of overnight and term federal
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ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Conscolidated Financial Statements

funds sold, money market mutual funds and discount U.S$S. agency notes with original
maturities of less than ninety days. Short-term investments not carried as cash
equivalents would be classified as “other short-term investments”. The company had no
“other short-term investments” at December 31, 2007 or 2006.

(d} Investment Securities

Investment securities that are intended to be held for indefinite periods of time hut
which may not be held to maturity or on a long-term basis are considered to be
“available for sale” and are carried at fair value. Net unrealized appreciation and
depreciation on investments available for sale, net of applicable income taxes, are
reflected as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. Included as
available for sale are securities that are purchased in connection with the company's
asset-liability risk management strategy and that may be scld in response to changes
in interest rates, resultant prepayment risk and other related factors. In instances
where the company has the positive intent to hold to maturity, investment securities
will be classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost. The bank is
required to purchase Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston ("FHLB") stock in association
with outstanding advances from the FHLB; this stock is classified as a restricted
investment and carried at cost.

As of the balance sheet dates all of the company's investment securities (with the
exception of restricted FHLB stock) were classified as available for sale and carried
at fair wvalue. The company regularly reviews the portfolle for securities with
unrealized losses that are other than temporarily impaired. Management’s assessment
includes evaluating the credit quality of the issuer, if any equity securities
exhibit fundamental deterioration and whether it is unlikely that the security will
completely recover its unrealized loss. If a decline in market value of a security is
considered other than temporary, the cost basis of the individual security is written
down to market value and the 1leoss is charged to net gains (losses) on sales of
investment securities.

Investment securities’ discounts are accreted and premiums are ameortized over the
period of estimated principal repayment using methods that approximate the interest
method.

Gains or losses on the sale of investment securities are recognized on the trade date
on a specific identification basis.

(e) Loans

Loans made by the company to businesses include commercial mortgage loans,
construction and land development loans, secured and unsecured commercial loans and
lines of credit, and standby letters of credit. The company also originates
equipment lease financing for Dbusinesses. Loans made to individuals include
conventional residential mortgage loans, home eguity lecans, residential construction
lcans on primary residences, secured and unsecured personal loans and lines of
credit. Most loans granted by the company are collateralized by real estate or
equipment and/or are guaranteed by the principals of the borrower. The ability and
willingness of the single family residential and consumer borrowers to honor their
repayment commitments is generally dependent on the level of overall economic
activity and real estate values within the borrowers' geographic areas. The ability
and willingness of commercial real estate, commercial and construction lcan borrowers
to honor their repayment commitments is generally dependent on the health cf the real
estate sector in the borrowers' geographic areas and the general economy, among other
factors.
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ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of deferred corigination
fees and costs. Loan origination fees received, offset by direct loan origination
costs, are deferred and amortized using the straight line method over three to five
years for lines of credit and demand notes or over the life of the related loans
using the level-yield method for all other types of loans. When loans are paid off,
the unamortized fees and costs are recognized as an adjustment to interest income.

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of aggregate amortized cost or market
value. All lcans sold to date have been sold without recourse. When loans are sold
a gain or loss is recognized to the extent that the sales proceeds plus unamortized
fees and costs exceed or are less than the carrying value of the loans. Gains and
losses are determined using the specific identification method.

Leans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated as non-
accrual loans. Accrual of interest on lecans 1is discontinuved when a loan becomes
contractually past due, with respect to interest or principal, by ninety days for
real estate loans and generally sixty days for all other loans, or when reasonable
doubt exists as to the full and timely collection of interest or principal. When a
loan 1is placed on non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued but not
collected is reversed against current period interest income. Interest accruals are
resumed on such loans only when payments are brought current and when, in the
judgment of management, the c¢ollectability of both prinecipal and interest is
reasonably assured. Interest payments received on loans in a nen-accrual status are
generally applied to principal.

The company accounts for impaired loans in accordance with the terms of SFAS 114.
Impaired loans are individually significant loans for which management cecnsiders it
probable that not all amounts due in accordance with original contractual terms will
be collected. The majority of impaired loans are included within the non-accrual
balances; however, not every loan 1in non-accrual status has been designated as
impaired. Management does not set any minimum delay of payments as a factor in
reviewing for impaired classification. Management considers the payment status, net
worth and earnings potential of the borrower, and the value and cash flow of the
collateral as factors to determine 1f a lecan will be paid in accordance with its
contractual terms. When a loan is deemed to be impaired, management estimates the
credit loss by comparing the loan’s carrying value against either 1)} the present
value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the lcan's effective interest
rate; 2) the loan’s observable market price; or 3) the expected realizable fair value
of the collateral, in the case of collateral dependent loans. A specific allowance
is assigned to the impaired loan up to the amount of estimated credit loss. Impaired
loans are charged off, in whole or in part, when management believes that the
recorded investment in the loan is uncollectible,

Impaired leoans exclude large groups of smaller-bhalance homogeneous loans, such groups
may include residential mortgage lecans and consumer loans, that are collectively
evaluated for impairment, lecans that are measured at fair walue and leases as defined
in SFAS Ne. 114.

Loans are designated as “restructured” when a concession is made on a credit as a
result of financial difficulties of the borrower. Typically, such concessions
consist of a reduction in interest rate to a below market rate, taking into account
the credit quality of the note, or a deferment of payments, principal or interest,
which materially alters the bank’s position or significantly extends the note’s
maturity date, such that the present value of cash flows to be received is materially
less than those contractually established at the loan’s origination. Restructured
loans are generally included in the impaired loan category.




ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Real estate acquired by the company through foreclosure proceedings or the acceptance
of a deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as Other Real Estate Cwned (“OREC"),
When property is acquired, it is recorded at the lesser of the loan’s remaining
principal balance or the estimated fair wvalue of the property acquired, less
estimated costs to sell. Any loan balance in excess of the estimated realizable fair
value on the date of transfer is charged to the allowance for loan losses on that
date. All costs incurred thereafter in maintaining the property, as well as
subsequent declines in fair value are charged to non-interest expense.

(f}) Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of credit losses inherent in the loan
portfolico. The company’s allowance is accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 114,
as amended by SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan-Income
Recognition and Disclosures”, and SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingenciesg”. The
allowance for loan losses is established through a provisicn for loan losses, a
direct charge to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when
management believes that the collectability of the lean principal is unlikely.
Recoveries on loans previcusly charged off are credited to the allowance. The
company maintains the allowance at a level that it deems adeguate to absorb all
reasonably anticipated losses from specifically known and other <¢redit risks
associated with the portfclio.

The company uses a systematic process to measure the amount of estimated loan loss
exposure inherent in the portfelio for purpeses of establishing a sufficient
alliowance for loan losses. The methodoclogy makes use of specific reserves for lcans
individually evaluated and deemed impaired and general reserves fcr larger groups of
hemogeneous loans which rely on a combination of gualitative and quantitative factors
that could have an impact on the credit guality of these groups, including
historical charge-off and recovery experience, the growth, composition and size of
the loan portfolic, trends in delinquencies and non-performing lecans, the strength of
the local and natiocnal economy, interest rates and other changes in the portfolio.

The company’s credit risk management function focuses on a wide variety of factors,
including, among others, current and expected economic conditions, the real estate
market, the financial condition of borrowers, the ability of borrowers to adapt to
¢hanging conditions or circumstances affecting their business and the continuity of
bporrowers’ management teams. Early detection of credit issues 1is critical to
minimize credit losses. Accordingly, management regularly monitors these factors,
among others, through ongoing credit reviews by the credit department, an external
loan review service, reviews by members of senior management and the Loan Committee
of the board of directors. Loans which are evaluated to be of weaker credit quality
are considered “classified” and are reviewed on a more regular basis by management.

Individual commercial loans deemed to be impaired are analyzed for loss exposure
using one of the acceptable methods prescribed in the SFAS 114, while portfolios of
more homogencus populations of loans, such as residential mortgages and consumer
loans, are analyzed at a group level.

On a quarterly basis, the company prepares an estimate of the necessary reserves.
Except for loans specifically identified as impaired, the estimate is a two-tiered
approach that allocates loan loss reserves to “classified” loans by credit rating and
to nen-classified loans by credit type. The general lcss allocations take into
account the quantitative and qualitative factors identified akove.
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ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is reviewed and evaluated on a regular
basis by an internal management committee, a sub-committee of the board of directors
and the full board itself.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses 1is adequate to absorb
reasonably anticipated losses from specifically known and other credit risks
associated with the loan portfolic as of the balance sheet dates. Arriving at an
appropriate level of allowance for loan losses involves a high degree of management
judgment. While management uses available informaticn te recognize losses on loans,
future additions to the allowance may be necessary. In addition, wvarious regulatory
agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
company's allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the company to
recognize additions to the allowance based on Jjudgments different from those of
management.

(g) Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Depreciation or amortization 1is computed on a
straight-line basis over the lesser of the estimated useful lives of the asset or the
respective lease term (with reascnably assured renewal options) for leasehold
improvements as follows:

Buildings, renovations and leasehold improvements 10 to 39 years
Computer software and equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and eguipment 3 to 7 years

(h) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Other than Goodwill

The company reviews long-lived assets, including premises and equipment, for
impairment on an ongoing basis or whenever events or changes in business
circumstances indicate that the remaining useful life may warrant revision or that

the carrying amount of the long-lived asset may not be fully recoverable. it
impairment is determined to exist, any related impairment loss is recognized through
a charge to earnings. Impairment losses on assets disposed of, if any, are based on

the estimated proceeds to be received, less cost of disposal.
(1) Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible Assets

Goodwill and core deposit intangibles carried on the company’s consolidated financial
statements were $5.7 million and $342 thousand, respectively, at December 31, 2007
and $5.7 million and $475 thousand, respectively, at December 31, 2006. Both of these
assets are related to the company’s acquisition of two branch offices in July 2000.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the company does not
amortize goodwill and instead, at least annually, evaluates whether the carrying
value of goodwill has become impaired. Impairment of the goodwill occurs when the
estimated fair wvalue of the company is less than its recorded value., A determination
that goodwill has become impaired results in immediate write-down of goodwill to its
determined value with a resulting charge teo operations,

The annual impairment test is a two-step process used to identify potential goodwill
impairment and measure the amount of gcodwill impairment loss to be recognized, if
any. The first step of the goodwill impairment test, used to identify potential
impairment, compares the fair wvalue of the reporting unit (in this case, the company)
with its carrying amount, or the book wvalue of the reporting unit, including
goodwill. If the fair wvalue of the reporting unit equals or exceeds its book value,
goodwill is considered not impaired, and the second step of the impairment test is
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ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

unnecessary. The second step, if necessary, measures the amount of goodwill
impairment leoss te¢ be recognized. The reporting unit must determine fair values for
all assets and liabilities, excluding geoodwill. The net of the assigned fair value
of assets and liabilities is then compared te the book value of the reporting unit,
and any excess book value becomes the implied fair value of goodwill. If the
carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds the newly calculated implied fair value of
that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in the amount required to write down
the goodwill to the implied fair wvalue.

The company’s consclidated financial statements also include intangible assets (core
deposit intangibles), which are amortized to expense over their estimated useful life
of ten years and reviewed for impairment on an ongoing basis or whenever events or
changes in business circumstances warrant a review of the carrying wvalue. If
impairment is determined to exist, the related write-down of the intangible asset’s
carrying value is charged to operations. Accumulated amortization expense related to
core deposit intangible asset was $992 thousand at December 31, 2007. Amortization
expense is expected to amcunt to $133 thousand for each of the years ended December
31, 2008 and 2009, and $77 thousand in 2010.

Based on these impairment reviews the company determined that goodwill and core
deposit intangible assets were not impaired at December 31, 2007.

(i} Income Taxes

The company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes,
Under this method deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at currently
enacted income tax rates applicable to the peried in which the deferred tax assets or
liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates
are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities will be adjusted accordingly through
the provision for income taxes.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB
Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - An
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 was adopted on January
1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material impact on the company’s

financial position or results of operation.

The company’s policy is to classify interest resulting from underpayment of income
taxes as income tax expense in the first period the interest would begin accruing
according to the provisions of the relevant tax law. The company classifies
penalties resulting from underpayment of income taxes as income tax expense in the
period for which the company claims or expects to c¢laim an uncertain tax position or
in the period in which the company’s judgment changes regarding an uncertain tax
position. .

The company did not have any unrecocgnized tax benefits accrued as income tax
liabilities or receivables or as deferred tax items at December 31, 2007 or December
31, 200se. The Company’s tax years beginning after December 31, 2004 are open to
federal and state income tax examinations.

(k) Investment Assets Under Management

Securities and other property held in a fiduciary or agency capacity are not included
in the consolidated balance sheets because they are not assets of the company.
Investment assets under management, consisting of assets managed by the investment
advisory group and the commercial sweep product, totaled $573.6 million and $502.1
million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Fee income 1is reported on an
accrual basis.
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ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.

Notes Lo Consclidated Financial Statements

(1) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per
share reflects the effect on weighted average shares outstanding of the number of
additional shares outstanding if dilutive stock options were converted into common
stock using the treasury stock method.

The table belew presents the increase in average shares outstanding, using the
treasury stock method, for the diluted earnings per share calculation for the years
ended December 3lst and the effect of those shares on earnings:

2007 2006 2005

Basic weighted average

common shares outstanding 7,819,160 7,661,178 7,468,498
Dilutive shares 93,846 160,119 222,028
Diluted weighted average

common shares outstanding 7,813,006 7,821,297 7,690,526
Basic Earnings per share 5 1.27 $ 1.21 § 1.13
Effect of dilutive shares {0.02) (0.03) (0.04)
Diluted Earnings per share $ 1.25 5 1.18 $ 1.09

At December 31, 2007 and 2006 there were 526,281 and 16,000 outstanding stock
options, respectively, which were excluded from the calculations of diluted earnings
per share above, due to the exercise price exceeding the average market price. These
options, which were not dilutive as of the calculation date, may potentially dilute
earnings per share in the future.

{m}) Stock Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the company accounted for stock-based compensation plans
using the intrinsic value method under which no compensation cost was recorded if, at
the grant date, the exercise price of the options was equal t¢ or greater than the
fair market value of the company's common stock. Accordingly, pricr to 2006, the
company did not record compensation cost related to stock option awards. However,
the company supplementally disclosed pro forma net income and earnings per share
amcunts as if the fair wvalue based method of accounting had been applied to its
stock-based compensation.

Cn January 1, 2008, the company adopted Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R)
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R}”}, using the modified version of the prospective
application method. Pursuant to this transiticn method, beginning in 2006 the
company’s financial statements include stock-based compensation expense for the
portion of stock option awards, net of estimated forfeitures, outstanding on January
1, 2006 and opticns issued subsequent to January 1, 2006, for which the requisite
service has been rendered during the period. The compensation expense has been
estimated based on the grant-date fair value estimate of the awards as calculated
under the original provisions of SFAS 123 for previous pro forma disclosures and
under the provisions of 123(R) for opticns issued subsequent to January 1, 2006. The
company will recognize the remaining estimated compensation expense for the portion
of outstanding awards and compensation expense for any future awards, net of
estimated forfeitures, as the requisite service is rendered (i.e., on a straight-line
basis over the remaining vesting period of each grant).
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{n) Reporting Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as all changes to equity except investments by and
distributions to stockhelders. Net income is one component of comprehensive income,
with other components referred to in the aggregate as other comprehensive income.
The company’s only other comprehensive income component is the net unrealized holding
gains or losses on investments available for sale, net of deferred income taxes.

(o) Derivatives

The company recegnizes all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in its balance
sheet and measures those instruments at fair market value. Depending on the current
interest rate environment, management projections of future interest rates and the
overall asset-liability management program of the company, management may elect to
sell those fixed and adjustable rate residential mortgage leans which are eligible
for sale in the secondary market, or hold this residential loan production for the
company's portfolio. The company generally does not poel mortgage loans for sale but
instead sells the lsans on an individual basis. The company may retain or sell the

servicing when selling these loans. Interest rate lock commitments related to the
origination of mortgage loans that will be sold are considered derivative
instruments. The company estimates the fair value of these derivatives using the

difference between the guaranteed interest rate in the commitment and the current
market interest rate. To reduce the net interest rate exposure avising from its loan
sale activity, the company enters into the commitment to sell these loans at
essentially the same time that the interest rate lock commitment is queted on the
origination of the loan. The commitments to sell lecans are also considered derivative
instruments, with estimated fair values based on changes in current market rates.
At December 31, 2007, the estimated fair wvalue of the company’s derivative
instruments were considered toc be immaterial.

{p} Recent Accounting Pronouncements

in September 2006 the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus regarding

Issue No. 06-4 (“"EITF No. 06-4”) “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split Deollar Life Insurance
Arrangements.” The Task Force affirmed that an employer should recegnize a liability

for future benefits associated with an endorsement split-dollar 1life insurance
arrangement that provides a benefit to an employee that extends to postretirement
periods. The liability and related compensation cost are to be determined in
accordance with the appropriate previcusly issued financial standards. The Task Force
concluded that this Issue should be effective through either {a) a change in
accounting principle through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings or
to other components of equity or net assets in the statement of financial position as
of the beginning of the year of adoption, or (b) a change in accounting principle
through retrospective application to all prior periods. The Task Force reached a
consensus that this Issue should be effective for fiscal vyears beginning after
December 15, 2007. Upon adoption of EITF No. 06-4, on January 1, 2008, the company
recorded a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings of approximately S1
million. Management has determined the effect of adoption did not have a material
impact on the company’s financial position or regulatory capital levels.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
157, “Fair Value Measurements” {"SFAS No. 157%). This Statement provides a single
definition of fair value based on the exchange price notion and establishes a
framework for measuring fair wvalue in generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP), with the intention to increase consistency and comparability in fair value
measurements. This Standard also expands the required disclosures about fair wvalue
measurements. This Statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that
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require or permit fair value measurements. Accordingly, this:- Statement does not
require any new fair value measurements. However, for some entities, the application
of this Statement will change current practice related to the definition of fair
vaiue, the methods used to measure fair value, and the expanded disclosures about
fair wvalue measurements. This Statement establishes a fair value hierarchy
segregating fair value measurements using (Level 1) quoted market prices in active
markets Zor identical assets or liabilities; {Level 2) significant other observable

inputs; (Level 3) significant unobservable inputs. The expanded disclosures focus on
the inputs used to measure fair value and the effects of the measurements on earnings
within Level 3 of the fair wvalue hierarchy. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal

years that begin after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal
years. In November 2007, the FASB proposed a one-year deferral of SFAS No. 157's
fair value measurement reguirements for non-financial assets and liabilities that are
not required or permitted to be measured at fair wvalue on a recurring basis.
Management does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material
impact on the company’s financial position or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASBE issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial

Assets and Financial Liakilities - Including an Amendment for FASB Statement No.
115”7, This Statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair wvalue. The objective is to improve

financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility
in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently
without having te apply complex hedge accounting provisions. This Statement allows
the fair value option to be applied to eligible items, irrevocably, on an instrument
by instrument basis with unrealized gains and losses on the instruments reported in
earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal
years that begin after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal
years, Early adoption was permitted as of the beginning of a fiscal year that
begins on or before Nevember 15, 2007, provided the entity also elects to apply the
provisiocns of SFAS No. 157. This statement permits application to eligible items
existing at the effective date (or early adoption date). Management adopted SFAS
No. 153 as of January 1, 2008 and did not choose the fair value option under this
statement for any assets or liabilities. The adoption did not have a material impact
on the company’s financial position or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business Combinations”. This
revised statement replaces SFAS No. 141, “Business Combination”, but retains the
fundamental requirements in SFAS No. 141 that the acquisition method of accounting
{(which Statement 141 called the purchase method) be wused for all business
combinations and fer an acquirer to be identified for each business combination. It
also retains the guidance in SFAS No. 141 for identifying and recognizing intangible
assets separately from goodwill. However, SFAS No. 141R’'s scope is broader than that
of SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual repcrting
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is prohibited. For
any business comblnations entered into by the Company subsequent to January 1, 2009,
the Company will be required to apply the guidance in SFAS No. 141R.
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The contractual maturity distribution of total fixed income securities at December
31, 2007 is as follows:

Amortized Fair

{Dollars in thousands) cost Parcent Value Percent
Within one year $ 8,418 5.3% $ 8,403 6.2%
After one but within three vyears 19,016 14.2% 19,038 14.1%
After three but within five years 14,406 10.7% 14,495 10.8%
After five but within ten years 38,477 28.6% 38,836 28.8%
After ten years 53,971 40.2% 54,038 40.1%

Total fixed income securities $ 134,288 100.0%  § 134,814 100.0%

Scheduled contractual maturities may not reflect the actual maturities of the
investments. CMO/MBS are shown at their final maturity but are expected to have
shorter average lives due teo principal prepayments. Included in municipal securities
and federal agency obligations are investments that can be called prier to final
maturity with amortized cost and fair wvalues of $52.5 million and $53.1 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2007.

At December 231, 2007, securities with a fair wvalue of $22.5 million were pledged as
cellateral for various municipal deposit accounts and repurchase agreements (note 7)
and securities with a fair wvalue of $2.0 million were pledged as collateral for
treasury, tax and loan deposits. At December 31, 2006, securities with a fair value
of $25.1 million and $2.0 million were pledged as collateral for municipal deposit
accounts and repurchase agreements, and treasury tax and loan deposits, respectively.
At December 31, 2005, securities with a fair value of $12.5 millien and $1.9 million
were pledged as ccllateral for municipal depesit accounts and repurchase agreements,
and treasury tax and loan deposits, respectively.

Securities designated as gualified collateral for FHLB borrowing capacity amounted to
$54.2 million, $46.2 million and $81.2 million at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Sales of investment securities for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
are summarized as follows:

{(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Amortized cost of securities sold $ 9,908 $ 19,917 $ 1,486
Gross realized gains on sales 1,674 149 246
Gross realized losses on sales {19} {353) {55)
Total proceeds from sales of investment
securities $ 11,563 8 19,713 $ 1,677

Tax exempt interest earned on the municipal securities portfolio was $2.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2007 and $2.0 million for each of the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Loans and Loans Held for Sale

Major classifications of loans and loans held for sale at December 31, are as
follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Real estate:
Commercial real estate 3 406,410 $ 368,621
Commercial construction 112,671 114,078
Residential mortgages 73,933 61,854
Residential construction 4,12¢ 3,981
Loans held for sale 268 549
Total real estate 597, 402 549,083
Commercial and industrial 188,866 164,865
Home equity 44,292 44,038
Consumer 4,493 4,307
Gross loans 835,053 762,293
Deferred loan origination fees, net {1,234) (1,180)
Total loans 833,819 761,113
Allowance for loan losses ({13,545) (12, 940)
Net loans and loans held for sale $ 820,274 & 748,173

Directors, officers, principal stockholders and their associates are credit customers
of the company in the normal course of business. All loans and commitments included
in such transactions are on such terms, including interest rates, repayment terms and
collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with persons
who are not affiliated with the bank and do not invelve more than a normal risk of
collectibilty or present other features unfavorable to the bank.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding loan balances to directors,
officers, principal stockholders and their associates were $13.9 million and $10.0
million, respectively. Unadvanced portions of lines of credit available to directors
and officers were $3.1 million and $3.2 million, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. During 2007, new loans and net increases in loan balances or lines of
credit under existing commitments of $4.8 million were made and principal paydowns of
$914 thousand were received. Aall loans to these related parties are current,

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the company was servicing residential mortgage loans
owned by investors amounting to $14.1 millien and $13.5 million, respectively.
Additionally, the company was servicing commercial loans participated out to various
other institutions amounting to $6.8 million and $8.2 million at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

First lien 1-4 family residential mortgage loans designated as qualified collateral
for FHLE borrowing capacity amounted to $58.2 million and $42.5 million at December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In 2007, the company increased its FHLB borrowing
capacity by pledging additional commercial real estate, home equity and multi-family
loans as collateral to the FHLB. The additional commercial real estate, home equity
and multi-family lcan balances pledged at December 31, 2007 amounted to $161.1
million.
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Non-performing assets at December 31 are summarized as follows:

{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Commercial real estate S 2,161 8 716
Commercial and industrial 1,124 980
Commercial construction 372 -
Residential 263 72
Consumer & 17
Total non-accrual loans 5 3,956 S 1,785
Accruing loans > 90 days past due - 7
Other real estate owned 200 -
Total non-performing assets $ 4,156 $ 1,792

There were no commitments to lend additional funds to those borrowers whose loans
were classified as neon-accrual at December 31, 2007 or 2006.

The reduction in interest income for the years ended December 31, assoclated with
non-accruing leans is summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Income in accordance with original lcan terms $ 423 3 259 5 210

Less inccme recognized 32 64 32
Reduction in interest income 3 391§ 195 3§ 178

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, total impaired loans were 54.0 million and §1.8
million, respectively. The increase since December 2006 was mainly due to the
addition of four commercial relationships added to non-accrual during the year.
Impaired lcans included in non-accrual balances were $3.9 millicn and $1.7 millien as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Accruing impaired loans amounted to $75
thousand and $80 thousand at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In the opinicn
of management, impaired loans totaling $195% thousand regquired specific reserve
allccations of $195 thousand and impaired loans of $3.8 millien reguired no specific
reserve allocations at December 31, 2007, In the ¢pinion of management, there were
no impaired loans requiring specific reserve allccations at December 31, 2006.

During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the average recorded value
of impaired loans was $3.1 million, $1.8 millien and $1.8 million, respectively.
Included in the reduction in interest income in the table above is $384 thousand,
$178 thousand and 5174 thousand of interest income that was not recognized on loans
that were deemed impaired as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. All
payments received on impaired loans in non-accrual status are applied to principal.
The company is not committed to lend additional funds on any loans that are
considered impaired.

Changes in the allowance for lcan losses for the years ended December 31, are
summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year $ 12,940 5 12,050 5 10,923
Provision charged to coperations 1,000 1,259 1,135
Loan recoveries 256 210 119
Loans charged off (651) {579) (127)
Balance at end of year S 13,545 § 12,940 § 12,050
72
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Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment at December 31 are summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Land $ 2,833 § 1,374
Buildings, renovations and leasehold improvements 18,499 16,215
Computer software and equipment 9,470 8,809
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7,366 6,531
Total premises and equipment, before accumulated

depreciaticon 38,168 32,929

Less accumulated depreciation (18,872) {16,914)

Total premises and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation $ 19,296 § 16,015

The company is obligated under various nen-cancelable operating leases, some of which
provide for periodic adjustments. At December 31, 2007 mirnimum lease payments for

these operating leases were as fallows'!:

(Dollars in thousands)

Payable in:

2008 $ 731
2009 483
2G10 416
2011 287
2012 266
Thereafter 2,523

Total minimum lease payments $ 4,706

(1)In addition, on January 1, 2008, the company entered into a lease agreement for a
planned branch location in Derry, NH, which calls for total lease payments of
approximately $733 over the next ten years.

Total rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to
$991 thousand, $1.0 million, and $862 thousand, respectively.

Accrued Interest Receivable

Accrued interest receivable consists of the following at December 31:

{(Dcllars in thousands) 2007 2006
Investments $ 338 § 840
Loans and loans held for sale 4,839 4,624

Total accrued interest receivable £ 5,777 S 5,464
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Deposits

Deposits at December 31 are summarized as follows:

{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Non-interest demand deposits $ 167,039 $ 169,910
Interest bearing checking 160,668 179,533
Savings 139,945 141,734
Money market 126,782 125,052
Certificates of deposit less than $100,000 102,358 35,651
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more 101,299 90,698
Brokered certificates of deposit 70,685 64,944
Total deposits 5 868,786 $ 867,522

The aggregate amount of overdrawn deposits that have been reclassified as lecan
balances were 6450 thousand and $506 thousand at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

The following table shows the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit with
balances less than $100,000 and greater than $100,000 at December 31, 2007:

Less $100,000

than and
(Dollars in thousands) $100,000 Greater Total
Due in less than three months'! $ 73,496 $ 47,567 $ 121,063
Due in over three through twelve months'" 86,077 46,789 132,866
Due in over one year through two years 11,158 6,024 17,182
Due in over two vyears through three years 2,322 919 3,241
Due in over three years - - -

Total certificates of deposit $ 173,053 $ 101,299 $ 274,352

(1) The line items “Pue in less than three months” and “Due in over three through twelve
months” include individual brokered certificates of deposit totaling $38.3 million and
$32.4 million, respectively, in the less than $100,000 category.

Interest expense on certificates of deposit with balances of $100,000 or more
zmounted to $4.4 million, $3.2 million, and $1.3 millien, in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.
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Borrowed Funds and Debentures

Berrowed funds and debentures at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average

{(Dollars in thousands) Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Securities sold under

agreements to repurchase $ 8,267 4.60% S 4,835 4,82% $ 706 1.90%
Federal Home Loan Bank

of Boston borrowings 73,162 3.64% 10,270 5.20% 57,933 4.17%

Total borrowed funds 81,429 3.74% 15,105 5.08% 58,639 4.14%
Junior subordinated

debentures 10,825 10.88% 10,825 10.88% 10,825 10.88%

Total borrowed funds and

debentures $ 92,254 4.,57% § 25,930 7.50% $ 69,464 5.19%

Repurchase agreements for securities sold as of December 31, 2007 had terms ranging
generally from one to six months, with a weighted average term of 72 days. Maximum
amounts outstanding at any month end during 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $8.3 million,
$6.7 million, and $6.4 million, respectively.

FHLB borrowings at December 31, 2007 consisted of overnight borrowings, short-term
borrowings with a weighted average term of 11 months, and ¢one term advance maturing
in 5.5 years. Maximum amounts outstanding at any month end during 2007, 2006, and
2005 were $73.2 million, $31.9 million, and $59.0 million, respectively.

The contractual maturity distribution as of December 31, 2007, of borrowed funds with
the weighted average cost for each category is set forth below:

Overnight Under 1 month »1 - 3 menths »3 - 12 months Over 12 months
{Dollars in Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Repurchase 5 - - § 2,150 5.00% $§ 6,050 4.48% $ 67 3.00% $ - -
FHLB 45,830 3.00% - - 362 5.36% 26,500 4.68% 470 5.94%

Total borrowed
funds $ 45,830 3.00% $§ 2,150 5.00% $§ 6,412 4.53% 526,567 4.68% § 470  5.94%
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The following table summarizes the average balance and average rate paid for

securities sold under agreements to repurchase and FHLB borrowings for the year ended
December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average Average Average Average
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Repurchase agreements $ 3,464 4,54% $ 2,325 4.41% § 2,823 2.59%
FHLB advances 18, 547 5.02% 17,100 4.71% 12,250 3.85%
Total $ 22,011 4.94% 5 19,425 4.67% § 22,073 3.69%

As a member of the FHLB, the bank has the capacity to borrow an amount up to the
value of its qualified collateral, as defined by the FHLB which includes access to a
pre-approved overnight line of credit for up to 5% of its total assets. Borrowings
from the FHLB are secured by certain securities from the company’'s investment
portfolic not otherwise pledged and certain residential and commercial real estate
leoans. At December 31, 2007, based on qualifying collateral less outstanding
advances, the bank had the capacity to borrow additional funds from the FHLB of up to
approximately $97.7 million, which includes a pre-approved overnight line of credit
in the amount of $11.0 milliocn.

See note 2 and note 3 above to these consolidated financial statements for further
information regarding securities and loans pledged for borrowed funds.

On March 10, 2000 the company organized Enterprise (MA) Capital Trust I (the
"Trust™), a statutory business trust created under the laws of Delaware. The Trust
issued $10.5 million of 10.875% trust preferred securities. The proceeds from the
sale of the trust preferred securities were used by the Trust, aleong with the
company’s $325 thousand capital contribution, to acquire $10.8 million in aggregate
principal amount of the company’s 10,.875% Junior Subordinated Debt Securities that
mature in 2030 and are callable beginning in 2010,

Stockholders' Equity

The cempany's autherized capital is divided intc common stock and preferred stock.
The ccmpany is authorized to issue 20,000,000 shares of common steck and 1,000,000
shares of preferred stock.

Holders of common stock are entitled to one vote per share, and are entitled to
receive dividends if and when declared by the board of directors. Dividend and
liquidation rights of the common stock may be subject to the rights of any
outstanding preferred stock.

The company maintains a dividend reinvestment plan (the “DRP"). The DRP enables
stockholders, at their discretion, to elect to reinvest dividends paid on their
shares of the company’s commen stock by purchasing additional shares of common stock
from the company at a purchase price equal to fair market value. Shareholders
utilized the DRP to reinvest $1.1 million, of the $2.5 million total dividends paid
by the company in 2007, intoc 70,675 shares of the company’s common stock.

76




ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes tec Consclidated Financial Statements

The company has maintained a shareholders rights plan since 1998. The plan as
originally adopted expired pursuant to its terms on January 13, 2008, and in
conjunction with such expiration the company adopted a renewed shareholders rights
plan containing terms that are substantially similar to the terms of the original
plan. Under the renewed plan, each share of common stock includes a xright to
purchase under certain circumstances one one-hundredth of a share of the company’s
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value 350.01 per share, at a
purchase price of $52.00 per one one-hundredth of a preferred share, subject to
adjustment, or, in certain circumstances, to receive cash, property, shares of common
stock or other securities of the company. The rights are not presently exercisable
and remain attached tc the shares of common stock until the occurrence of certain
triggering events that would ordinarily be associated with an unsolicited acquisition
or attempted acquisition of 10% or more of the company’s outstanding shares of common
stock. The rights will expire, unless earlier redeemed, exchanged, or ctherwise
rescinded by the company, on January 13, 2018. The rights have no voting or dividend
privileges, and unless and until they become exercisable have no dilutive effect on
the earnings of the company.

Applicable regqulatory requirements require the company and the bank to maintain total
capital equal to 8.00% of risk-weighted assets {total capital ratio), Tier 1 capital
equal to 4.00% of risk-weighted assets (Tier 1 capital ratioc) and Tier 1 capital
equal to 4.00% of average assets (leverage capital ratio). Tier 1 capital, in the
case of the company, is composed of common equity and, subject to regulatory limits,
trust preferred securities, reduced by certain intangible assets. Total capital
includes Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital (which in the case of the company is
composed of the allowance for loan losses up to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets).

The company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the
federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate
or result in certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary, actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material adverse effect on the company's
financial statements. Under applicable capital adeguacy requirements and the
regulatery framework for prompt corrective action applicable to the bank, the company
must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the
company's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The company's capital amounts and
classifications are alsc subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weightings, and other factors,

Neither the company nor the bank may declare or pay dividends on its stock if the
effect thereof would cause stockholders’ equity to be reduced beleow applicable
regulatory capital requirements or if such declaration and payment would otherwise
vielate regulatory reguirements.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require
the company to maintain certain minimum capital amounts and ratios (set forth in the
table below} of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2007, that the
company meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.
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As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, both the company and the bank gqualified as "well
capitalized"” under applicable Federal Reserve Board and FDIC regulaticns. To be
categorized as well capitalized, the company and the bank must maintain minimum
total, Tier 1 and, in the case of the bank, leverage capital ratios as set forth in
the following table. The company’'s and the bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios
are presented in the following tables.

Minimum Capital Minimum Capital
for Capital To Be
Actual Bdequacy Purposes Well Capitalized*
{Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratic

As of December 31, 2007

The Company

Total Capital (to risk weighted assets) 5 101,661 11.44% $ 71,099 8.00% $ 88,874 10.00%

Tier 1 Capital (to risk weighted assets) 90,522 10.19% 35,549 4.00% 53,324 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) a0, 522 8.84% 40, 969 4.00% N/A N/A
The Bank

Total Capital (te risk weighted assets} $ 101,332 11.41% 5 71,058 8.00% $ 88,823 10.00%

Tier 1 Capital (tec risk weighted assets) 90,199 10.15% 35,529 4.00% 53,294 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (tc average assets) 90,199 8.81% 40,940 4.00% 51,175 5.00%
Minimum Capital Minimum Capital
for Capital To Be
Actual Adequacy Purposes Well Capitalized*
{(Dellars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2006
The Company
Total Capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 91,237 11.37% 5 64,196 8.00% & 80,245 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk weighted assets) 80,849 10.08% 32,098 4.00% 48,147 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 80,849 8.47% 38,177 4.00% N/A N/A
The Bank

Total Capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 90,724 11.31% $ 64,196 2£.00% $ 80,245 10.00%

Tier 1 Capital (to risk weighted assels) 80,336 10.01% 32,098 4.00% 48,147 6.00%

Tier 1 Capital {to average assets) 80, 336 8.42% 38,150 4.00% 47,687 5.00%
* For the bank to qualify as "well capitalized", it must maintain a leverage capital
ratio (Tier 1 capital to average assets) of at least 5%. This requirement does not apply

to the company.
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Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The company currently has two individual stock incentive plans (the 1998 plan as
amended in 2001, and the 2003 plan). The plans permit the board of directors under
various terms to grant both incentive and non-qualified stock options, stock
appreciation rights and other rights for the purchase of newly issued shares of
common stock to officers and other employees, directers and consultants. These plans
also allow for newly issued shares of common stock to be issued with or without
restrictiens, to officers and other employees, directors and consultants. As of
December 31, 2007, 448,618 shares remain available for future grants under these
plans.

To date the company has utilized the plans to issue stock opticn awards and
restricted stock awards to officers and other employees, and stock in lieu of cash
fees to directors. No options or other awards of any kind have been granted to
consultants.

Total stock-based compensation expense related to these plans was $573 thousand, $460
thousand and $215 thousand for the years ended 2007, 2006 and 2005 respectively. The
total tax benefit recognized related to the stock-based compensation expense was $201
thousand, $139 thousand and $8¢ thousand, for the years ended 2007, 2006 and 2005
respectively.

In February 2005, the company’s shares began trading on the NASDAQG Naticnal Market
(now the NASDAQ Global Market) under the trading symbol “EBTC”, and all stock options
and any other equity based compensation granted after this date utilize the company’s
NASDAQ Global Market trading price for purposes of determining the fair market value
of the common stock on the date of the grant. Prior tc February 14, 2005, in the
absence of an active trading market for the company’s common stock, the per share
exercise price on all stock options granted had been determined on the basis of a
fair market valuation provided to the company by an outside financial adviser, which
does not necessarily reflect the actual prices at which shares of the common stock
had been purchased and sold in privately negotiated transactions.

Stock Option Awards

SFAS 123(R) requires that the stock-based compensation expense recognized in earnings
be based on the amount of awards ultimately expected to west; therefore, a forfeiture
assumpticn must be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The company has
estimated forfeitures based on historical experience for the portion of the grant
which had vested and/or grants already vested based on similarities in the type of
cptions and employee group. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006,
the company was not estimating forfeitures, but was rather adjusting pro forma
compensation cost as actual forfeitures occurred, as permitted by SFAS 123. SFAS
123(R) did not require a cumulative adjustment at the time of adeption.
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All options that have been granted under the plans generally become exercisable at

the rate of 25% per year. 1In addition, options granted since June 2002 provide for
full vesting upon attainment of age 62 while remaining employed with the bank. All
options granted prior to 1998 expire 10 years from the grant date. Options granted

from 1998 through 2004 and in 2007 expire 7 years from the grant date, and options
granted in 2005 and 2006 expire 8 years from the grant date.

Under the terms of the plans, incentive stock options may not be granted at less than
100% of the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant and may not have a
term of more than ten years. Any shares of common stock reserved for issuance
pursuant to options granted under the 1998 and 2003 plans that are returned to the
company unexercised shall remain available for issuance under such plans. For
participants owning 10% or mocre of the company's ocutstanding common stock (of which
there are currently none), incentive stock options may not be granted at less than
110% of the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant.

There were 127,600 options granted in 2007. The per share weighted average fair
value of stock options granted in 2007 was determined to be $3.69. The weighted
average fair value of the options was determined to be 22% of the market value of the
stock at the date of grant, The average assumptions used in the model for the 2007
grants for the risk-free interest rate, expected volatility, dividend yield and
expected life in years were 4.43%, 21%, 2.03% and 5.5, respectively.

There were 9,000 options granted in 2006. The per share weighted average fair value
of stock opticns granted in 2006 was determined to be $3.79. The weighted average
fair value of the options was determined to be 22% of the market value of the stock
at the date of grant. The average assumptions used in the model for the 2006 grants
for the risk-free interest rate, expected volatility, dividend yield and expected
life in years were 4.91%, 16%, 1.66% and 6, respectively.

There were 237,300 options granted in 2005. The per share weighted average fair
value of stock options granted in 2005 was determined to be $2.78. The weighted
average fair value of the options was determined to be 20% of the market value of the
stock at the date of grant. The average assumptions used in the model for the 2005
grants for the risk-free interest rate, expected volatility, dividend yield and
expected life in years were 4.13%, 15%, 1.67% and §, respectively.

The expected volatility is the anticipated variability in the company’s share price
over the expected life of the option. The company’s shares began trading on a public
exchange in February 2005 and limited trading has occurred. Management determined
the company’s expected volatility by reviewing the historical volatility of peer
financial institutions and a banking index, in addition to reviewing the company’s
own limited trading history.

The expected life represents the period of time that the option is expected toc be
cutstanding. The company utilized the simplified method and under this methad, the
expectad term equals the vesting term plus the contractual term divided by 2.

The dividend yield is the company’s annualized dividend rate divided by its share
price.

80




ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rate in effect at the time of grang
for a pericd equivalent to the expected life of the option.

During 2005, management replaced the Binomial option valuation model {a lattice style
model) with the Black-Scholes option wvaluation model. The company has determined
that option wvalues calculated prior to 2005 under the Binomial model are not
materially different from theose that would have been calculated using the Black-
Scholes model.

Stock option transactions during the year ended December 31, 2007 are summarized as

follows:
wtd. Avg. Wtd. Avg. Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic¢
Options Price Life Value
Cutstanding at December 31, 2006 675,450 $ 12.08 4.02
Granted 127,600 16.48
Exercised (112,907) 5.79
Forfeited (18,725) 15.01
Cutstanding December 31, 2007 671,418 13.89 4.30 239,721
Vested and Exercisable at
December 31, 2007 435,618 13.02 3.42 539,721

The aggregate intrinsic wvalue in the table above represents the difference between
the closing price of the company’s common stock on December 31, 2007 and the exercise
price, multiplied by the number of options. If the closing price was less than the
exercise price of the opticn, no intrinsic value was assigned to the grant. The
intrinsic value of options vested and exercisable represents the total pretax
intrinsic wvalue that would have been received by the option holders had all in-the-
money vested option holders exercised their options on December 31, 2007. The
intrinsic value will change based on the fair market value of the company’s stock.

Total intrinsic value of options exercised in 2007 was $1.1 million. Cash received
from option exercises was $598 thousand, 5296 thousand and $504 thousand in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

The actual tax benefit arising during the period for the tax deduction from the
disqualifying disposition of shares acquired upon exercise was $16 thousand, $22
thousand arnd $104 thousand in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. In accordance with
SFAS 123{R), beginning in 2006 this excess tax benefit has been classified under the
heading “Cash flows from financing activities” in the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123 (R}, the company presented the tax benefit
of stock option exercises as operating cash flows.

Compensation expense reccgnized in association with the stock option awards amounted
to $358 thousand and $243 thousand for the years ended 2007 and 2006, respectively.
The total tax benefit recognized related to the stock option expense was 5113
thousand and $51 thousand for the years ended 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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In accordance with the modified prospective transition method of adoption of SFAS
123(R)}, the company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for prior periods have not
been restated to reflect the impact of SFAS 123(R) or SFAS 123. The pro forma table
below reflects net income, basic and diluted earnings per share for year ended
December 31, 2005 had the company determined stock-based compensation expense based
on the fair value at the grant date for its options under SFAS 123:

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2005

Net income as reported $ 8,414
SFAS 123 compensation cost, net of tax (251)
Pro forma net income s 8,163
Basic earnings per share as reported s 1.13
Pro forma basic earnings per share 1.09
Diluted earnings per share as reported 1.09
Pro forma diluted earnings per share 1.0¢€

As of December 31, 2007, there was $502 thousand of wunrecognized stock-based
compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures, related to non-vested stock
options. That cost is expected toc be recognized over the remaining weighted average
vesting period of 2.3 years.

Restricted Stock Awards

The company has granted one restricted stock award, comprised of 17,500 shares,
issued in September 2005. The grant date fair value of the restricted stock awarded
was $14.25 per share, which reflects the market value of the common stock on the
grant date, based on the average of the high and low trade prices on that date,
There were no restricted stock awards granted or forfeited during 2007 or 2006. The
shares granted vest twenty percent per year starting on the first anniversary date of
the award. The restricted stock award allows for the receipt of dividends, and the
voting of all shares, whether or not vested, throughout the vesting period.

Compensation expense recognized in association with the restricted stock award
amounted to $50 thousand for both the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 and $17
thousand, for the year ended December 31, 2005. The total tax benefit recognized
related to the restricted stock compensation expense was $20 thousand for both 2007
and 2006, and $7 thousand for 2005.

As of December 31, 2007, 7,000 shares have vested and 10,500 remain unvested. As of
December 31, 2007, there remained $133 thousand of unrecognized compensation expense
related to the restricted stock award. That cost is expected to be recognized over
the remaining vesting period of 2.7 years.

82




(10)

ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Director Stock Compensation

The members of the company’s board of directors are cffered the choice to receive
newly lissued shares of the company’s common stock in lieu of cash compensation for
attendance at Board and Beard Committee meetings. Directors must make an irrevocable
electicon to receive shares of common stock in lieu of cash compensation prior to
December 31st of the preceding year. Directors are granted shares of common Stock in
lieu of cash fees at a per share price which reflects the value of the commen stock
on the first business day of the year, based on the average of the high and low trade
prices of the commeon stock on that date.

Total Director Compensation expense amounted to $256 thousand, $265 thousand and $283
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Included in the 2007 expense were fees of $165 thousand, which represented 10,739
shares issued to Directors in January 2008, at a fair market wvalue price cf §15.40
per share, which reflected the value of the common stock on January 3, 2007.

Included in the 2006 expense were fees of $167 thousand, which represented 10,575
shares issued to Directors in January 2007, at a fair market value price of $15.79
per share, which reflected the value of the commen stock on January 3, 2006.

Included in the 20035 expense were fees of $199 thousand, which represented 12,158
shares issued to Directors in December 2005, at a fair market value price of $16.43
per share, which reflected the fair value of the common stock on January 3, 2005.
The total tax benefit recognized related to the director stock compensation expense
was $68 thousand, $68 thousand and $82 thousand, for the years ended 2007, 2006 and
2005 respectively.

Employee Benefit Plans
401 (k) Defined Contribution Plan

The company has a 401(k) defined contribution employee benefit plan. The 401(k) plan
allows eligible employees to contribute a base percentage, plus a supplemental

percentage, of their earnings to the plan. A portion of the base percentage, as
determined by the board of directors, is matched by the company. No company
contributions are made for supplemental contributions made by participants. The

percentage matched was 50%, 50% and 75% in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively up to
the first 6% contributed by the employee. The company's total expense for the 401 (k)
plan match, including any discretionary match as discussed below, was $382 thousand,
$374 thousand and $474 thousand, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006, and 2005.

All employees, at least 21 years of age, are immediately eligible to participate.
Vesting for the company’s 401(k) plan contribution is based on years of service with
participants becoming 20% vested after 2 years of service, increasing pro-rata to
100% vesting after 6 years c¢f service. Amounts not distributable to an employee
follewing termination of employment are used to offset plan administration fees.
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Employee Bonus & Incentive Programs

The company’s bonus & incentive program includes all employees. Bonuses are paid te
the employees based on the accomplishment of certain goals and objectives that are
determined at the beginning of the fiscal year and approved by the compensation
committee of the board of directors. Prior to 2007, the company maintained an
additional supplemental bonus plan for certain senior officers. The plan provided for
payment of cash bonuses based on the achievement of certain earnings per share goals
as set by the compensation committee.

From time to time the company may also make an annual discretionary employer
contributien to the 401(k) plan of an additional percentage of employee
contributions.

In 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounts charged to salaries and benefits under these programs
were $1.0 million, $496 thousand and $1.7 millien, respectively.

Supplemental Retirement Flan

Since 1396 the company has maintained a supplemental retirement plan for its chairman

and since 1999 for its president and an executive vice president, (together, the
“executives”). Until 2005, these supplemental retirement plans were provided through
split dollar insurance agreements with the executives (“Executive Split Dollar

Agreements”).

In response to potential compliance and tax issues with respect to the Executive
Split Dollar Agreements resulting from the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 and the issuance of Internal Revenue Service Notice 2002-8, the company engaged
a consultant to advise the Compensation Committee and make recommendations on the
best alternative for funding executive officer non-gualified retirement programs.

The objective of the Compensation Committee was to eliminate the compliance and tax
concerns associated with the Executive Split Dollar Agreements while maintaining a
level of retirement and insurance benefits for each of the executives that would be
substantially eguivalent to the benefits that had been anticipated under the
Executive Split Dcllar Agreements. Based upon the ceonsultant’s reccommendations, in
2005 the Compensation Committee approved a restructuring of the executives’
supplemental retirement programs under which the executives assigned ownership cof the
life insurance policies subject to the Executive Split Dollar Agreements to the
company, the Executive Split Dollar Agreements were terminated and the company
entered into salary continuation and supplemental life insurance agreements with the
executives.

The salary continuation agreements provide for a predetermined fixed-cash
supplemental retirement benefit, the amount subject to vesting requirements, to be
provided for a period of 20 years after the individual reaches a defined “retirement
age”. In addition, upon an executive’s death a death benefit will be paid to his
designated beneficiaries.
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These non-gqualified plans represent direct liabilities of the company, and as such
have no specific assets set aside to settle the benefit obligation. The funded
status is the aggregate amount accrued, or the “Accumulated Postretirement Benefit
Cbligation”, which is equal to the present value of the retirement benefits to be
provided to the employee or any beneficiary in exchange for the employee’s service
rendered to that date. Because the company’'s retirement benefit obligations provide
for predetermined fixed-cash payments the company does not have any unrecognized
costs to be included as a component of accumulated cther comprehensive income.

The amounts charged to expense for supplemental retirement programs was $678
thousand, %626 thousand and $664 thousand, for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The company anticipates accruing an additional $503
thousand to the plan for the year ending December 31, 2008.

The foeollowing table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the supplemental
retirement benefit obligation and the net periodic benefit cost for the years ended
December 31:

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006

Reconciliation of benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 1,799 1,173

Service cost 552 539

Interest cost 126 87
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 2,477 § 1,799

Funded status:

Accrued liability as of December 31 S (2,477) S {1,799)

Discount rate used for benefit obligation 6.00% 6.00%

Net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost $ 552 $ 539

Interest cost 126 87

$ 678 $ 626

Management utilizes the Moody's 20 year A and AA corporate hond rates to evaluate the
reasonableness of the discount rate used. The ccmpany recognizes that the duratien of
the benchmark should reflect the timing of the cash flows of each benefit obligation.
However, since the duration of most fixed income investments do not exceed 20 years
and the cash flows on the benefit obkligations may extend to 30-40 years, it was
resolved that the company shall assume a long term duration for all participants.

Benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five years and in the aggregate five
years thereafter:

(Dollars in thousands)

2008 $ 98

2009 181

2010 244

2011 276

2012 276

2013-2017 1,379
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Bank Owned Life Insurance

The company has purchased bank owned life insurance on certain senlor officers.
cash surrender value carried on the balance sheet at December 21,

The
2007 and December

million, respectively. There are no

31, 2006 amounted toc $12.7 million and $12.2
associated surrender charges under the outstanding policies.
See note & “Stock-Based Compensaticen Plans”

regarding employee benefits offered in the form
(11} Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense for the ye
using the asset and liability method as follows:

above, for additional information

of stock option awards.

ars ended December 31 were calculated

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Current tax expense:
Federal $ 4,464 s 4,578 5 3,734
State 1,665 1,774 1,622
Total current tax expense 6,129 6,352 5,356
Deferred tax benefit:
Federal {B53) (813 (416)
State (231) (196) (187)
Total deferred tax benefit (1,084) (1,008) (603)
Total income tax expense 5 5,045 5 5,343 $ 4,753

The provision for income taxes differs
statutory federal incoeme tax rate as follows:

from the amount computed by

applying the

2007 2006 2005

{(bollars in thousands} Amount % Amount % Amount %
Computed income tax expense

at statutory rate $ 5,081 34.0% $ 4,956 34.0% S 4,477 34.0%
State income taxes, net of

federal tax benefit 946 6.3% 1,041 7.1% 947 7.2%
Tax exempt income, net of

disallowance (925) {6.2%) (770} (5.3%) (669) (5.1%)
Other (57) (0.3%) 116 0.9% (2) 0.0%
Total income tax expense $ 5,045 33.8% $ 5,343 36.7% § 4,753 36.1%
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At December 31 the tax effects of each type of income and expense item that give rise
to deferred taxes are:

{Dellars in thousands) 2007 2006
Deferred tax asset:
Allcowance for loan losses 3 5,570 5 5,332
Depreciation 1,950 1,457
Net unrealized losses on investments securities - 110
Supplemental employee retirement plans 1,018 740
Non-accrual interest 359 227
Non-qualified stock option expense 166 52
Other 2 -
Total 9,066 7,918
Deferred tax liability:
Goodwill 806 645
Deferred origination costs 370 337
Net unrealized gains con investments securities 113 -
Restricted Stock 55 75
Total 1,344 1,057
Net deferred tax asset $ 7,722 $ 6,861

The company paid federal income taxes for the 2007, 2006, and 2005 of $4.7 million,
$4.3 million and $3.9 nmillion, respectively. Management believes that it is more
likely than not that current recoverable income taxes and the expectation of future
taxable income, based cn the company’s history of reporting taxable income, will
generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax asset existing at
December 31, Z2007.

(12} Related Party Transactions

During 2007, the bank leased its headgquarters and certain other space for operations
from realty trusts, the beneficiaries of which included various Directors of the
Company. None of these beneficial interests, however, either individually or in the
aggregate, are considered material under the SEC's applicable disclosure requirements,
The board of directors believes that the terms of each of these leases, including lease
rates, are substantially similar to such terms as would be included in comparable lease
transactions entered into at the time of such leases with persons who are not
affiliated with the bank.

Tctal amcunts paid to the realty trusts for annual rent, which approximated market

rates, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, were $573 thousand, $621
thousand, and $517 thousand, respectively.
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{14) Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used Dby the company in estimating fair
values of its financial instruments:

The respective carrying values of certain financial instruments approximated their fair
value, as they were short-term in nature or payable on demand. These include cash and
due frem banks, total short-term investments, accrued interest recelvable, repurchase
agreements, accrued interest payable and non-certificate deposit accounts.

Investments: Fair values for investments were based on quoted market prices, where
available, as provided by third-party accounting and pricing vendors. If gquoted market
prices were not available, fair values provided by the vendors were based on guoted
market prices of comparable instruments in active markets and/or based on a matrix
pricing methodology which employs The Bond Market Association’s standard calculations
for cash flow and price/yield analysis, live benchmark bond pricing and terms/condition
data available from major pricing sources. Management regards the inputs and methods
used by third party pricing venders to be “Level 2 inputs and methods” as defined in
the “fair value hierarchy” provided in SFAS No. 157. The carrying amount of FRLB stock
reported approximates fair value. 1f the FHLB stock is redeemed, the company will
raceive an amount equal to the par value of the stock.

Loans: The fair value of loans was determined using discounted cash flow analysis,
using interest rates currently being offered by the company. The incremental credit
risk for non-accrual lcans was considered in the determination of the fair value of the
loans.

Commitments: The fair values of the unused portion of lines of credit and letters of
credit were estimated to be the fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements. Commitments tc originate non-mortgage loans were short-term and were at
current market rates and estimated to have no significant change in fair value.

Financizl liabilities: The fair values of certificates of deposit and FHELB borrowings
were estimated using discounted cash flow analysis using rates offered by the bank, or
advance rates offered by the FHLB on December 31, 2007 for similar instruments. The
fair value of junior subordinated debentures was estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis using a market rate of interest at December 31, 2007.

Limitations: The estimates of fair value of financial instruments were based on
information available at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and are not indicative of the fair
market value of those instruments as of the date of this report. These estimates do
not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one
time the company’s entire holdings of a particular financial instrument. Because no
active market exists for a portion of the company’s financial instruments, fair wvalue
estimates were based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current
economic conditions, risk characteristics of varlous financial instruments, and other
factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and invelve uncertainties and matters
of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precisicon. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Fair value estimates were based on existing on- and coff-balance sheet financial
instruments without an attempt to estimate the value of anticipated future business and
the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial instruments,
including premises and equipment and foreclosed real estate,
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At December 31 the tax effects of each type of income and expense item that give rise
to deferred taxes are:

(Dellars in thousands) 2007 2006
Deferred tax asset:
Allowance for loan losses $ 5,570 5 5,332
Depreciation 1,950 1,457
Net unrealized losses on investments securities - 110
Supplemental employee retirement plans 1,019 740
Non-accrual interest 359 227
Non-gqualified stock opticn expense 166 52
Other 2 -
Total 9,066 7,918
Deferred tax liability:
Goodwill 806 645
Deferred origination costs 370 337
Net unrealized gains on investments securities 113 -
Restricted Stock 55 75
Total 1,344 1,057
Net deferred tax asset $ 7,122 S 6,861

The company paid federal income taxes for the 2007, 2006, and 2005 of $4.7 miilion,
$4.3 million and $3.9 million, respectively. Management believes that it is more
likely than not that current recoverable income taxes and the expectation of future
taxable income, based on the company’s history of reporting taxable income, will
generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax asset existing at
December 31, 2007.

{12) Related Party Transactions

During 2007, the bank leased its headguarters and certain other space for operations
from realty trusts, the beneficiaries of which included various Directors of the
Company. None ¢f these beneficial interests, however, either individually or in the
aggregate, are considered material under the SEC’s applicable disclosure requirements.
The board of directors believes that the terms of each of these leases, including lease
rates, are substantially similar to such terms as would be included in comparable lease
transactions entered into at the time of such leases with persons who are not
affiliated with the bank.

Total amounts paid teo the realty trusts for annual rent, which approximated market
rates, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, were $573 thousand, $621
thousand, and $517 thousand, respectively.
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On September 28, 2007, the bank purchased the aforementioned building used for
operations for $2.9 million. This purchase price was bkased on an independent market
appraisal of the buildings and the transaction was reviewed and approved by the board
of directors of the company, with directors who had a financial or other interest in
the trust abstaining. The board of directors believes that the terms of this purchase
transaction were substantially similar to terms that would have been included in any
comparable purchase transaction entered into at the time between the Bank and an
unaffiliated seller of the building.

See note 3 “Loans and Loans Held for Sale” above, for information regarding loans to
related parties.

(13) Commitments, Contingencies and Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The company is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial
instruments include commitments to originate lecans, standby letters of credit and
unadvanced lines of credit.

The instruments involve, to wvarying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the
amount recognized in the balance sheets. The contract amcunts of these instruments
reflect the extent of involvement the company has in the particular classes of
financial instruments.

The company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party
te the financial instrument for loan commitments and standby letters of credit is
represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments. The company uses the same
credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it deoes for on-
balance sheet instruments.

Financial instruments with off-balance sheet credit risk at December 31, 2007 and 2006
are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Commitments to originate loans $ 15,323 3 49,961
Commitments to originate loans to be sold 2,104 1,607
Commitments to sell loans 2,371 2,156
Standby letters of credit 14,780 17,618
Unadvanced portions of consumer loans
{including credit card loans and overdraft protection lines} 4,157 4,143
Unadvanced portions of construction loans {cmml & regid) 80,232 71,223
Unadvanced portions of home equity lines 52,755 51,585
Unadvanced portions of commercial loans and lines 146,041 120,258
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Commitments to originate loans are agreements to lend to a customer provided there is
no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.
Since some of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the
total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The
company evaluates each customer’'s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The
amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the company upon extension of
credit, 1is based on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral held
varies, but may include security interests 1in mortgages, accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant and equipment and inceme-producing properties.

The company originates residential mortgage loans under agreements to sell such loans,
generally with servicing released. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the company had
commitments to sell loans totaling $2.4 million and $2.2 million respectively.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the company to
guarantee the performance by a customer to a third party. The credit risk invelved in
issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. If the letter of credit is drawn upon the company creates a
loan for the customer with the same criteria associated with similar loans. The fair
value of these commitments were estimated to be the fees charged to enter into similar
agreements. The estimated fair value of these commitments carried on the balance sheet
was $18 thousand and $31 thousand at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These
amounts are amortized te income over the life of the letters of credit, typically cne
year.

The company manages its loan portfolie to avoid concentration by industry or loan size
to minimize its credit risk exposure. Commercial loans may be collateralized by the
assets underlying the borrower’s business such as accounts receivable, eguipment,
inventory and real property. Residential mortgage and home equity loans are secured by
the real property f{inanced. Consumer loans such as installment loans are generally
secured by the perscnal property financed. <Credit card loans are generally unsecured.
Commercial real estate loans are generally secured by the underlying real property and
rental agreements.

The bank is required by the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston (FRE} to maintain in
reserves certain amounts of vault cash and/or deposits with the FRB. The average daily
reserve requirement included in "Cash and Due from Banks” was approximately $481
thousand and 5533 thousand, based on the two week computation periods encompassing
December 31, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

The company is involved in various legal proceedings incidental to its business. After
review with legal counsel, management does not believe resolution of any present
litigation will have a material adverse effect on the financial conditicn or results of
operations of the company.
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(14} Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the company in estimating fair
values of its financial instruments:

The respective carrying values of certain financial instruments approximated their fair
value, as they were short-term in nature or payable on demand. These include cash and
due from banks, total short-term investments, accrued interest receivable, repurchase
agreements, accrued interest payable and non-certificate deposit accounts.

Investments: Fair values for investments were based on guoted market prices, where
available, as provided by third-party accounting and pricing vendocrs. If quoted market
prices were not available, fair values provided by the vendors were based on quoted
market prices of comparable instruments in active markets and/or based on a matrix
pricing methodology which employs The Bond Market Association’s standard calculations
for cash flow and price/yield analysis, live benchmark bond pricing and terms/condition
data available from major pricing sources. Management regards the inputs and methods
used by third party pricing vendors to be “Level 2 inputs and methods” as defined in
the “fair value hierarchy” provided in SFAS No. 157. The carrying amount of FHLB stock
reported approximates fair value. If the FHLB stock is redeemed, the company will
receive an amount equal to the par value of the stock.

Loans: The fair wvalue of loans was determined using discounted cash flow analysis,

using interest rates currently being offered by the company. The incremental credit
risk for non-accrual loans was considered in the determination of the fair value of the
loans.

Commitments: The fair values of the unused portion of lines of credit and letters of
credit were estimated to be the fees currently charged te enter into similar
agreements. Commitments to originate non-mortgage locans were short-term and were at
current market rates and estimated to have no significant change in fair value.

Financial liabilities: The fair values of certificates of deposit and FHLB borrowings
were estimated using discounted cash flow analysis using rates offered by the bank, or
advance rates offered by the FHLB on December 31, 2007 for similar instruments. The
fair value of junior subordinated debentures was estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis using a market rate of interest at December 31, 2007.

Limitations: The estimates of fair wvalue of financial instruments were based on
information avallable at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and are not indicative of the fair
market value of those instruments as of the date of this report, These estimates do

not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one
time the company’s entire holdings of a particular financial instrument. Because no
active market exists for a portion of the company’s financial instruments, fair value
estimates were based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current
economic conditions, risk characteristics of wvarious financial instruments, and other
factors. These estimates are subjective in rature and involve uncertainties and matters
of significant judgment and therefore cannoct be determined with precisicn. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Fair value estimates were based on existing on- and off-balance sheet financial
instruments without an attempt to estimate the value of anticipated future business and
the wvalue of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial instruments,
including premises and equipment and foreclosed real estate.
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In addition, the tax ramifications related to the realization of the unrealized
appreciation and depreciation can have a significant effect on fair value estimates and
have not been considered in any of the estimates. Accordingly, the aggregate fair
value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the company.

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
{Dollars in thousands) Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,718 § 32,718 $ 50,887 5 50,887
Investment securities 145,517 145,517 131,540 131,540
Loans, net 820,274 838,870 748,173 747,951
Accrued interest receivable 5,777 5,717 5,464 5,464
Financial liabilities:
Non-interest demand deposits 167,039 167,039 169,910 169,910
Interest bearing checking, savings,
money market accounts 427,395 427,395 446,319 446,319
Certificates of deposit 274,352 274,535 251,293 251,036
Borrowed funds B1,429 81, 387 15,105 15,102
Junior subordinated debentures 10,825 12,722 10,825 12,006
Accrued interest pavable 3,369 3,369 2,105 2,105

(15} Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Balance Sheets

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006

Assets

Cash and due from subsidiary $ 291 $ 515

Investment in subsidiary 97,877 87,701

Other assets 39 22
Total assets $ 98,207 $ 88,238

Liabilities and Stockholiders’ Equity

Junior subordinated debentures $ 10,825 $ 10,825
Accrued interest payable 370 370
Total liabilities 11,195 11,1895

Stockholder’'s equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share;
1,000,000 shares authcrized;
no shares issued - -
Common stock $0.01 par value per share; 20,000,000 shares
authorized; 7,912,715 and 7,722,288 shares issued and

outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively 79 77
Additional paid-in capital 28,051 25,806
Retained earnings 58,527 51,127
Accumulated cother comprehensive incone 355 33

Total stockholders’ equity B7,012 77,043

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 98,207 $ 88,238

91




ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Statements of Income

For the years ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2008 2005
Undistributed equity in net income of
Subsidiary $ 9,854 3 8,936 $ 9,026
Dividends received from subsidiary 1,225 1,118 18
Gain on sales of equity securities - - 217
Other income - - 38
Total income 11,079 10,054 9,299
Interest expense 1,177 1,177 1,177
Other operating expenses ~ 1 23
Total operating expenses 1,177 1,178 1,200
Income before income taxes 9,902 8,876 8,099
Income tax expense (benefit) 4 (3581 {315)
Net income 5 9,898 % 9,234 % 8,414
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 5 9,898 5 9,234 5 8,414
Undistributed equity in net income
of subsidiary (9,854) (8,936) (9,026)
Gain on sales of equity securitlies - - (217)
payment from subsidiary bank for stock
compensation expense 575 292 215
(Increase) /decrease in other assets (17) - 3,094
Decrease in other liabilities - - {99)
Net cash provided by operating activities 602 590 2,381
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of equity securities - - (3,823
Proceeds from sales of equity securities - - 1,371
Investments in subsidiaries - - (719
Net cash used in investing activities - - (3,171)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash dividends paid (2,498) (2,141} {1,788)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 1,058 944 871
Proceeds from exercise of stock cptions 598 296 504
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 16 22 -
Net cash used in financing activities (B26) {879) (413)
Net decrease in cash and cash egquivalents {224) (289) (1,203)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 515 804 2,007
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 291 S 515 § 804

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from subsidiary.
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ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Conseclidated Financial Statements
In August 20035, the parent company made a non-cash transfer of $4.0 million in
investment assets to a subsidiary. The offset to the transfer was an increase in the

arent company’s investment in subsidiary.
Y

The parent company’s Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity are identical to the
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and therefore are not
presented here.

(16) Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

2007

First Second Third Fourth

(Dollars in thousands, except share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest and dividend income S 15,621 S 15,973 3 16,702 S 16,741
Interest expense 5,585 5,915 6,423 6,435
Net interest income 10,036 10,058 10,2789 10,306
Provision for lcan losses 83 52 215 650

Net interest income after provision
for loan losses 9,553 10,006 10,064 9, 656
Non-interest income 2,078 2,515 2,544 2,971
Non-interest expense 8,520 8,964 B, 592 8,768
Income before income taxes 3,511 3,557 4,016 3,859
Income tax expense 1,28% 1,239 1,393 1,124
Net income, as reported 5 2,222 5 2,318 1 2,623 5 2,735
Basic earnings per share s 0.29 § 0.30 $ 06.33 5 0.35
Diluted earnings per share S 0.28 § 0.29 § 0.33 $§ 0.34
2006

First Second Third Fourth

{Dollars in thousands, except share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest and dividend income S 14,141 5 14,878 § 15,598 3§ 15,894
Interest expense 4,050 4,469 5,111 5,321
Net interest income 10,0891 10,409 10,487 10,573
Provisicn for loan losses 273 244 375 367

Net interest income after provision

for loan losses g,818 10,165 10,112 10,206
Non-interest income 1,681 1,590 1,868 1,677
Non-interest expense 8,218 B,256 8,092 7,974
Income before income taxes 3,281 3,499 3,888 3,909
Income tax expense 1,225 1,317 1,437 1,364
Net income, as reported 5 2,056 5 2,182 $ 2,451 5 2,545
Basic earnings per share $ 0.27 & 0.29 % 0,32 § 0.33
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.26 8§ 0.28 5§ 0.31 § 0.32
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stocckholders
Enterprise Bancorp, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Enterprise Bancorp, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consclidated statements
of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows fer each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclesures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that ocur audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board {United States), the effectiveness of Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. and
subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of Decemper 31, 2007, based cn
criteria established in Internal Control—-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 14,
2008 expressed an ungualified opinion on the effective operation of, internal contrel over
financial reporting.

KPMe LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 14, 2008
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Report_of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Enterprise Bancorp, Inc,:

We have audited Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSG). Enterprise Bancorp, Inc.’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal contreli over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal contrcl over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is
to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial repocrting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Beoard (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
avdit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. We believe that our audit
provides a reascnable basis for our opinicn.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary toe permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may beacome inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate,
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
(Continued)

In our opinion, Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponscring Organizaticns of the Treadway Commission (COS0).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consclidated balance sheets of Enterprise Bancorp,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consclidated
statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, and cur report dated March 14,
2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

KPMes LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 14, 2008
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The company maintains a set of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that
the information required to be disclosed in reports that it files or submits to the SEC
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’'s rules
and forms.

The company carried out an evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this report,
under the supervision and with the participation of the company's management, including
its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, o©f the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the company's disclosure contreols and procedures pursuant to
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b}. Based upon that evaluation, the company’s chief executive
officer and chief financial officer concluded that the company's disclosure controls and
procedures are effective.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The company’s management i1s responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
contrel over financial reporting. The company’s internal control system was designed to
provide reasonable assurance to the company’s management and board of directors regarding
the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internal
control systems, however, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations and may
not prevent or detect misstatement. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may detericrate. Therefore, even those systems determined tc be effective can provide
only reasonable assurance with respect te¢ financial statement preparation and
presentation.

The company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, it used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
in “Internal Control-Integrated Framework.” Based on management’s assessment, the company
believes that, as of December 31, 2007, the company’s internal contrcl over financial
reporting is effective based on these criteria.

The company’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued a report on the
effectiveness of company’s internal control over financial reporting, which appears on
page %5 of this report.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been nco change in the company's internal control over financial reporting that
has occurred during the company’s most recent fiscal quarter (i.e., the three months ended
December 31, 2007) that has materially affected, or 1is reasocnably likely to materially
affect, such internal controls.

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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Part III

Item 10.Directors, Executive QOfficers and Corporate Governance

Certain information regarding directors, executive officers and significant employees of
the company, compliance with Section 16{(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1334 and
corporate governance, in response to this item, is incorpeorated herein by reference from
the definitive proxy statement for the company’s annual meeting of stockholders to be held
May 6, 2008, which it expects to file with the SEC within 120 days of the end of the
fiscal year covered by this report.

The company maintains a code of business conduct and ethics. This code applies to every
director, officer (including the principal executive officer, principal financial officer
and principal accounting officer) and employee of the company and its subsidiaries. The
code is availabkle on the company’s website: EnterpriseBanking.com.

Directors of the Company

George L. Duncan
Chairman of the Company and the Bank

Richard W. Main
President of the Company and President and Chief Lending Officer of the Bank

John P. Clancy, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank

Kenneth §. Ansin
Entrepreneur and Private Investor

John R. Clementi
President, Plastican, Inc., a privately held manufacturer of plastic pails and covers

James F. Conway, III
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, Courier Corporaticn, a publicly held
company specializing in the publishing, printing and sale of bocks

Dr. Carole A. Cowan (audit committee)
President, Middlesex Community College

Nancy L. Donahue
Philanthropist and Chair of the Merrimack Repertory Theatre

Lucy A. Flynn {audit committee}
Vice President Global Marketing Communications, Raytheon Company, a publicly held
technology company specializing in defense, homeland security and cther government markets

Eric W. Hanson
Chairman of the Beard, D.J. Reardon Company, Inc., a privately held distributorship of
Anheuser-Bush beverages and affiliated brands

John P. Harrington (audit committee)

Energy Consultant for Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company
Assistant Secretary of the Company and the Bank
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Arnold S. Lerner

Retired Radio Station Owner; Vice Chairman of the Company and the Bank;

Director, Courier Corporation, a publicly held company specializing in the publishing,
printing and sale of books

Carol L. Reid (audit committee vice chairman and audit committee financial expert)
Financial Executive; former Vice President, Corporate Contreoller and Chief Accounting
Officer of Avid Technology Inc., a publicly held company specializing in digital media
creation tools for film, audie, animation, games and broadcast

Michael A. Spinelli
Founder, Global Tourism Solutions, an international tourism consulting firm for emerging
nations; Secretary of the Company and the Bank

Nickolas Stavropoulos {audit committee chairman and audit committee financial expert)

Executive Vice President, U. 5. Gas Distribution, National Grid, a publicly held company
focused on the delivery of electricity and natural gas

Additional Executive QOfficers of the Company

Name Position
Rebert R. Gilman Executive Vice President, Administration,
and Commercial Lender of the Bank

Stephen J. Irish Executive Vice President and
Chief Informaticn Officer of the Bank

James A. Marcotte Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer of the Company and the Bank

Items 11, 12, 13 and 14.

The information required in Items 11, 12, 13 and 14 of this part is incorporated herein by
reference to the company’s definitive proxy statement for its annual meeting of
stockholders to be held May 6, 2008, which it expects to file with the SEC within 120 days
of the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.
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Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part ¢of this annual report:

Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item 8 above.

Financial Statement Schedules

None (information included in financial statements)

Exhibits
Exhibit No. and Description

3.1 Restated Articles of Crganization of the Company, as amended as of January
13, 2008.
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the company, as amended as of May 1, 2007,

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the company’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2007.

4.1 Renewal Rights Agreement dated as of December 11, 2007 by and between
Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as Rights
Agent, including Terms of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock,
Summary of Rights to Purchase Shares of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock, and Form of Rights Certificate attached as Exhibits A, B
and C thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the company's
Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2007.

10.1 Lease agreement dated July 22, 1988, between the bank and First Holding
Trust relating to the premises at 222 Merrimack Street, Lowell,
Massachusetts, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 teo the company’s
Form 10-0SB for the quarter ended June 30, 18%6.

Amendment to lease dated December 28, 1990, between the bank and First
Holding Trust for and relating to the premises at 222 Merrimack Street,
Lowell, Massachusetts, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
company’s Form 10-QSB for the guarter ended June 30, 199%6.

Amendment to lease dated August 15, 1931, between the bank and First Holding
Trust for 851 square feet relating te the premises at 222 Merrimack Street,
Lowell, Massachusetts, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
company’s Form 10-QSB for the guarter ended June 30, 199s6.

Lease agreement dated March 14, 1995, between the bank and North Central
Investment Limited Partnership for 3,960 square feet related to the premises
at 2-6 Central Street, Leominster, Massachusetts, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to the company’s Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended June 30,
1996.

Lease agreement dated June 20, 19%6, between the bank and Kevin C. Sullivan
and Margaret A. Sullivan for 4,800 sguare feet related to the premises at
910 Andover Street, Tewksbury, Massachusetts, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the company’s Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31,
199¢6.

Lease agreement dated May 2, 1997 between the bank and First Lakeview Avenue
Limited Partnership to premises at 1168 Lakeview Avenue, Dracut,
Massachusetts, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the company’s
Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 1997,
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Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. 1988 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.15 to the company’s Form 10-KSB for the year ended December
31, 19%87.

Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Tncentive Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the company’s Registration
Statement on Form 5-8 (Reg. Nc. 333-60036), filed May 2, 2001.

Change in Contrecl/Noncompetition Agreement dated as of August 1, 2001 by and
among the company, the bank and Robert R. Gilman, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.45 to the cempany's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September
30, 2001.

Change in Control/Noncompetition Agreement dated as of April 3, 2002 by and
among the company, the bank and Stephen J. Irish, incorporated by reference
tc Exhibit 10.23 to the company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2002.

Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended May 2, 2006,
incorperated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-133792) filed May 4, 2006.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of January 1, 2004 made
by and among the company, the bank and George L. Duncan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the company’'s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of January 1, 2004 made
by and amgng the company, the bank and Richard W. Main, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the company’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003.

Lease agreement dated January 20, 2004, between the bank and M K Realty
Trust for 3,745 square feet of space related to the premises located at 1120
Main Street, Tewksbury, Massachusetts, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.30 to the company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Lease agreement dated January 28, 2004, between the bank and Lally II Realty
Trust related to premises located at B8 and B8R High Street, Andover,
Massachusetts, incerporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 toc the company’s
Form 10-¢ for the gquarter ended March 31, 2004.

Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004 by and among the company, the bank
and John P. Clancy, Jr., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the
company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004.

Lease agreement dated September 15, 2004, between the bank and E-Point, LLC
related to premises located at 130 Main Street, Salem, New Hampshire,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the company’s Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2004.

Amendment No.l dated as of December 31, 2004 to BAmended and Restated
Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2004 by and among the company, the
bank and Richard W. Main, incorporated by reference tc Exhibit 10.34 to the
company’s Form 8-K filed on January 3, 2005.

Amendment No.l dated as of December 31, 2004 to Employment Agreement dated
April 1, 2004 by and among the company, the bank and Jochn P. Clancy, Jr.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the company’s Form 8-K filed
on January 3, 2005.

Description of directors’ compensation
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Specimen Incentive Stock Option Agreement for executive officers under
Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and
2003 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.38.1 to the company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005
(applicable to grants prior to January 1, 2007}.

Specimen Nongualified Stock Option Agreement for executive officers under
Enterprise Bancerp, Inc. Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and
2003 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.38.2 to the company’'s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005
{applicable to grants prior te January 1, 2007).

Salary Centinuation Agreement dated as of July 15, 2005 by and between the
bank and George L. Duncan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33.1 to
the company’s 8-K filed on July 20, 2005, as amended by Form 8-K/A filed on
February 23, 2006,

Salary Continuation Agreement dated as of July 15, 2005 by and betwsen the
bank and Richard W. Main, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39.2 to
the company's 8-K filed on July 20, 2005, as amended by Form 8-K/A filed on
February 23, 2006.

Salary Continuation Agreement dated as of July 15, 2005 by and between the
pank and Robert R. Gilman, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39.3 to
the company’s 8-K filed on July 20, 2005, as amended by Form 8-K/A filed on
February 23, 2006.

Supplemental Life Insurance Agreement dated as of July 15, 2005 by and
between the bank and George L. Duncan, incorporated by reference teo Exhibit
10.40.1 to the company’s B-K filed on July 20, 2005.

Supplemental Life Insurance Agreement dated as of July 15, 2005 by and
between the bank and Richard W. Main, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.40.2 to the company’s B-K filed on July 20, 2005.

Supplemental Life Insurance Agreement dated as of July 15, 2005 by and
between the bank and Robert R. Gilman, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.40.3 to the company’s 8-K filed on July 20, 2005.

Amendment No. 1 dated as of July 15, 2005 toc Change in
Control/Noncompetition Agreement dated as of August 1, 200l by and among the
company, the bank and Robert R. Gilman, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.41 to the company’s 8-K filed on July 20, 2005.

Restricted Stock Agreement dated as of September 7, 2005 by and between the
company and John P. Clancy, Jr., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42
to the company’s 8-K filed on September 12, 2005.

mmendment No. 1 dated as of February 3, 2006 to Restricted Stock Agreement
dated as of September 7, 2005 by and between the company and John P. Clancy,
Jr., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to the company’s 8-K filed
on February 3, 2006.

Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated Dividend Reinvestment Plan,
incorporated by reference to the section of the company’s Registration
Statement on Form S$-3 (Reg. No. 333-123542), filed on March 24, 2005,
appearing under the heading “The Plan”.

Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. Empleyee Stock Purchase Plan, incorporated Dby

reference to Exhibit 4 to the cempany’s Registration Statement on Form 5-8
{Reg. No. 333-136700), filed on August 17, 2006.
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10.29 Amendment No.l dated as of October 17, 2006 to BAmended and Restated
Employment Agreement dated Janvary 1, 2004 by and among the company, the
bank and George L. Duncan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to the
company’s Form 8-~K filed on October 18, 2006.

10.30 Amendment No.2 dated as of October 17, 2006 to Amended and Restated
Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2004, as amended by Amendment No.l
thereto dated as of December 31, 2004, by and among the company, the bank
and Richard W. Main, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the
company’s Form 8-K filed on October 18, 2006.

10.231 Amendment No.2 dated as of October 17, 2006 to Amended and Restated
Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004, as amended by Amendment No. 1
thereto dated as of December 31, 2004, by and among the company, the bank
and John P. Clancy, Jr., incorpeorated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to the
company’s Form 8-K filed on October 18, 2006.

10.32 Enterprise Bank and Trust Company Supplemental Life Insurance Plan adopted
April 5, 2006, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 to the company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006.

10.33 Amendment No. 2 dated as of December 13, 2006 to Amended and Restated
Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2004, as amended by Amendment No. 1
thereto dated as of October 17, 2006 by and among the company, the bank and
George L. Duncan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 ta the
company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

10,34 Amendment Nc¢. 3 dated as of December 13, 2006 to Amended and Restated
Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2004, as amended by Amendment No. 1
thereto dated as of December 31, 2004 and Amendment No. 2 thereto dated as
of October 17, 2005, by and among the company, the bank and Richard W. Main,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the company’s Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2006.

10.35 Amendment No. 3 dated as of December 13, 2006 toc Amended and Restated
Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004, as amended by Amendment No. 1
thereto dated as of December 31, 2004 and Amendment No. 2 thereto dated as
of October 17, 2006, by and among the company, the bank and John P. Clancy,
Jr, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the company’'s Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006.

10.36 Amendment.  No, 2 dated as of December 13, 2006 to Change in
Control/Nencompetition Agreement dated as of August 1, 2001 as amended by
amendment No. 1 thereto dated as of July 15, 2005, by and among the company,
the bank and Robert R. Gilman, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to
the company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

10,37 Enterprise Bank Employee Incentive Compensation Plan, incorpeorated by
reference to Exhibit 10.48 to the cempany’'s Form 8-K filed on May 10, 2007.

10.38.1 Specimen Incentive Stock Option Agreement under Enterprise Bancorp, Inc.
Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and 2003 Stock Incentive
Plan, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49.1 to the
company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 (applicable to
grants after December 31, 2306).

10.38.2 Specimen Nongualified Stock Option Agreement under Enterprise Bancorp, Inc.
Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and 2003 Stock Incentive
Plan, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49.2 to the
company's Form 10-¢ for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 (applicable to
grants after December 31, 2006).

10.38.3 Specimen Incentive Stock Option Agreement (includes company right of
repayment) under Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated 1998 Stock
Incentive Plan and 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, incorporated by
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this repcrt has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.

/s/ George L. Duncan Chairman March 14, 2008
George L. Duncan
/s/ James A, Marcotte Executive Vice President, Chief March 14, 2008
James A. Marcotte Financial Officer and Treasurer
/s/ Michael K. Sullivan Controller of the Bank March 14, 2008

Michael K. Sullivan

/s/ Kenneth S. Ansin Directecr March 14, 2008
Kenneth 5. Ansin

/s/ John P. Clancy, Jr. Director, Chief Executive QOfficer March 14, 2008
John P. Clancy Jr.

/s/ John R. Clementi Director March 14, 2008
John R. Clementi

/s/ James F. Conway, III Director March 14, 2008
James F. Conway, III

/s/ Carcle A. Cowan Director March 14, 2008
Carole A. Cowan

/s/ Nancy L. Donahue Director March 14, 2008
Nancy L. Donahue

/s/ Lucy A. Flynn Director March 14, 2008
Lucy A. Flynn

/s/ Eric W. Hanson Director March 14, 2008
Eric W. Hanson

/s/ John P. Harringteon Director March 14, 2008
John P. Harrington

/s/ Arncid 5. Lerner Director, Vice Chairman March 14, 2008
Arnold 8. Lerner

/s/ Richard W. Main Director, President March 14, 2008
Richard W. Main

/s/ Carol L, Reid Director March 14, 2008
Carol L. Reid

/s/ Michael A. Spinelli Director, Secretary March 14, 2008
Michael A. Spinell:

/s5/ Nickeclas Stavropoulos Director March 14, 2008
Nickolas Stavropoulos




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
UNDER SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULE l3a-14(a)

I, John P. Clancy, Jr., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Enterprise Bancorp, Inc.:;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my Kknowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this report, fairly present 1in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying cfficer and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15{e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting {as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure contrels and procedures, or caused such disclosure contrels
and procedures to Dbe designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its c¢onsolidated subsidiaries, 1is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the periocd in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal
control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasconable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures
and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting that coccurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
{the registrant’s fourth fiscal guarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invelves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: March 14, 2008 /s/ John P. Clancy, Jr.

John P. Clancy, Jr.
Chief Executive Qfficer
(Principal Executive Qfficer)




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATICN OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
UNDER SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(a)

I, James A. Marcotte, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Enterprise Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the pericd covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report:;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15{(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 158-15(£f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared:

b} Designed such internal c¢entrol over financial reporting, or caused such internal
control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures
and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’'s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely tc materially affect, the registrant’s
internal contrel over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a} All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant'’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other emplcyees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal ceontrol over financial
reporting.

bate: March 14, 2008 /s/ James A. Marcotte

James A. Marcotte
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer (Principal Financial Cfficer)




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 1350 FURNISHED PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(b)

In connection with the Annual Report of Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. {(the “Company”) on Form
10-K for the period ended on December 31, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), each of the undersigned, in his respective
capacities indicated below, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S5.C. § 1350, as enacted by
Section %06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to his knowledge and belief, (1) the
Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ John P. Clancy, Jr.

John P. Clancy, Jr.

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ James A. Marcotte

James A. Marcotte

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer {(Principal Financial Officer)

March 14, 2008

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to
Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. and will be retained by Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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